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LEO 004 (11/89) 

ORDINANCE NO. 25930 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Tacoma, Washington establishing a 
telecommunications system as part of the Light Division, supplementing 
Ordinance No. 23514 and providing for the issuance and sale of the 
City's Electric System Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount 
of not to exceed $1,000,000 to provide part of the funds necessary for 
the acquisition, construction and installation of additions and 
improvements to the telecommunications system. 
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LEO 004 (II 189) 

ORDINANCE NO. 25930 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Tacoma, Washington establishing a 
telecommunications system as part of the Light Division, supplementing 
Ordinance No. 23514 and providing for the issuance and sale of the 
City's Electric System Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount 
of not to exceed $1,000,000 to provide part of the funds necessary for 
the acquisition, construction and installation of additions and 
improvements to the telecommunications system. 

WHEREAS, the City of Tacoma (the "City") owns and operates an electric utility 

system (the "Electric System"); and 

WHEREAS, the Ordinance provides that the City may create a separate system as part 

of the Electric System and pledge that the income of such separate system be paid into the 

Revenue Fund; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.020 authorizes the City to operate and supply utility and 

municipal services commonly or conveniently rendered by cities or towns; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.92.050 authorizes cities to construct and operate works and 

facilities for the purpose of furnishing any persons with electricity and other means of power 

and to regulate and control the use thereof or lease any equipment or accessories necessary and 

convenient for the use thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Utility Board and the Council have determined that it is in the best 

interest of the City that it install a telecommunications system among all of its Electric System 

substations in order to improve communications for automatic substation control; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is prudent and economical to provide 

additional capacity on such telecommunications system to provide the Electric System with 

sufficient capacity to perform or enhance such functions as automated meter reading and 

billing, appliance control, and load shaping; and 
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WHEREAS, the Light Division may wish to connect such telecommunications system 

to individual residences and businesses in its service area or to other providers of 

telecommunications services; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it should create a telecommunications system 

as part of the Electric System in order to construct these telecommunications improvements; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City by Ordinance No. 23514 passed November 20, 1985 (as 

amended and supplemented, the "Ordinance"), authorized Electric System Revenue Bonds (the 

"Bonds") of the City to be issued in series, made covenants and agreements in connection with 

the issuance of such Bonds and authorized the sale and issuance of the first series of such 

Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $125,505,000 (the "1985 Bonds") for the purpose 

of refunding all of the City's then outstanding light and power revenue bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the 1985 Bonds were issued under date of December 1, 1985 and are now 

outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore issued ten additional series of Bonds on a parity 

with the 1985 Bonds, which bonds were issued and are now outstanding: 

Authorizing Bonds Principal 
Ordinance Dated Amount Issued 

23663 July 1, 1986 $ 30,000,000 
24073 May 1, 1988 60,400,000 
24296 May 1, 1989 48,500,000 
25004 December 1, 1991 13,800,000 
25004 December 5, 1991 42,400,000 
25004 December 5, 1991 42,400,000 
25089 May 1, 1992 31,295,000 
25165 September 1, 1992 131,675,000 
25333 August 1, 1993 3,318,500 
25489 May 10, 1994 135,665,000 
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WHEREAS, after due consideration, it appears to the City Council and the Public 

Utility Board (the "Board") that it is in the best interest of the City to create and construct a 

telecommunications system and to issue Electric System Revenue Bonds to finance a portion 

of the costs of such construction and that the exact amount of Bonds and terms of the Bonds 

shall be determined by resolution of the Council~ and 

WHEREAS, Section 10.1 of the Ordinance provides that the City may, without the 

consent of the owners of any Bonds, adopt an ordinance supplemental to or amendatory of the 

Ordinance to provide for the issuance of Future Parity Bonds and to prescribe the terms and 

conditions pursuant to which such Bonds may be issued, paid or redeemed~ and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide that the issuance and sale of the Bonds will be 

issued and secured under the Ordinance as amended and supplemented by Ordinance 

No. 23663, Ordinance No. 24073, Ordinance No. 24296, Ordinance No. 25004, Ordinance 

No. 25089, Ordinance No. 25165, Ordinance No. 25333, Ordinance No. 25489 and this 

Ordinance~ 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND AUTHORITY 

Section 1.1. Supplemental Ordinance. This Ordinance No. 25930 is supplemental to 

and is adopted in accordance with Section 5.1 and Article X of the Ordinance and shall be 

known as the Eighth Supplemental Electric System Revenue Bond Ordinance (the "Eighth 

Supplemental Ordinance"). 

Section 1.2. Definitions. 

A. All terms that are defined in Section 1.1 of the Ordinance shall have the same 

meanings, respectively, in this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance as such terms are given in 
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Section 1.1 of the Ordinance, as amended and supplemented by the First, Second, Third, 

Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, and Seventh Supplemental Ordinances. 

B. In this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance: 

"Arbitrage and Tax Certification" means the certificate executed by the Director of 

Finance of the City pertaining to the calculation and payment of any Rebate Amount with 

respect to the Bonds. 

"Bond Sale Resolution" means the resolution to be adopted by the City Council setting 

forth the final terms of the Bonds. 

"Bonds" means the Electric System Revenue Bonds, 199 __, of the City issued pursuant 

to the Ordinance and this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with 

corresponding and applicable final, temporary or proposed regulations and revenue rulings 

issued or amended with respect thereto by the United States Treasury or the Internal Revenue 

Service, to the extent applicable to the Bonds. 

"Eighth Supplemental Ordinance" means this Ordinance No. 25930. 

"Rebate Amount" means the amount, if any, determined to be payable with respect to 

the Bonds by the City to the United States of America in accordance with Section 148(f) of the 

Code. 

Section 1.3. Authority for this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance. This Eighth 

Supplemental Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of 

Washington, the Tacoma City Charter and the Ordinance. 
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ARTICLE II 

FINDINGS; ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROJECT AS A 

SEPARATE SYSTEM; AND ADOPTION OF PLAN AND SYSTEM 

Section 2.1. Establishment of Telecommunication System. The City hereby creates a 

separate system of the City's Light Division to be known as the telecommunications system 

(the "Telecommunications System"). The public interest, welfare, convenience and necessity 

require the creation of the Telecommunications System, contemplated by the plan adopted by 

Section 2.2 hereof, for the purposes set forth in Exhibit A. The City hereby covenants that all 

revenues received from the Telecommunications System shall be deposited into the Revenue 

Fund. 

Section 2.2. Adoption of Plan: Estimated Cost. The City hereby specifies and adopts 

the plan set forth in Exhibit A for the acquisition, construction and implementation of the 

Telecommunications System (the "Telecommunications Project"). The City may modify 

details of the foregoing plan when deemed necessary or desirable in the judgment of the City. 

The estimated cost of the Telecommunications Project, including funds necessary for the 

payment of all costs of issuing the Bonds, is expected to be approximately $40,000,000. 

Section 2. 3. Findings of Parity. The Council hereby finds and determines as required 

by Section 5.2 of the Ordinance as follows: 

A. The Bonds will be issued for financing capital improvements to the Electric 

System. 

B. At the time of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, there will be no deficiency in 

the Bond Fund and no Event of Default shall have occurred. 

C. At the time of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, there will be on file with the 

City Clerk the certificate of the Director of Finance required by Section 5.2(B){l) or 

Section 5.2{C) of the Ordinance. 
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The applicable limitations contained in Section 5.2 of the Ordinance having been 

complied with in the issuance of the Bonds, the Bonds will have a lien upon the Net Revenues 

of the Electric System for the payment of principal thereof and interest thereon equal in priority 

to the lien upon the Net Revenues of the Electric System for the payment of the principal of 

and interest on the 1985 Bonds, the 1986 Bonds, the 1988 Bonds, the 1989 Bonds, the 1991 

Bonds, the 1992 Bonds, the 1992B Bonds, the 1993 Bonds and the 1994 Bonds. 

Section 2.4. Due Regard. The Council and Board hereby find and determine that due 

regard has been given to the cost of the operation and maintenance of the Electric System and 

that it has not obligated the City to set aside into the Bond Fund for the account of the Bonds a 

greater amount of the revenues and proceeds of the Electric System than in its judgment will 

be available over and above such cost of maintenance and operation. 

Section 2.5. Findings. The Council and Board hereby find it to be necessary and in the 

best interests of the City to issue the Bonds in order to provide part of the funds necessary to 

finance the Telecommunications Project. 

ARTICLE III 

AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS 

Section 3 .1. Principal Amount. Designation and Series. Pursuant to the provisions of 

the Ordinance, a series of Bonds of the City entitled to the benefit, protection and security of 

such provisions is hereby authorized in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$1,000,000. Such Bonds shall be designated as, and shall be distinguished from the Bonds of 

all other series by the title, "City of Tacoma, Washington Electric System Revenue Bonds, 

199 ." 

Section 3 .2. Purpose. The purpose of the Bonds is to provide part of the funds 

necessary to finance the Telecommunications Project, make any necessary deposit to the 

Reserve Account and to pay the costs of issuance and sale of the Bonds. 

-6- 1111107110 



LEG 004 (I 1189) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Section 3.3. Date. Maturities and Interest. The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $1,000,000 and shall be dated as of the date provided in the 

Bond Sale Resolution and shall bear interest from their dated date to their stated dates of 

maturity or prior redemption. The exact principal amount of the Bonds shall be established by 

the Bond Sale Resolution. The Bonds shall mature on the dates of the years and in the 

principal amounts and shall bear interest payable semiannually on the dates and at the rates per 

annum set forth in the Bond Sale Resolution. 

Section 3. 4. Denomination and Numbers. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered 

form in the denominations of$5,000 or any integral multiple of$5,000 within a maturity. The 

Bonds shall be numbered separately in such manner and with any additional designation as the 

Registrar deems necessary for purposes of identification. The Bond Sale Resolution may 

provide for the Bonds to be held in book-entry only form. 

Section 3.5. Redemption Terms. By the Bond Sale Resolution, the City Council may 

determine that all or a portion of the Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at 

the option of the City, in whole or in part, on any date and at the respective redemption prices 

specified in the resolution. The City Council may designate certain Bonds as Term Bonds that 

will be subject to redemption by operation of the Bond Retirement Account through Sinking 

Fund Requirements in the years and amounts set forth in the resolution. 

Section 3.6. Reservation of Right to Purchase. The City reserves the right to use 

money in the Revenue Fund or any other legally available funds at any time to purchase any of 

the Bonds in the open market provided there is no deficiency in the accounts within the Bond 

Fund. Any purchases of Bonds may be made with or without tenders of Bonds and at either 

public or private sale. 

Section 3.7. Tax Exemption. The City shall comply with the provisions of this section 

unless, in the written opinion of nationally-recognized Bond Counsel to the City, such 
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compliance is not required in order to maintain the exemption of the interest on the Bonds 

from federal income taxation. 

The City hereby covenants that it will not make any use of the proceeds from the sale 

of the Bonds or any other funds of the City which may be deemed to be proceeds of such 

Bonds pursuant to Section 148 of the Code and the applicable regulations thereunder which 

will cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of said Section and said 

regulations. The City will comply with the applicable requirements of Section 148 of the Code 

(or any successor provision thereof applicable to the Bonds) and the applicable regulations 

thereunder throughout the term of the Bonds. 

The City further covenants that it will not take any action or permit any action to be 

taken that would cause the Bonds to constitute "private activity bonds" under Section 141 of 

the Code. 

Section 3.8. Arbitrage Rebate. The City will pay the Rebate Amount, if any, to the 

United States of America at the times and in the amounts necessary to meet the requirements 

of the Code to maintain the federal income tax exemption for interest payments on the Bonds, 

in accordance with the Arbitrage and Tax Certification. 

ARTICLE IV 

REGISTRATION, FORM AND GENERAL TERMS 

Section 4.1. Registrar and Paying Agent. The initial Registrar and Paying Agent shall 

be the fiscal agencies for the state ofWashington in Seattle, Washington, and New York, New 

York. 

Section 4.2. Transfer and Exchange. So long as the Bonds are not in book-entry form, 

any Bond may be transferred pursuant to its provisions at the Registrar's principal office for 

such purpose by surrender of such Bond for cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument 

of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner in 
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person or by the registered owner's duly authorized attorney. Upon payment of any applicable 

tax or governmental charge, the City will execute and the Registrar will authenticate and 

deliver at the principal office of the Registrar (or send by registered mail to the owner thereof 

at the owner's expense), in the name of the transferee or transferees, a new Bond or Bonds in 

authorized denominations of the same interest rate, aggregate principal amount and maturity, 

dated as of the last interest payment date to which interest has been paid so that there shall 

result no gain or loss of interest as a result of such transfer. To the extent of authorized 

denominations, one Bond may be exchanged for several bonds of the same interest rate and 

maturity, and for a like aggregate principal amount, and several Bonds of the same interest rate 

and maturity may be exchanged for one or several Bonds, respectively, of the same interest 

rate and maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount. 

In every case of a transfer or exchange of any Bonds, the surrendered Bonds shall be 

canceled by the Registrar and a certificate evidencing such cancellation shall be promptly 

transmitted by the Registrar to the City. As a condition of any such transfer or exchange, the 

City at its option may require the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any tax or 

other governmental charge that may be imposed thereon. All Bonds executed, authenticated 

and delivered in exchange for or upon transfer of Bonds so surrendered shall be valid 

obligations of the City evidencing the same debt as the Bonds surrendered, and shall be entitled 

to all the benefits and protection of the Ordinance to the same extent as the surrendered 

Bonds. 

Section 4.3. Limitation on Transfer or Exchange of Bonds. The City shall not be 

required to (a) issue, transfer, or exchange Bonds after the 15th day of the month prior to any 

interest payment date therefor, or (b) to register, discharge from registration, transfer or 

exchange any Bonds which have been designated for redemption within a period of 30 days 

next preceding the date fixed for redemption. 
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Section 4.4. Effect of Payment. All payments of or on account of interest to any 

registered owner of any Bond, and all payments of or on account of principal to any registered 

owner of any Bond (or to his or her assigns), shall be valid and effectual and shall be a 

discharge of the City, the Paying Agent and the Registrar in respect of the liability upon the 

Bonds or claims for interest, as the case may be, to the extent of the sum or sums paid. 

All Bonds upon the payment or redemption thereof shall be canceled and destroyed by 

the Paying Agent, and a certificate evidencing such payment, cancellation and destruction shall 

be promptly transferred by the Paying Agent to the City. 

Section 4.5. Mutilated. Lost. Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. In case any Bond shall at 

any time become mutilated or be lost, stolen or destroyed, the City in the case of such 

mutilated Bond shall, and in the case of such lost, stolen or destroyed Bond in its discretion 

may, execute and direct the Registrar to authenticate and deliver a new Bond of the same 

interest rate and maturity and of like tenor and effect in exchange or substitution for and upon 

surrender and cancellation of such mutilated Bond, or in lieu of or in substitution for such 

destroyed, stolen or lost Bond. If such stolen, destroyed or lost Bond shall have matured or 

have been called for redemption, instead of issuing a substitute therefor, the City may without 

the surrender of such Bond at its option pay the same (in which case the City shall promptly 

file a certificate to that effect with the Paying Agent and Registrar) or cause the same to be 

paid by the Paying Agent by a certificate of the City directing such payment filed with the 

Paying Agent. Except in the case where a mutilated Bond is surrendered, the applicant for the 

issuance of a substitute Bond shall furnish to the City and the Registrar evidence satisfactory to 

them of the theft, destruction or loss of the original Bond, and also such security and indemnity 

as may be required by the City or the Registrar, and no such substitute Bond shall be issued 

unless the applicant for the issuance thereof shall reimburse the City and the Registrar for the 

expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, execution, authentication, issuance and 

¥\\ 
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delivery of the substitute Bond. Any such substitute Bond shall be equally and proportionately 

entitled to the security of the Ordinance with all other Bonds issued hereunder, whether or not 

the Bond alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed shall be found at any time. The 

Registrar shall cancel all mutilated Bonds surrendered to it. 

Section 4.6. Execution and Authentication of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed on 

behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and attested with the 

manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk and the seal of the City shall be imprinted or 

impressed on each of the Bonds. The Bonds shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication, 

in the form set forth in Section 4.7 of this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance, executed manually 

by the Registrar. Only such Bonds as shall bear thereon such certificate of authentication shall 

be entitled to any right or benefit under the Ordinance and no Bond shall be valid or obligatory 

for any purpose until such certificate of authentication shall have been duly executed by the 

Registrar. Such certificate of the Registrar upon any Bond executed on behalf of the City shall 

be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly authenticated and 

delivered under the Ordinance and that the owner thereof is entitled to the benefits of the 

Ordinance. 

In case any of the officers who shall have signed or attested any of the Bonds shall 

cease to be such officers before the Bonds so signed or attested shall have been actually 

delivered, such Bonds shall be valid nevertheless and may be issued by the City with the same 

effect as though the persons who had signed or attested such Bonds had not ceased to be such 

officers. 
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Section 4.7. Form ofBonds. 

(a) The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

No. _____ _ 

Interest Rate: 

% 

Registered Owner: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF WASIDNGTON 

CITY OF TACOMA 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BOND, 199 _ 

Maturity Date: 

Principal Amount: DOLLARS 

$ _____ _ 

CUSIPNo: 

The City of Tacoma, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington (hereinafter 
called the "City"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner 
identified above, or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date identified above, the Principal 
Amount indicated above and to pay interest on such principal amount from the date hereof or 
the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, at the Interest Rate 
set forth above per annum, payable 199 _, and semiannually thereafter on the 
first day of each and until payment shall have been made or provided 
for. 

Principal of and interest on this bond are payable solely out of the special fund of the 
City known as the "Electric System Revenue Bond Fund" created and established by Ordinance 
No. 23514 of the City (the "Bond Fund"). Both principal of and interest on this bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America. Interest shall be paid by mailing a 
check or draft or by wire transfer as provided in the Bond Ordinance (as hereinafter defined) to 
the registered owner or assigns at the address shown on the bond register as of the 15th day of 
the month prior to the interest payment date. Principal shall be paid to the registered owner or 
assigns upon presentation and surrender of this bond at the principal office of the Paying Agent 
or Agents which initially are the fiscal agencies of the State of Washington in Seattle, 
Washington, and New York, New York. (Such fiscal agencies also act, and are hereinafter 
referred to collectively, as the "Bond Registrar"). 

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Ordinance until the Certificate of Authentication hereon 
shall have been manually signed by the Bond Registrar. 
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LEO 004 (11189) 

This bond is one of a duly authorized series of bonds aggregating $. _____ _ 
in principal amount and designated as "Electric System Revenue Bonds, 199 _." This bond and 
the bonds ofthis series (the "Bonds") are issued under and pursuant to Ordinance No. 23514 
as amended and supplemented by Ordinance No. 23663, Ordinance No. 24073, Ordinance No. 
24296, Ordinance No. 25004, Ordinance No. 25089, Ordinance No. 25165, Ordinance 
No. 25489 and Ordinance No. 25930 of the City (together the "Bond Ordinance"), and under 
the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Washington. 

The Bonds are issued for the purpose of providing part of the funds necessary for 
financing capital improvements to the Electric System. The Bond Ordinance permits the 
issuance of Future Parity Bonds payable from the Bond Fund ranking on a parity with the 1985 
Bonds, the 1986 Bonds, the 1988 Bonds, the 1989 Bonds, the 1991 Bonds, the 1992 Bonds, 
the 1992B Bonds, the 1993 Bonds, the 1994 Bonds and the Bonds and secured by an equal 
charge and lien on the Net Revenues and permits the costs associated with certain Contract 
Resource Obligations to be included in the Electric System's Operating Expenses (as such 
terms are defined in the Bond Ordinance). The 1985 Bonds, the 1986 Bonds, the 1988 Bonds, 
the 1989 Bonds, the 1991 Bonds, the 1992 Bonds, the 1992B Bonds, the 1993 Bonds, the 
1994 Bonds, the Bonds and any Future Parity Bonds are hereinafter collectively referred to as 
the "Parity Bonds." 

Copies of the Bond Ordinance are on file at the office of the City Clerk and at the 
principal office of each Paying Agent for this bond. Reference is hereby made to the Bond 
Ordinance and to any and all modifications and amendments thereof for a more complete 
description of the Revenues available for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds and the rights and remedies of the owners of the Bonds with respect thereto, the terms 
and conditions upon which the Bonds have been issued, and the terms and conditions upon 
which this bond shall no longer be secured by the Bond Ordinance or deemed to be 
outstanding thereunder if money or certain specified securities sufficient for the payment of this 
bond shall have been set aside in a special account and held in trust for the payment thereof. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the 
Bond Ordinance. 

Under the Bond Ordinance, the City is obligated to set aside and pay into the Bond 
Fund out of the Revenues of said Electric System certain fixed amounts sufficient to pay the 
principal of and interest and premium, if any, on all Parity Bonds at any time outstanding as the 
same become due and payable, all as is more fully provided in the Bond Ordinance. The Bonds 
and the interest thereon constitute the only charge against the Bond Fund and the amount of 
the Net Revenues pledged to said Bond Fund, as provided in the Bond Ordinance. 

In and by the Bond Ordinance, the City covenants to establish, maintain and collect 
rates and charges for electric energy sold through the ownership or operation of the Electric 

-13- NMNOSII.OOC 96107/10 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

LEO 004 (II 189) 

System and all other services, facilities and commodities sold, furnished or supplied by the City 
in connection with the ownership or operation of the Electric System which shall be fair and 
adequate to provide Revenues sufficient for the payment of the Parity Bonds and all payments 
which the City is obligated to set aside in the Bond Fund and for the proper operation and 
maintenance of the Electric System, including payment of certain Contract Resource 
Obligations, all necessary repairs, replacements and renewals thereof and other costs thereof, 
as provided in the Bond Ordinance. 

The Bonds maturing on and after I, __ are subject to redemption prior 
to maturity at the option of the City on any date on and after I, 20 _, in whole or 
in part, upon written notice as provided hereinafter, at the redemption prices with respect to 
each Bond (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed) 
set forth below, together with the interest, if any, accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption: 

Redemption Period Redemption Price 

If less than all of the Bonds subject to optional redemption are to be called for 
redemption, the City shall choose the maturities to be redeemed. In the event that less than all 
of the Bonds of any maturity are called for redemption, the particular Bonds of such maturity 
to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar, or, so long as the Bonds are 
held in book-entry form, by the Securities Depository. 

The Bonds maturing on __ I, __ (hereinafter referred to as the "Term Bonds") 
shall be redeemed prior to maturity by lot, not later than __ I in the years __ through 
-~ inclusive, from amounts credited to the Bond Retirement Account in the Bond Fund as 
sinking fund installments therefor (to the extent such amounts have not been used to redeem or 
purchase such Bonds as provided below) and in the principal amounts as set forth below, upon 
written notice as provided hereinafter by payment of the principal amount thereof, together 
with the interest, if any, accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 

Year Amount 

The City may purchase or redeem the Term Bonds through the application of part or all 
of the respective sinking fund installments therefor at any time prior to any __ I due date. 
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Any money not so used to redeem or to purchase such Term Bonds shall be substantially 
exhausted by application to the redemption of such bonds on such succeeding 1. If, as 
of any __ 1, the principal amount of Term Bonds retired by purchase or redemption from 
any source exceeds the cumulative requirement for sinking fund installments through such 
date, such excess may be credited against the sinking fund installment for the next fiscal year. 

Written notice of redemption shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, not less 
than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the redemption date to the registered owners of the 
Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at their last addresses, if any, appearing on the Bond 
Register, but any defect with respect to the redemption of any bond shall not invalidate the 
redemption of any other bond. Notice of redemption having been given by mailing, as 
aforesaid, the Bonds so called for redemption shall on the date specified in such notice become 
due and payable at the applicable redemption price herein provided, and from and after the date 
so fixed for redemption (except as to any bond, or portion of any bond, not so redeemed in 
accordance with such call for redemption) interest on said Bonds so called for redemption shall 
cease to accrue. 

A portion of the principal sum of this bond in the amount of $5,000, or any integral 
multiple thereof, may be redeemed, and if less than all of the principal sum hereof is to be 
redeemed, in such case upon the surrender of this bond at the principal office of the Bond 
Registrar, there shall be issued to the registered owner, without charge therefor, for the then 
unredeemed balance of the principal sum hereof, fully registered bonds of like series, maturity 
and interest rate in any of the denominations authorized by the Bond Ordinance. 

This bond shall be transferable by the registered owner at the principal offices of the 
Bond Registrar upon surrender and cancellation of this bond, and thereupon a new registered 
bond or bonds of the same principal amount and interest rate and maturity will be issued to the 
transferee as provided in the Bond Ordinance. The City, the Bond Registrar, the Paying 
Agents and any other person may treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the 
absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment hereof and for all purposes and 
shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary, whether this bond be overdue or not. 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required 
by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Washington to exist, to have happened and to 
have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this bond do exist, have happened and 
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LBO 004 (11189) 

have been performed in due time, fonn and manner as prescribed by law, and that the amount 
of this bond, together with all other obligations or indebtedness of the City, does not exceed 
any constitutional or statutory limitations of indebtedness. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Tacoma, by its City Council, has caused this 
bond to be executed in its name with the facsimile or manual signature of its Mayor, and 
attested by the facsimile or manual signature of its Clerk, and the seal of said City to be 
imprinted or impressed hereon, all as of the __ day of 199 _. 

CITY OF TACOMA, WASIDNGTON 

By 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

Authentication Date: 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the bonds described in the within-mentioned Bond Ordinance and is 
one of the Electric System Revenue Bonds, 199 _ of the City of Tacoma, Washington, dated 
_______ _.J 199 . 

-16-

WASIDNGTON STATE FISCAL 
AGENCY, Bond Registrar 

By _________________ __ 

Authorized Officer 
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ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR TAXPAYER 
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF TRANSFEREE 

(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code, of Transferee) 

------------------------------------------------------------ the 
within bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint _________ _ 
attorney-in-fact to transfer said bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power 
of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ----------------

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 

NOTE: The signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears upon the 
face of the within bond in every 
particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatever. 

19 ARTICLE V 

20 APPLICATION OF PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE TO BONDS 

21 Section 5 .1. Issuance of Future Parity Bonds. The provisions of Article V of the 

22 Ordinance relating to the issuance of Future Parity Bonds shall apply to the Bonds. 

23 Section 5 .2. Contract Resource Obligations. The provisions of Article VI of the 

24 Ordinance relating to Contract Resource Obligations shall apply to the Bonds. 

25 Section 5.3. Application of Sections 7.1 through 7.3 of Ordinance Relating to Special 

26 Funds and Accounts. Except as otherwise provided below in Section 5.1 0, the provisions of 
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Sections 7.1 through 7. 3 of the Ordinance relating to the Revenue Fund and the accounts 

therein, the Bond Fund and the accounts therein, the Cumulative Reserve Fund, and the 

investment of money held for the credit of such Funds shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5.4. Covenants to Secure Bonds. The provisions of Article IX of the 

Ordinance setting forth the covenants to secure Bonds, as amended by Article VII of the First 

Supplemental Ordinance, shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5. 5. Supplemental and Amendatory Ordinances. The provisions of Article X 

of the Ordinance relating to supplemental and amendatory ordinances shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5.6. Defaults and Remedies. The provisions of Article XI of the Ordinance 

relating to defaults and remedies shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5. 7. Amendments and Bondowners' Meetings. The provisions of Article XII 

of the Ordinance relating to amendments and bondowners' meetings shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5.8. Miscellaneous. The provisions of Article XIII of the Ordinance relating 

to the City's contract with the owners of Bonds, money held by the Paying Agent one year 

after the due date, the benefits of the Ordinance and severability shall apply to the Bonds. 

Section 5.9. Rights of AMBAC. The provisions of Article X of the Second 

Supplemental Ordinance and Article VII of the Fifth Supplemental Ordinance and Article VIII 

of the Sixth Supplemental Ordinance relating to the rights of AMBAC Indemnity Corporation 

are incorporated herein by reference and shall be in force and effect so long as any 1988 Bond, 

1992 Bond or 1992B Bond, respectively, is Outstanding and insured by the municipal bond 

guaranty insurance policy therein authorized. 

Section 5.10. Reserve Subaccount. There is hereby established within the Reserve 

Account a special subaccount entitled the "199 Reserve Subaccount." Funds in such 

Reserve Subaccount shall be treated in all respects as other funds in the Reserve Account. The 

City shall make transfers into the Reserve Subaccount from money and investments in the 
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Reserve Account, from proceeds of the Bonds, or from other available money in amounts 

sufficient to satisfy the Reserve Account Requirement with respect to the Bonds. 

The City is authorized to satisfy the requirements of Section 7.2 of the Ordinance with 

respect to the Reserve Account as to the Bonds through the use of Qualified Insurance, or a 

Qualified Letter of Credit, which may be purchased on the date of closing of the Bonds or after 

the issuance of the Bonds and substituted for amounts in the Reserve Subaccount pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 7. 2 of the Ordinance. 

ARTICLE VI 

DISPOSITION OF BOND PROCEEDS 

Section 6.1. Construction Account. A special fund of the City has heretofore been 

created and designated the "City of Tacoma Electric System Construction Fund" (the 

"Construction Fund"). There is hereby created within the Construction Fund a special account 

to be known as the "199_ Bonds Construction Account" into which shall be deposited from 

the proceeds of sale of the Bonds. Money in the Construction Account shall be used for 

paying part of the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the additions and 

improvements described in Exhibit A, and for paying all expenses incidental thereto (including 

but not limited to costs of issuance of the Bonds, engineering, financing, legal or any other 

incidental costs) and for repaying any advances heretofore or hereafter made on account of 

such costs, and such money or so much thereof as may be necessary be and hereby is 
20 

21 

22 

23 

appropriated for such purpose. 

All proceeds of the Bonds so deposited in the Construction Account shall be 

continuously and fully invested to the extent practicable in Permitted Investments. Interest 

earned and income or profits derived by virtue of such investments shall remain in the account 
24 

and be used for the purposes for which the Bonds are issued or other lawful purposes. Money 
25 

in the Construction Account may be transferred to the Bond Fund in such amounts as shall be 
26 
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necessary to pay principal of and interest on Bonds, and may be used to pay any Rebate 

Amount. 

Section 6.2. Disposition of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Bonds are hereby 

appropriated for the following purposes and shall be deposited as follows: 

I . The amount equal to the interest accruing on the Bonds from their dated 

date to the date of their delivery shall be deposited in the Interest Account in the Bond Fund 

and invested in Permitted Investments. 

2. To the extent permitted by the Code, the amount that when added to 

other money in the Reserve Account will ensure that the total amount in the Reserve Account 

equals the Reserve Account Requirement shall be deposited in the Reserve Account in the 

Bond Fund. 

3. The balance of the Bond proceeds shall be deposited in the Construction 

Account and used for the purposes specified in Sections 6.1, including payment of costs of 

issuance of the Bonds. 

ARTICLE Vll 

SALE OF BONDS 

Section 7 .1. Sale of Bonds. The Bonds may be sold by competitive or negotiated sale, 

which sale shall be approved by the Bond Sale Resolution. 

Section 7.2. Official Statement: Insurance. The Director and/or Deputy Director of 

Utilities are authorized to prepare a preliminary official statement for the marketing of the 

Bonds and to solicit bids for bond insurance. The Bond Sale Resolution shall approve the 

preliminary and final official statements and any bond insurance. 
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ARTICLE VIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 8.1. Defeasance. In the event that the City, in order to effect the payment, 

retirement or redemption of any Bond, sets aside in the Bond Fund or in another special 

account, advance refunding bond proceeds or other money lawfully available or direct 

obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America ("Government 

Obligations"), or any combination of such proceeds, money and/or Government Obligations, in 

amounts which, together with known earned income from the investment thereof are sufficient 

to redeem, retire or pay such Bond in accordance with its terms and to pay when due the 

interest and redemption premium, if any, thereon, and such proceeds, money and/or 

Government Obligations are irrevocably set aside and pledged for such purpose, then no 

further payments need be made into the Bond Fund for the payment of the principal of and 

interest on such Bond, and the owner of such Bond shall cease to be entitled to any lien, 

benefit or security of the Ordinance except the right to receive payment of principal, premium, 

if any, and interest from such special account, and such Bond shall be deemed not to be 

outstanding hereunder. 

Section 8.2. Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure. In the Bond Sale 

Resolution the City shall undertake to provide certain ongoing disclosure for the benefit of the 

owners of the Bonds as required by Section (b)(5) of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission's Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. 

Section 8.3. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Eighth 

Supplemental Ordinance is or are held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to 

law, then such provision or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable 

from the remaining provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of 

this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance or the Bonds. 
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Section 8.4. Effective Date. This Eighth Supplemental Ordinance shall take effect and 

be in force thirty days after its passage, approval and publication as required by law. Any 

actions taken pursuant to this Eighth Supplemental Ordinance before its effective date and 

after its passage are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

INTRODUCED AND READ FOR THE FIRST TIME at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held the 1 6th day of J u 1 Y 1996. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Tacoma, Washington, and authenticated by 

its Mayor at a regular meeting of the Council held this 23rd day of July, 1996. 

CIT~~MA, WASlllNGTON 

By ~ 
Mayor 

City Clerk 
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1 
CLERK'S CERTIFICATE 

2 

3 I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and ~ City Clerk of the City of 

4 Tacoma, Washington, and keeper of the records of the City Council (herein called the 

5 "Council"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

1. That the attached Ordinance No. 25930 (herein called the "Ordinance") is a true 

and correct copy of an Ordinance of the Council, as finally passed at a regular meeting of the 

Council held on the .:a~ay of July, 1996 and duly recorded in my office. 

2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance 

with law, and to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; 

that a legal quorum was present throughout the meeting and a legally sufficient number of 

members of the Council voted in the proper manner for the passage of said Ordinance; that all 

other requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of said Ordinance have 

been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed, and that I am authorized to execute this 

certificate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 

the City as ofthis :JV1day of July, 1996. 

City Clerk 
City of Tacoma, Washington 

~· 
' 1.- l_~ ' / . 

.-.' 

·--:; 
) 

c 
r 
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EXlllBIT A 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROJECT 

The Telecommunications Project will include some or all of the following elements: 

Infrastructure improvements 

Construct a hybrid fiber coax ("HFC") telecommunications infrastructure consisting of fiber 
optic rings and branches connecting nodes throughout the Light Division service area. This 
telecommunications system will be asymmetrically two-way capable. It will interconnect all 
Light Division substations. Connections may also be made with Light Division customers and 
with other providers of telecommunications infrastructure and services. This 
telecommunications system will have 500 channels. It will utilize existing Light Division 
rights-of-way. 

Functions to be performed by infrastructure improvements 

Through construction of the HFC telecommunications system, the Light Division's 
Telecommunications System will be capable of performing some or all of the following 
functions: 

• conventional substation communications functions 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

automated meter reading (electric and water) 

automated billing (electric and water) 

automated bill payment (electric and water) 

demand side management (DSM) functions, such as automated load (e.g. water 
heater) control 

provision of information to customers that is relevant to their energy and water 
purchasing decisions (e.g. information on time-of-use or "green" power rates) 

• distribution automation 

• remote tum on/tum off for electric and water customers 

• 
• 
• 

• 

city government communications functions 

CATV service 

transport of signals for service providers offering telecommunications services 
(e.g. Personal Communications Service (PCS), video on demand, high speed 
data, as well as conventional wired and wireless telecommunications services) 

Internet access service 
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REQUEST FOR ORDI 
OR RESOLUTIO'ft" 

Ordinance 1: 

Resolution 1: 

1. Date: June 21, 1996 

Requesting DepartmenUDivision/Program Sponsored By Phone/Extension 

2. Tacoma Public Utilities/Light Division Steve Klein 8203 

Contact Person (for questions): Phone/Extension 

3. Steve Klein 502-8203 

4. Preparation of is requested for the City Council meeting of Tuesday July 16, 1996. 

5. Summary Title/Recommendation: (A concise sentence, as it will appear on the Council Agenda) 

Authorize a Bond Ordinance for City of Tacoma, Washington, Department of Public Utilities, Light Division to clarify its legal 
authority to develop telecommunication capacity for cable television outside the City limits, certain telecommunications 
services, and other uses. 

6. Background Information/General Discussion: (Why is this request necessary? Are there legal requirements? What are the 
viable alternatives? Who has been involved in the process?) 

Approval of this Bond Ordinance is necessary to confirm Light Division authority to engage in certain telecommunications 
activities. This determination will facilitate the decision-making process at the conclusion of the feasibility studies currently 
underway. 

7. Financial Impact: (Future impact on the budget.) 

8. List all material available as backup information for the request and indicate where filed: 
Source Documents/Backup Material Location of Document 

Proposed Ordinance 

Public Utility Board Resolution U-9198 

Letter to City Council and Public utility Board dated June 
19, 1996. 

9. Funding Source: (Enter amount of funding from each source) 

Fund Number & State $ City $ 
Name: 

If an expenditure, is it budgeted? O Yes 0 No 

Attached 

Attached 

Attached 

Other$ Total Amount 

Where? Org # Acct# 



Tacoma 
Public 
Utilities 

June 19, 1996 

To the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
and 
To the Chairman and Members of the Public Utility Board 

Mark Crisson 
Director 

:11128 South 35th Street 
P.O. Box 11007 
Tacoma, WA. 98-tll- 0007 

Divis ions 
Light 
Water 
Belt Line 

RE: Proposed Bond Ordinance Approval and Authorization to Proceed 
With a Declaratory Judgment Legal Action to Confirm Authority to 
Construct and Operate a Fiber Optics System With Cable Television 
and Telecommunications Capabilities/Board Resolution U-9198 

As we previously discussed with you, the Light Division is proceeding to move 
forward with a further in-depth analysis of the feasibility of a fiber optics system_ 
We will not move forward with this project until we have reviewed this future 
analysis with you and obtained your further appropriate approvaL 

This enabling legislation ordinance is specifically necessary at this time, however, 
in order to seek and obtain a declaratory judgment by the appropriate Washington 
State court to clarify the legal authority for certain aspects of the project. Chief 
Assistant City Attorney Mark Bubenik's confidential memorandum dated June 21 , 
1996 which has been furnished to each of you delineates the legal issues and 
procedures involved. 

):[:]_yo'(') ' 
Mark Crisson~ 
Director of Utilities 

f/m/cabletv2 



Tacoma 
Public 
Utilities 

To: Rick Rosenbladt, City Clerk 

MEMORANDUM 

From: Mark Bubenik, Chief Assistant City Attorney ~_j.:-
Date: June 27, 1996 

Subject: 

Please place the following proposed resolution(s) ordinance(s) 
on the agenda for the July 16, 1996 Council Meeting: 

U-9198 Authorize approval of a proposed bond ordinance for 
the City of Tacoma, Light Division to clarify its legal authority to 
develop telecommunication capacity for cable tv outside the City limits 
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• RESOLUTION NO. U-9198 

WHEREAS the Light Division has determined that a 

telecommunications network system-wide will provide substantial benefits for 

the Light Division for substation communications, meter reading, demand 

side management, communications and other beneficial Light Division 

Electric System uses, and 

WHEREAS by the installation of additional telecommunications 

capactiy, this system would have the capability of providing additional public 

benefits for the City, and Light Division ratepayers, and 

WHEREAS for the above-stated purposes it will be necessary to 

approve a plan and system ordinance declaring the estimated cost thereof 

providing for the method of financing and providing for the adoption and 

implementation thereof, and a proposed ordinance providing for the issuance 

and sale of special obligation bonds of the City of Tacoma consisting of one 

million dollars ($1,000,000) of electric system revenue bonds to be issued to 

provide funds for such purposes, all as more specifically stated in the said 

proposed ordinance, which by this reference is incorporated herein, and 

WHEREAS it is in the best public interest to approve the proposed 

ordinance and to request its passage by the City Council; Now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

That the findings, terms and conditions of said proposed ordinance is 
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approved and the Council of the City of Tacoma is requested to concur by 

passing an ordinance substantially in the same form as attached and as 

approved by the City Attorney. 

Approved as to form & legality: Carl !tV. Virgil 

Mark Bubenik Chairman 

Chief Assistant City Attorney Bil !l~oss 

Acting Secretary 

Lydia Stevenson 
Adopted._--"-'6/'--2'--. n.;.,<.../....;:;9...:.6 __ 

Clerk 

ASLRA 
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Ordinance No. ;/.573" 

First Reading of Ordinance: J U l 16 1996 
Final Reading of Ordinance: J U l 2 3 1Qq6 

Passed: ____ J_lJ_L _2_3_19_9_6 _ 

Roll Call vote: 

MEMBERS AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Mr. Baarsma v 
Mr. Crowley / 
Mr. DeForrest ,/ 
Mr. Evans / 
Mr. Kirby J' 
Dr. McGavick / 
Mr. Miller ~ 
Dr. Silas 1// 
Mayor Moss -/ 

MEMBERS AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Mr. Baarsma 
Mr. Crowley 
Mr. DeF arrest 
Mr. Evans 
Mr. Kirby 
Dr. McGavick 
Mr. Miller 
Dr. Silas 
Mayor Moss 
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Certified Public Accountants I Business Consultants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Chair and Members of the Public Utility Board
City of Tacoma, Washington Department of Public Utilities, Power Division
Tacoma, Washington

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of City of Tacoma, Washington Department of 
Public Utilities, Power Division (the Division], which comprise the statements of net position as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net 
position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (co n tin u ed )

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Division as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the accompanying 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 13, schedule of proportionate share of net 
pension liability, and schedule of the city of Tacoma’s contributions employer contributions on page 46 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a 
whole. The statistical data presented on pages 47 through 64, and the superintendent’s report presented 
on pages 65 through 82 are presented for purposes of additional analysis, and are not a required part of 
the financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Tacoma, Washington 
April 19, 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis of Tacoma Power’s financial performance 
provides an overview of the financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2016 
and 2015. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on 
the significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Utility’s financial activities, 
and identify changes in the Utility’s financial position. We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements 
and notes taken as a whole.

The management of the Finance Department of the City of Tacoma is responsible for 
preparing the accompanying financial statements and for their integrity. The 
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) in the United States of America applied on a consistent basis and include 
amounts that are based on management's best estimates and judgment.

The basic financial statements, presented on a comparative basis for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, include the Statements of Net Position, Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statements of Cash Flows. 
The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Utility’s assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the 
difference being reported as net position. The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position report all of the revenues and expenses during the time 
periods indicated. The Statements of Cash Flows provide information on cash receipts 
and disbursements during the year and report changes in cash resulting from operating, 
non-capital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional disclosures that are essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. They are an integral 
part of the Utility’s presentation of financial position, results of operations and changes 
in cash flows.

The Division adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application, during fiscal year 2016. The statement provides guidance for determining 
fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements, 
and requires accounting for investments at fair value (See note 3).

Financial Highlights

• Tacoma Power reported a decrease in total net position of $3.9 million (150.6%) 
in 2016, compared to a decrease of $1.6 million (106.6%) in 2015.

• Operating revenues increased $8.0 million (1.9%) in 2016. Operating revenues 
in 2015 decreased $30.6 million (6.9%).
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• utility Plant in Service increased $143.1 million (7.7%) in 2016 and $43.2 million 
(2.4%) in 2015.

• Construction work in progress decreased $61.5 million (70.0%) in 2016 and 
increased $33.2 million (60.5%) in 2015.

Overview of Financial Statements

Tacoma Power reported net operating income of $30.4, $34.1 and $68.1 million in 
2016, 2015 and 2014 respectively. Operating revenues increased $8.0 million during 
2016 and operating expenses increased $11.6 million. For 2015, operating revenues 
decreased $30.6 million and operating expenses increased $3.4 million compared to 
2014. Tacoma Power reported a decrease in net position of $3.9 million in 2016 
compared to a decrease of $1.6 million in 2015 and an increase of $23.7 million in 
2014.

The following tables highlight Tacoma Power’s past three years’ operating results and 
megawatt-hours billed.

OPERATING RESULTS
(in thousands)

Cateaorv
Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses

$
2016
418,614
388,220

$
2015
410,626
376,576

$
2014
441,246
373,173

16/15
Increase

(Decrease)
$ 7,988

11,644

15/14
Increase

(Decrease)
$ (30,620)

3,403
Net Operating Income 30,394 34,050 68,073 (3,656) (34,023)

Net Non-Operating Expenses (12,716) (20,036) (25,138) 7,320 5,102
Capital Contributions 5,162 5,708 4,120 (546) 1,588
BABs and CREBs subsidies 3,684 3,676 3,668 8 8
Transfers Out (30,462) (24,969) (26,999) (5,493) 2,030
Change in Net Position

(Net Income) $ (3,938) $ (1,571) $ 23,724 $ (2,367) $ (25,295)

MEGAWATT-HOURS BILLED
(in thousands)

Tvoe of Customer 2016 2015 2014

16/15
Increase

(Decrease)

15/14
Increase

(Decrease)
Residential 1,856 1,801 1,891 55 (90)
Commercial/General/Industrial 2,715 2,791 2,869 (76) (78)
Wholesale 2,731 1,918 2,843 813 (925)
Total 7,302 6,510 7,603 792 (1093)
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Net Position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position. 
The following analysis highlights net position for the last three years.

Statements of Net Position
(in thousands)

16/15 15/14
Increase Increase

Descriotion 2016 2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Net Utility and Non-Utility Plant 
Current Assets, Other Assets and

$1,033,591 $ 1,002,993 $ 979,067 $ 30,598 $ 23,926

Special Funds 384,884 392,482 525,770 (7,598) (133,288)
Total Assets 1,418,475 1,395,475 1,504,837 23,000 (109,362)

Deferred Outflows 39,469 10,977 8,026 28,492 2,951
Total Assets and 

Deferred Outflows $1,457,944 $ 1,406,452 $1,512,863 $ 51,492 $ (106,411)

Net Position;
Net Investment in Capital 

Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted

581,629
15,225

225,142

594,626
21,028

210,279

499,659
34,666

288,478

(12,997) $ 
(5,803) 
14,863

94,967
(13,638)

Total Net Position 821,996 825,933 822,803 (3,937) 3,130

Long-Term Debt 457,602 441,928 530,581 15,674 (88,653)
Other Liabilities 128,058 86,555 111,479 41,503 (24,924)

Total Liabilities 585,660 528,483 642,060 57,177 (113,577)
Deferred Inflows 50,288 52,036 48,000 (1,748) 4,036

Total Net Position, Liabilities
and Deferred Inflows $1,457,944 $1,406,452 $1,512,863 $ 51,492 $ (106,411)

Revenues

2016 Compared to 2015

Operating revenues totaled $418.6 million in 2016 
compared to $410.6 million in 2015, an increase of 
$8.0 million (1.9%). Revenues from residential 
customers increased $4.9 million (3.3%). 
Wholesale revenues increased $4.1 million (8.2%) 
as compared to 2015. The majority of the increase 
was due to higher volume. Streamflows were up 
116% over 2015, and were 113% of average for 
2016. Generation was up 27%, while purchases 
were down, which left more to sell.

OPERATING REVENUES 
(in m illions)

450 
400 
350 
300 
250 
200 
150 
100 

50 
0

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 09 08 07

J Residential and Other □ Comm/Gen/Ind O Wholesale

7-



In 2016 residential sales accounted for 41.4% of electric revenues, commercial, general 
and industrial revenues accounted for 44.0% and wholesale power revenues accounted 
for 14.6%.

2015 Compared to 2014
Operating revenues totaled $410.6 million in 2015 compared to $441.2 million in 2014, 
a decrease of $30.6 million (6.9%). Revenues from general customers increased $1.3 
million (1.2%). There was a rate increase of 3.8% effective 2015, which was partially 
offset by a decrease of 62,000 MWh billed. Wholesale revenues in 2015 decreased 
$32.4 million as compared to 2014. Streamflows in 2015 were 79% of 2014 
streamflows, resulting in lower generation and therefore lower sales.

In 2015 residential sales accounted for 41.4% of electric revenues, commercial, 
general, and industrial revenues accounted for 44.8% and wholesale power revenues 
accounted for 13.8%.

Expenses

2016 Compared to 2015
Total operating expenses increased $11.6 million or 3.1% compared to 2015.

GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, resulted in an increase in 
expense of $10.0 million in 2016. This expense was allocated across the Power 
sections as follows: Admin & General $2.9 million. Distribution $2.9 million.
Maintenance $1.4 million, Generation $1.0 million. Telecommunications $0.8 million. 
Other $0.7 million, and Transmission $0.4 million.

Purchased power increased $0.5 million (0.4%). The increase was primarily due to 
increased contract costs and renewable energy credits purchased offset by increased 
credits and decreased purchased power.

Transmission expense increased $6.1 million (28.0%) and distribution expense 
increased $10.3 million (101.5%). In 2015 Tacoma Power conducted a review of 
expenses and determined that a large amount of costs that were assigned to 
administration and general expense should be reclassified to non-administrative 
groups. The increases in transmission and distribution expenses are primarily due to 
reclassifying these expenses effective January 1,2016.

Generation expense increased $5.1 million (35.7%), maintenance expense increased 
$4.6 million (16.7%) and other production expenses increased $3.7 million (24.3%) 
primarily due to the reclassification of expenses previously mentioned.

Administration and general expenses decreased $17.5 million (29.9%) primarily due to 
the reclassification of expenses previously mentioned.
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2015 Compared to 2014
Total operating expenses increased $3.4 million or 0.9% compared to 2014.

Purchased power increased $4.9 million (4.1%). Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) 
purchases increased $8.1 million. The Slice and Block portions of the BPA contract 
increased $3.1 million and credits for the Energy Conservation Agreement (EGA) 
decreased $5.0 million. Purchases from Priest Rapids increased $1.6 million. Part of 
the contract includes a credit for a portion of the proceeds of sale of the output from the 
project. Credits were less in 2015 than in 2014. Purchases from Grand Coulee Project 
Hydroelectric Authority increased $0.3 million due increased operating costs that were 
passed on to Tacoma Power. Other portfolio purchases decreased $5.5 million 
primarily due to lower volume. Temperatures for most of the year were higher than 
normal and streamflows were lower.

Telecommunications expense increased $5.7 million primarily due to an updated cost 
allocation between Power and Click! Previously, allocated costs were approximately 
75% Click! and 25% Power. The cost aHocation has been updated to reflect shared 
costs of approximately 94% to Click! and 6% to Power. This change was effective 
January 1,2015.

Maintenance expense decreased $5.6 million (16.8%). Generation maintenance 
increased $0.5 million primarily due to a mechanical overhaul at Wynoochee. 
Distribution maintenance decreased $2.6 million and Transmission maintenance 
expense decreased $3.5 million. This is mostly due to the updated cost allocation 
between Power and Click.

Distribution operations expense decreased $3.6 million (26.4%) primarily due to the 
updated cost allocation between Power and Click! and the implementation of GASB 68, 
resulting in a $1.3 million decrease in pension expense.

Generation operations expense increased $1.9 million (15.7%). Natural Resources 
costs increased $1.3 million due to testing and operations of new fish related facilities 
and to hiring new personnel. Contributions to the Fleet Replacement Fund increased 
$0.7 million.
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Customer Counts

Tacoma Power’s overall customer growth during 
the past 10 years has been relatively steady 
averaging between less than 1% and 3% per year. 
The customer count for 2016 is 176,784 compared 
to 174,562 in 2015 and 172,531 in 2014.

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
(in thousands)

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 09 08 07

B Residential and Other ■ Comm/Gen/Ind

Megawatt-hours Billed

Megawatt-hours billed to residential and other 
customers increased 3.3% in 2016, while 
commercial / general / industrial billings 
decreased 2.5%. Wholesale power billed in 
2016 was 2,731,076 megawatt-hours 
compared to 1,917,685 in 2015, an increase 
of 813,391 megawatt-hours or 42.4%. During 
2016 hydro generation increased 735,503 
megawatt-hours compared to the previous 
year. Streamflows into Tacoma Power’s 
system were 113% of average in 2016 
compared to 97% of average in 2015.

MEGAWATT HOURS BILLED 
(in millions)
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■ Residential and Other B Comm/Gen/Ind
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Sources of Power

Tacoma Power's total resources for power supply to serve its retail and wholesale 
customers for the last two years are shown in the following graphs.

Megawatt Hours Generated/ 
Purchased - 2016

Megawatt Hours Generated/ 
Purchased - 2015

Cushman
7%

Cowlitz
27%

Nisqually Cushman 
others 4% Cowlitz

5% 26%

Utility Plant and Plant Additions

Tacoma Power has $2.0 billion invested in its utility plant assets on a cost basis. The 
largest portion is for the generation (hydroelectric) business unit followed by the 
combined distribution and transmission business unit. The following graphs show the 
allocation of plant additions and total investment in plant.

2016 UTILITY PLANT
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2016 PLANT ADDITIONS
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19%

Hydraulic
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Additions to Hydraulic plant in 2016 were $89.2 million, which included the Cowlitz Falls 
Downstream Fish Passage and the Cushman License Implementation. Distribution 
plant additions were $27.2 million, which included addition and replacement programs 
for new services, pole replacements, and road related additions and replacements. 
Transmission plant additions were $16.5 million, which included system reliability 
improvements and substation additions and replacements.

2015 UTILITY PLANT
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Additions to Hydraulic plant in 2015 were $18.2 million, which included the Cushman 
fish hatcheries, Wynoochee modernization, and a hydro exciter replacement program. 
Distribution plant additions were $17.3 million, which included addition and replacement 
programs for new services, pole replacements, and road related additions and 
replacements. Transmission plant additions were $6.1 million, which included system 
reliability improvements and substation additions and replacements.

The following table summarizes Tacoma Power’s capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, for the years ended December 31,2016 through 2014.

Capital Assets, Net o f Accumulated Depreciation
(in thousands)

16/15 15/14
Increase Increase

Net Utilitv Plant 2016 2015 2014 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Intangible Plant $ 32,030 $ 29,404 $ 29,510 $ 2,626 $ (106)
Hydraulic Plant 441,163 359,992 349,472 81,171 10,520
Transmission Facilities 125,357 118,765 122,213 6,592 (3,448)
Distribution Facilities 290,766 284,826 288,242 5,940 (3,416)
General Plant 77,081 78,190 81,443 (1,109) (3,253)
Telecommunications Plant 40,600 43,682 53,216 (3,082) (9,534)
Construction Work in Progress 26,412 87,952 54,789 (61,540) 33,163
Total Net Utility Plant $ 1,033,409 $ 1,002,811 $ 978,885 $ 30,598 $ 23,926

Additional information on Tacoma Power’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the 
financial statements and also in the supplementary Statistical Data.

Debt Administration
At December 31, 2016 Tacoma Power had outstanding revenue bonds of $371.1 
million, a decrease of $14.7 million compared to 2015. No new revenue bonds were 
issued in 2016. On March 10, 2016 and August 16, 2016 Tacoma Power took draws of 
$15 million respectively on the line of credit agreement with Wells Fargo bringing the 
total drawn to $80.3 million. No draws have been taken on the 3-year line of credit 
agreement with Key Bank.

At December 31, 2015 Tacoma Power had outstanding revenue bonds of $385.8 
million, a decrease of $154.3 million compared to 2014. In July 2015, Tacoma Power 
called $122.1 million of Series 2005 B Electric System Revenue Bonds. No new 
revenue bonds were issued in 2015. On May 15, 2015 Tacoma Power entered into a 
3-year line of credit agreement with Wells Fargo in the amount of $100 million, of which 
draws were taken in the amount of $50.3 million.
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Also, on May 1,2015 Tacoma Power entered into a 3-year line of credit agreement with 
Key Bank in the amount of $50 million, of which no draws were taken.

All bonds are rated Aa3 by Moody’s Investors Service, AA by Standard and Poor’s and 
AA- by Fitch, Inc.

Additional information on Tacoma Power’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 of the 
financial statements.

Debt Service Coverage

Tacoma Power is required by its bond covenants to maintain a debt service coverage 
ratio of 1.25. In 2016, principal and interest were covered 2.94 times compared to 2.54 
times in 2015 and 2.26 times in 2014.

Summary

The management of the Finance Department of the City of Tacoma is responsible for 
preparing the accompanying financial statements and for their integrity. We prepared 
the financial statements according to GAAP in the United States of America, and they 
fairly portray Tacoma Power's financial position and operating results. The Notes to 
Financial Statements are an integral part of the basic financial statements and provide 
additional financial information.

The financial statements have been audited by Moss Adams LLP. We have made 
available to them all pertinent information necessary to complete the audit.

Management considers and takes appropriate action on audit recommendations. 
Management has established and maintains a system of controls which includes 
organizational, administrative and accounting processes. These controls provide 
reasonable assurance that records and reports are complete and reliable, that assets 
are used appropriately and that business transactions are carriedjout.as authorized.

William A. Gaines 
Director of Utilities/CEO Director
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

UTILITY PLANT
In Service, at Original Cost ....................
Less - Accumulated Depreciation .................

Total .........................................
Construction Work in Progress ...................

Net Utility Plant ............................

NON-UTILITY PROPERTY .............................

SPECIAL FUNDS
Construction Funds ..............................
Debt Service Funds ..............................
Special Bond Reserve Funds ......................
Wynoochee Reserve Funds .........................

Total Special Funds ..........................

CURRENT ASSETS
Operating Funds Cash and Equity in

Pooled Investments ............................
Accounts Receivable .............................
(Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of 
$2,174,162 in 2016 and $1,080,447 in 2015)

Accrued Unbilled Revenue ........................
Materials and Supplies ..........................
Interfund Receivables ...........................
Prepayments and Other ...........................

Total Current Assets .........................

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory Asset - Conservation .................
(Net of Amortization of $25,121,809 in 2016 
and $18,629,468 in 2015)

Net Pension Asset ...............................
Conservation Loans Receivable ...................

Total Other Assets ...........................

Total Assets .................................

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow for Pensions....................
Unamortized Loss on Refunding Bonds ............

Total Deferred Outflows ......................

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS............. . .

DECEMBER 31,
2016 2015

$2,004,204,782 
(997,207,625)

$1,861,142,589
(946,283,353)

1,006,997,157 
26,411,907

914,859,236 
87,951,638

1,033,409,064 1,002,810,874

182,051 182,051

13,387,867 
22,180,111 
4,981,885 
2,557,943

41,412,285 
24,549,803 
4,984,302 
2,534,915

43,107,806 73,481,305

214,474,287
30,021,427

193,804,373 
30,667,987

28,587,295 
7,468,481 
2,226,220 
6,384,609

29,427,771 
6,318,431 
1,484,313 
5,757,216

289,162,319 267,460,091

50,071,005 

2,542,470

46,293,923 
3,823,476 
1,423,037

52,613,475 51,540,436

1,418,474,715 1,395,474,757

39,469,454 9,077,586 
1,899,931

39,469,454 10,977,517

$1,457,944,169 $1,406,452,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DECEMBER 31,
NET POSITION, LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets ..................
Restricted for:

Wynoochee Reserve Funds .........................
Debt Service Funds ..............................
Net Pension Asset ...............................

Unrestricted ............ ..........................
Total Net Position .............................

LONG-TERM DEBT
Revenue Bonds .....................................
Revolving Line of Credit ..........................

Total Long-Term Debt ...........................

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt .................
Taxes and Other Payables ..........................
Purchased Power Payable ...........................
Salaries, Wages and Compensated Absences Payable ..
Interest Payable ..................................
Customers' Deposits ...............................
Interfund Payables ................................

Total Current Liabilities ......................

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long Term Accrued Compensated Absences ...........
Net Pension Liability .............................
Other Long Term Liabilities .......................

Total Long Term Liabilities ....................

Total Liabilities ..............................

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Inflow for Pensions ......................
Rate Stabilization ................................

Total Deferred Inflows .........................

TOTAL NET POSITION,LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS.

2016 2015

$581, 629, 142

2, 557 , 943
12, 667, 207

225, 141 , 401
821, 995, 693

377, 351 , 726

C
O o 250 , 000

457, 601, 726

12, 730 , 000
27, 457 , 682

C
M

t—1 639, 142
2, 912, 713
9, 512 , 905
2, 772, 395
2, 140 , 909

70, 165 , 746

9, 681, 941
34, 177 , 293
14, 033 , 787
57, 893 , 021

585, 660, 493

2, 287, 983

O
h.

G
O 000, 000

50, 287, 983

$ 1 , 4 5 7 , 944, 169

$ 5 9 4 , 6 2 6 , 3 1 3

2 , 5 3 4 , 9 1 5  
1 4 , 6 6 9 , 1 7 3  

3 , 8 2 3 , 4 7 6  
2 1 0 , 2 7 9 , 4 2 0  
8 2 5 , 9 3 3 , 2 9 7

3 9 1 . 6 7 8 . 1 3 0  
5 0 , 2 5 0 , 0 0 0

4 4 1 . 9 2 8 . 1 3 0

1 4 , 7 3 5 , 0 0 0  
2 0 , 3 5 6 , 7 6 8  
1 2 , 0 1 3 , 4 7 8  

2 , 4 8 7 , 4 1 9  
9 , 8 8 0 , 6 3 0  
3 , 1 0 8 , 8 0 8  
1 , 3 2 4 , 4 4 1  

6 3 , 9 0 6 , 5 4 4

9 , 5 2 2 , 6 5 0

1 3 , 1 2 5 , 2 6 4  
2 2 , 6 4 7 , 9 1 4

5 2 8 , 4 8 2 , 5 8 8

4 , 0 3 6 , 3 8 9  
4 8 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0  
5 2 , 0 3 6 , 3 8 9

$ 1 , 4 0 6 , 4 5 2 , 2 7 4
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2016 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Electric Energy ........................  $374,249,290 $366,263,055
Other Operating Revenue .........................  17,690,192 17,106,442
Click! Network Operating Revenue ................  26,674,906 27,256,718

Total Operating Revenue ........................  418,614,388 410,626,215
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations

Purchased and Interchanged Power .............. 126,835,928 126,315,151
Generation .......   19,270,201 14,197,116
Transmission ...................................  28,075,318 21,928,763
Distribution ...................................  20,477,257 10,163,887
Other ........................................... 18,677,827 15,025,954

Maintenance ......................................  32,342,896 27,705,373
Telecommunications Expense ......................  26,059,166 25,304,001
Administrative and General ......................  41,051,795 58,560,459
Depreciation .....................................  55,702,297 57,381,578
Taxes ............................................. 19,727,313 19,993,833

Total Operating Expenses ....................  388,219,998 376,576,115
Net Operating Income ............................. 30,394,390 34,050,100

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income .................................  2,405,144 1,796,071
Contribution to Family Need ....................  (480,000) (480,000)
Other ................................................ 1,555,659 (1,923,329)
Interest on Long-Term Debt (Net of AFUDC)...........  (15,893,207) (19,225,735)
Loss on Defeasance or Refunding of Debt and
Amortization of Debt Premium ..................  (303,527) (202,938)

Total Non-Operating Expenses.................  (12,715, 931) (20, 035, 931)
Net Income Before Capital Contributions
and Transfers .......................................  17,678,459 14,014,169

Capital Contributions
Cash .................. :.........................  4,741,136 5, 183,295
Donated Fixed Assets .......    421,334 524,713

BABs and CREBs Interest Subsidies ................  3,683,746 3,675,836
Transfers

City of Tacoma Gross Earnings Tax ..................  (30,460,098) (25,481,823)
Transfers to/(from) Other Funds ................  (2,181) 512,401

CHANGE IN NET POSITION ...........................  (3,937,604) (1,571,409)
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF Y E A R ........... 825, 933,297 822,803, 061

ACCUMULATED ADJUSTMENT FOR CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ........................  - 4,701,645

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED ....  825,933,297 827,504,706

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR .................  $821, 995, 693 $825, 933,297

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash from Customers ..............................
Cash Paid to Suppliers ..........................
Cash Paid to Employees ..........................
Taxes Paid .......................................
Conservation Loans ...............................

Net Cash from Operating Activities ............

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer Out for Gross Earnings Tax .............
Transfer to/from Other Funds ....................
Transfer to Family Need Fund ....................
Net Cash from Non-Capital Financing Activities..

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Capital Expenditures .............................
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt ........
Debt Issuance Costs ..............................
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt ............
Payments for Early Extinguishment of Debt ........
Interest Paid . ...................................
BABs and CREBs Interest Subsidies ...............
Contributions in Aid of Construction ............
Other Long-Term Liabilities .....................

Net Cash from Capital and Related
Financing Activities ........................

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received ................................
Other Non-Op Revenues and Deductions ............

Net Cash from Investing Activities ............

Net Change in Cash and
Equity in Pooled Investments ....................

Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments at January 1.. 
Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments at December 31

YEAR TO DATE
Dece'mber 31, December 31,

2016 2015

$ 420,101,423 $ 414,491,290
(193,431,153) (206,195,837)
(111,575,956) (106,153,040)
(19,155,309) (19,876,260)
(1,119,433) 454,432
94,819,572 82,720,585

(30,460,098) (25,481,823)
(2,181) 512,401

(480,000) (480,000)
(30,942,279) (25,449,422)

(82,126,418) (77,374,831)
30,000,000 50,250,000

- (114,250)
(14,735,000) (32,115,000)

- (122,135,000)
(20,013,668) (26,065,944)
3,683,746 3,675,836
4,741,136 5,183,295

908,523 763,091

(77,541,681) (197,932,803)

2,405,144 1,796,071
1,555,659 2,081,901

3,960,803 3,877,972

(9,703,585) (136,783,668)
267,285,678 404,069,346
$257,582,093 $267,285,678

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

December 31, 
2016

December 31, 
2015

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Net Operating Income .....................

Adjustments to reconcile net operating income 
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation ....................................
Amortization of Regulatory Assets ..............
Pension (Credits) Expenses .....................

Cash provided from changes in operating 
assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable and Accrued Unbilled Revenue.
Conservation Loans Receivable ..................
Interfund Receivables ..........................
Materials and Supplies, and Other ..............
Taxes and Other Payables .......................
Purchased Power Payable ........................
Salaries, Wages and Compensated Absences Payable.
Long Term Accrued Compensated Absences .........
Customers' Deposits ............................
Regulatory Asset - Conservation ................
Interfund Payables .............................

Total Adjustments ...........................

Net Cash from
Operating Activities .............................

Reconciliation of Cash and Equity in Pooled 
Investments to Balance Sheet:
Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments
in Special Funds .......................

Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments
in Operating Funds .....................

Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments 
at December 31 .........................

$30,394,390 $34,050,100

55,702,297 57,381,578
6,492,341 5,566,247
5,860,495 (4,163,028)

1,487,036 3,865,072
(1,119,433) 454,432

(741,907) 1,025,123
(1,777,443) (1,322,513)
7,100,914 (871,453)

625,664 453,294
425,294 (3,120,542)
159,291 97,628
(336,413) 211,540

(10,269,422) (9,260,924)
816,468 (1,645,969)

64,425,182 48,670,485

$94,819,572 $82,720,585

$43,107,806 $73,481,305

214,474,287 193,804,373

$257,582,093 $267,285,678
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CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

TACOMA POWER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 OPERATIONS

OPERATIONS OF TACOMA POWER - The Light Division, doing business as Tacoma Power 
(Tacoma Power or the Division), is a division of the City of Tacoma, Washington (the City), 
Department of Public Utilities (the Department) and is included as an enterprise fund in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City. The Department consists of 
Tacoma Power, Tacoma Water and Tacoma Rail and is governed by a five-member Public 
Utility Board (the Board) appointed by the City Council. Certain matters relating to utility 
operations, such as system expansion, issuance of bonds and setting of utility rates and 
charges, are initiated and executed by the Board, but also require formal City Council approval. 
Tacoma Power owns and operates the City's electrical generation and distribution facilities and 
telecommunication infrastructure. Tacoma Power serves approximately of 176,784 retail 
customers and has 838 employees. Tacoma Power is organized into six business units: 
Generation, Power Management, Transmission and Distribution, Rates, Planning and Analysis, 
Click! Network, and Utility Technology Services.

GENERATION operates four hydroelectric generating projects (Cowlitz, Cushman, Nisqually 
and Wynoochee) and the associated recreational facilities, fish hatcheries and other project 
lands.

POWER MANAGEMENT manages the power supply portfolio, markets bulk and ancillary 
power supply services, schedules and dispatches division-owned generation and contract 
power supplies and performs power trading and risk management activities. Revenues and the 
cost of electric power purchases vary from year to year depending on the electric wholesale 
power market, which is affected by several factors including the availability of water for 
hydroelectric generation, marginal fuel prices and the demand for power in other areas of the 
country.

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION plans, constructs, operates and maintains the 
transmission and distribution systems including substations, the underground network system, 
supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) systems, revenue metering facilities and all 
overhead transmission and distribution systems. Electricity use by retail customers varies from 
year to year primarily because of weather conditions, customer growth, the economy in 
Tacoma Power’s service area, conservation efforts, appliance efficiency and other technology.

RATES, PLANNING AND ANALYSIS plans for and manages the retail rate process, financial 
planning, analysis and modeling, budget strategies, the capital program and risk management.

CLICK! NETWORK plans, constructs, operates and maintains a hybrid fiber coaxial (HFC) 
telecommunications network that supports the operation of Tacoma Power's electrical 
transmission and distribution system, provides retail cable TV and wholesale high-speed 
Internet services to residential and business customers, and data transport services to retail 
customers.

UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES (UTS) maintains communication networks, operational 
and informational technology systems, and related equipment and infrastructure to optimize 
utility operations and improve reliability and service quality. This includes a Project 
Management Office that establishes and leads Tacoma Public Utilities Information Systems 
project governance process and implements project portfolio management tools. UTS is 
responsible for all matters related to Tacoma Power’s compliance with North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation (NERC) Reliability Standards, maintains overall responsibility for the 
NERC Reliability Standards and manages Tacoma Power’s Internal Reliability and Compliance 
Project.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PRESENTATION - The financial statements of the Division 
are prepared under the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) applicable to governmental entities that use proprietary fund accounting. The financial 
statements use a flow of economic resources measurement focus to determine financial 
position and the change in financial position. The accounting principles used are similar to 
those applicable to businesses in the private sector and are maintained on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and costs and expenses are recognized 
when incurred.

The Division follows the provisions set forth in regulatory accounting guidance. In general, 
regulatory accounting permits an entity with cost-based rates to defer certain costs or income 
that would otherwise be recognized when incurred to the extent that the rate-regulated entity is 
recovering or expects to recover such amounts in rates charged to its customers.

The Division accounts are maintained substantially in accordance with the uniform system of 
accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Division of Audits 
of the State Auditor's Office.

CASH, SPECIAL FUNDS AND EQUITY IN POOLED INVESTMENTS - The Division’s fund 
cash balances are a “deposit" with the City Treasurer’s Tacoma Investment Pool (TIP) for the 
purpose of maximizing interest earnings through pooled investment activities. Cash and equity 
in pooled investments in the TIP are reported at fair value and changes in unrealized gains and 
losses are recorded in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position. Interest earned on such pooled investments is allocated daily to the participating 
funds based on each fund's daily equity in the TIP.

The TIP operates like a demand deposit account in that all City departments, including the 
Division, have fund balances which are their equity in the TIP. Accordingly, balances are 
considered to be cash equivalents.

The City of Tacoma Investment Policy permits legal investments as authorized by state law 
including Certificates of Deposit with qualified public depositories (as defined in Chapter 39.58 
of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW)), obligations of the U.S. Treasury, Government 
Sponsored Agencies and Instrumentalities, bonds issued by Washington State and its Local 
Governments with an A or better rating, general obligation bonds issue by any State or Local 
Government with an A or better rating , Bankers' Acceptances, Commercial Paper, Repurchase 
and Reverse Repurchase agreements, and the Washington State Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP). Daily liquidity requirement to meet the City’s daily obligations is 
maintained by investing a portion of the City’s Investment Pool in the LGIP and in certificates of 
deposit with East West Bank and Opus Bank.

The Division’s equity in that portion of the City of Tacoma Investment Pool held in qualified 
public depositories at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is entirely covered by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Washington State Public Deposit Protection Commission 
(WSPDPC).

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, longer term investments have greater exposure to changes 
in market interest rates. The City of Tacoma investment policy allows for authorized 
investments up to 60 months to maturity. One way the City manages its exposure to interest 
rate risk is by timing cash flows from maturities so that portions of the portfolio are maturing 
over time to provide cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

■24-



Credit risk is generally the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. Repurchase agreements and commercial paper are 
protected by the FDIC insurance up to $250,000.

All deposits not covered by the FDIC are covered by the WSPDPC. The WSPDPC is a 
statutory authority established under RCW 39.58. It constitutes a fully insured or fully 
collateralized pool. The WA State Treasures LGIP is authorized by RCW 43.250. The LGIP is 
operated like a 2A7 fund and is collateralized by short-term legal investments.

SPECIAL FUNDS - In accordance with bond resolutions, agreements and laws, separate 
restricted funds have been established. These funds consist of cash and investments in pooled 
investments with restrictions externally imposed and legally enforceable, established by the 
City Council. Generally, restricted assets include bond construction, reserve and debt service 
funds and customer deposits.

RECEIVABLES AND UNBILLED REVENUES - Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed 
by private individuals and organizations for goods delivered or services rendered in the regular 
course of business operations. Receivables are shown net of allowances for doubtful 
accounts. The Division accrues an estimated amount for services that have been provided but 
not billed as of December 31st.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS - A reserve has been established for 
uncollectible accounts receivable based on historical write-off trends and knowledge of specific 
circumstances that indicate collection of an account may be unlikely. Generally accounts 
receivable are considered past due after 30 days.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - Unsettled transactions 
recorded as due to or due from other funds.

between funds at year end are

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES - Materials and supplies consist primarily of items for 
maintenance and construction of Division assets and are valued at the lower of average cost or 
fair market value.

BOND PREMIUM AND LOSS ON REFUNDING - Bond premiums are amortized over the life of 
the bonds using a straight-line basis. Losses on refunding are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the applicable bond period.

REGULATORY ASSET CONSERVATION - The Division has deferred conservation costs to 
be charged to future periods matching the time when the revenues and expenses are included 
in rates. Conservation assets represent installation of savings measures at the properties of its 
customers. The deferred balance is reduced as costs are recovered and are amortized as 
other operating expense on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION - Utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes 
both direct costs of construction or acquisition and indirect costs. The cost of maintenance and 
repairs is charged to expense as incurred, while the cost of replacements and betterments is 
capitalized. Assets are capitalized when costs exceed $5,000 and the useful life exceeds one 
year.

Depreciation is recorded using a straight-line composite method based on FERC recommended 
economic asset lives from 2 to 62 years for related operating assets placed in service at the 
beginning of the year. The original cost of property together with removal cost, less salvage, is 
charged to accumulated depreciation at such time as property is retired and removed from 
service.
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The economic lives for plant in service are as follows:
Intangible Plant 2-37 years
Hydraulic Production Plant 62 years
Transmission Plant 29 years
Distribution Plant 27 years
Regional Transmission 5-27 years
General Plant 19 years
Telecommunications Plant 5-19 years

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS -  Capitalizable costs incurred on projects which are 
not in service or ready for use are held in construction in progress. When the asset is ready for 
service, related costs are transferred to capital assets. Upon determining that a project will be 
abandoned, the related costs are charged to expense.

ASSET VALUATION - The Division periodically reviews the carrying amount of its long-lived 
assets for impairment. An asset is considered impaired when estimated future cash flows are 
less than the carrying amount of the asset. In the event the carrying amount of such asset is 
not deemed recoverable, the asset is adjusted to its estimated fair value. Fair value is 
generally determined based on discounted future cash flows.

ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION (AFUDC) - AFUDC represents 
the cost of borrowed funds used for the construction of utility plant, net of Interest earned on 
unspent construction funds. Capitalized AFUDC is shown as part of the cost of utility plant and 
as a reduction of interest income and expense.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - In accordance with GASB No. 51, “Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Intangible Assets”, land use rights such as easements and right-of-ways are 
recorded as intangible assets.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - In accordance with GASB No. 33, “Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions”, capital grants and capital contributions are recorded 
as capital contributions.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - The City has two different policies for compensated absences. 
The City's original policy allows employees to accrue vacation based on the number of years 
worked with a maximum accrual equal to the amount earned in a two-year period. These 
employees also accrue one day of sick leave per month without any ceiling on the maximum 
accrued. The City implemented a new policy in 1998 allowing employees to earn PTO 
(personal time off) without distinction between vacation and sick leave. Employees who 
worked for the City prior to the change could choose to stay with the original policy or opt to 
convert to the new policy. The amount of PTO earned is based on years of service. The 
maximum accrual for PTO is 960 hours, and upon termination, employees are entitled to 
compensation for unused PTO at 100%. Vacation pay and PTO are recorded as a liability and 
expense in the year earned.

Employees in the original policy accumulate sick leave at the rate of one day per month with no 
maximum accumulation specified. Employees receive 25% of the value at retirement or 10% 
upon termination for any other reason. In the event of death, beneficiaries receive 25% of the 
value. Sick leave pay is recorded as a liability and an expense in the year earned.

The accrued liability is computed at 100% vacation and PTO while sick leave is accrued at 
10%, which is considered the amount vested or 25% if the employee meets retirement criteria. 
Based on historical information, 10% of compensated absences are considered shortterm.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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RATE STABILIZATION ACCOUNT - The Division has established a rate stabilization account 
to reduce significant year-to-year variations in rates. Amounts deposited into the account are 
excluded from the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position in accordance 
with regulated operations. Revenue will be recognized in subsequent periods when it is 
withdrawn in accordance with rate decisions.

OPERATING REVENUE - Service rates are authorized by the Tacoma City Council. 
Revenues are recognized as earned and include an estimate of revenue earned but not billed 
to customers as of year-end. Utility revenues are derived primarily from the sale and 
transmission of electricity. Utility revenue from power sales and power transmission is 
recognized when power is delivered to and received by the customer.

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES -  These are items that do not qualify as 
operating defined above.

TAXES -  The City charges the Division a Gross Earnings Tax at the rate of 7.5% on electrical 
revenues and broadband revenues and 8.0% on cable television revenues. On Tacoma cable 
television revenues only, the City also charges the Division a franchise fee of 5.0% and a 
Public, Educational and Government access television (P.E.G.) fee of 1.0%. In addition, the 
Division pays a 3.8734% public utility tax to the State on a certain portion of revenues identified 
as utility revenues. The Division also pays business and occupation tax to the State at the rate 
of 1.5% on certain other non-utility revenues including cable television revenues, as well as 
0.484% for Wholesaling and Broadcasting and 0.471% for Retailing. The Division is exempt 
from payment of federal income tax.

NET POSITION -  The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources. 
The difference between assets and liabilities is net position. There are three components of net 
position: net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, less accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, loans or other borrowings, less outstanding 
construction funds, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of 
those assets.

Net position components are restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either 
(1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position components are those that are not “net investment in capital assets” or 
“restricted”.

ARBITRAGE REBATE REQUIREMENT -  The Division is subject to the Internal Revenue 
Code (“IRC”), Section 148(f), related to its tax-exempt revenue bonds. The IRC requires that 
earnings on gross proceeds of any revenue bonds that are in excess of the amount prescribed 
will be surrendered to the Internal Revenue Service. As such, the Division would record such a 
rebate as a liability. The Division had no liability in the current or prior year.

SHARED SERVICES -  The Division receives certain services from other departments and 
agencies of the City, including those normally considered to be general and administrative. 
The Division is charged for services received from other City departments and agencies.

USE OF ESTIMATES - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Division 
used estimates in determining reported unbilled revenues, allowance for doubtful accounts, 
accrued compensated absences, depreciation. Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB), 
pension, self-insurance liabilities and other contingencies. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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FAMILY NEED - The Family Need program is Tacoma Power’s low income bill assistance 
program. Contributions are received from customers, employees and Tacoma Power. The 
Family Need program is administered by the Metropolitan Development Council and Pierce 
County Community Services which identify and certify the eligibility of Tacoma Power 
customers for the program.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - The Division is subject to certain business 
risks that could have a material impact on future operations and financial performance.

These risks include, but are not limited to, water conditions, weather and natural disaster- 
related disruptions, collective bargaining labor disputes, fish and other endangered species act 
issues, Environmental Protection Agency regulations, federal government regulations or orders 
concerning the operation, maintenance and/or licensing of facilities.

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The City measures and records its investments within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles.

The Hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset, 
where fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:

• Level 1 - Level 1 inputs are quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the government can access at the measurement data.
Observable markets include exchange markets, dealer markets, brokered markets and 
principal-to-principal markets.

• Level 2 - Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs are 
sourced from pricing vendors using models that are market-based and corroborated by 
observable market data including; quoted prices; nominal yield spreads; benchmark 
yield curves; and other corroborated inputs.

• Level 3 - Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability and should 
only be used when relevant Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are unavailable.

The fair value evaluations are provided by Interactive Data. Interactive Data utilizes 
evaluated pricing models that vary by asset class and Incorporate available trade, bid and 
other market information and for structured securities, cash flow and, when available, loan 
performance data. Because many fixed income securities do not trade on a daily basis. 
Interactive Data’s evaluated pricing applications apply available information as applicable 
through processes such as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector 
groupings, and matrix pricing, to prepare evaluations. In addition. Interactive Data uses 
model processes, such as the Option Adjusted Spread model to assess interest rate impact 
and development payment scenarios. Their models and processes take Into account 
market convention. For each asset class, a team of evaluators gathers information from 
market sources and integrates relevant credit information, perceived market movements 
and sector news into the evaluated pricing applications and models.

Source: Interactive Data “Summary of Inputs by Asset Class Fixed Income Evaluations.
Fair Value Information Service and Valuations of Certain Other Instruments” dated January 
2016.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments including short-term 
investment funds. Cash and cash equivalents are valued at cost and, therefore, excluded 
from the fair value schedule.

Data regarding the City’s investments, vaiued and categorized according to the above 
outiined ievels, is below:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As of
Debt Securities 12/31/2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Treasury Securities $ 146,824,628 $ - $ 146,824,628 $ -
U.S. Agency Securities 544,579,831 - 544,579,831 -

Municipal Bonds 61,450,051 - 61,450,051 -

Total $ 752,854,510 $ - $ 752,854,510 $ -

As of
Debt Securities 12/31/2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Treasury Securities $ 108,647,159 $ - $ 108,647,159 $ -
U.S. Agency Securities 541,730,184 - 541,730,184 -

Municipal Bonds 119,200,942 - 119,200,942 -

Total $ 769,578,285 $ - $ 769,578,285 $ -

Tacoma Power’s share of the City investments shown in the tabie above is 33.84% and 33.19% for 
2016 and 2015.

NOTE 4 UTILITY PLANT - A summary of the balances and changes in utility plant for 2016 and 2015 
follows:

Balance Balance

December 31, Transfers & December 31,

2015 Additions Retirements Adjustm ents 2016

Intangible Plant $ 41,682,352 $ 3,797,958 $ (48,212) $ $ 45,432,098

Hydraulic Production

Plant 554,637,653 89,259,998 - - 643,897,651
Transmission Plant 219,918,041 9,721,911 (259,570) - 229,380,382

Distribution Plant 618,397,975 27,229,473 (3,189,896) - 642,437,552

Regional Transmission 18,147,561 6,776,297 - - 24,923,858
General Plant 200,160,423 5,391,442 - - 205,551,865

Telecommunications

Plant 208,198,584 4,382,792 - - 212,581,376
Total Utility Plant in

Service 1,861,142,589 146,559,871 (3,497,678) - 2,004,204,782
Less Accumulated

Depreciation 946,283,353 55,702,297 (3,449,466) (1,328,559) 997,207,625

914,859,236 90,857,574 (48,212) 1,328,559 1,006,997,157
Construction Work In

Progress 87,951,638 85,011,567 (146,551,298) 26,411,907
Net Utility Plant $ 1,002,810,874 $ 175,869,141 $ (48,212) $ (145,222,739) $ 1,033,409,064
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Balance Balance

Intangible Plant 

Hydraulic Production 

Plant

Transmission Plant 

Distribution Plant 

Regional Transmission 

General Plant 

Telecommunications 

Plant

Total Utility Plant in 

Service

Less Accumulated 

Depreciation

Construction Work In 

Progress 

Net Utility Plant

Decem ber 31, T ransfers & Decem ber 31,

2014 A dd itions Retirem ents A djustm ents 2015

$ 40,584,864 $ 1,287,650 $ (190,162) $ $ 41,682,352

536,424,903 18,212,750 - _ 554,637,653

215,039,287 5,495,463 (616,709) - 219,918,041

604,029,355 17,270,360 (2,901,740) - 618,397,975

17,537,662 609,899 - - 18,147,561

197,036,437 3,204,314 - (80,328) 200,160,423

207,244,967 953,617 _ _ 208,198,584

1,817,897,475 47,034,053 (3,708,611) (80,328) 1,861,142,589

893,801,525 57,381,578 (3,518,449) (1,381,301) 946,283,353

924,095,950 (10,347,525) (190,162) 1,300,973 914,859,236

54,789,325 80,107,465 _ (46,945,152) 87,951,638

$ 978,885,275 $ 69,759,940 $ (190,162) $ (45,644,179) $ 1,002,810,874

Total Utility Plant in Service includes non-depreciable assets of $75,780,466 for 2016 and $75,310,858 
for 2015.

The total amount of interest cost incurred and capitaiized is $3,752,735 for 2016 and $3,407,633 for 
2015.
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NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT -  Tacoma Power’s long-term debt is primarily for capital improvements. 
Long-term liability activity for the years ended December 31,2016 and December 31, 2015 was 
as follows:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Balance 
December 31, 

2015 Additions Reductions

Baiance 
December 31, 

2016
Due Within 
One Year

Revenue Bonds $ 385,800,000 $ $ (14,735,000) $ 371,065,000 $ 12,730,000

Plus: Unamortized

Premium 20,613,130 - (1,596,404) 19,016,726 -

Net Revenue Bonds 406,413,130 - (16,331,404) 390,081,726 12,730,000

Line of Credit 50,250,000 30,000,000 - 80,250,000 -

Total Long-Term

Debt $ 456,663,130 $ 30,000,000 $ (16,331,404) $ 470,331,726 $ 12,730,000

Balance 
December 31, 

2014 Additions Reductions

Baiance 
December 31, 

2015
Due Within 
One Year

Revenue Bonds $ 540,050,000 $ $ (154,250,000) $ 385,800,000 $ 14,735,000

Plus: Unamortized

Premium 22,645,510 - (2,032,380) 20,613,130 -

Net Revenue Bonds 562,695,510 - (156,282,380) 406,413,130 14,735,000

Line of Credit - 50,250,000 - 50,250,000 -

Total Long-Term

Debt $ 562,695,510 $ 50,250,000 $ (156,282,380) $ 456,663,130 $ 14,735,000
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Tacoma Power’s long-term debt at December 31 consists of the following payable from revenues of 
Tacoma Power:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016 2015

2005A Revenue Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 

3.5% to 4.3%, due in yearly installments o f $115,000 to 

$13,275,000 paid in full in 2016.

Original Issue: $93,480,000 130,000

201 OB Revenue Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 

5.791% to 5.966%, with a Build America Bond (BAB) 

rebate ranging from 32.45% to 32.62% of interest, due in 

yearly installments o f $27,310,000 to $31,630,000 

from 2031 to 2035.

Original Issue: $147,070,000 

Current Portion: $0

147,070,000 147,070,000

201OC Revenue Bonds, with an interest rate o f 5.641%, 

with Clean Renewal Energy Bond rebate at 67% of 

interest, due in one payment o f $24,185,000 in 2027. 

Original Issue: $24,185,000 

Current Portion: $0

24,185,000 24,185,000

2013A Refunding Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 

4.0% to 5.0%, due in yearly installments o f $10,095,000 to 

$29,165,000 through 2042.

Original Issue: $181,610,000 

Current Portion: $12,730,000

164,190,000 178,795,000

2013B Refunding Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 

3.05% to 5.0%, due in yearly installments of $3,795,000 to 

$5,155,000 from 2022 through 2030.

Original Issue: $35,620,000 

Current Portion: $0

35,620,000 35,620,000

Unamortized premium 

Current Portion

Long-term Portion of Revenue Bond Debt 

Revolving Line o f Credit 

Total Long Term Debt

371,065,000 385,800,000

19,016,726 20,613,130

(12,730,000) (14,735,000)

377,351,726 391,678,130

80,250,000 50,250,000

$ 457,601,726 $ 441,928,130
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In 2015, Tacoma Power entered into a $100 million line-of-credit agreement with Wells Fargo for working 
capital. The line matures in May 2018, and each advance will bear interest at the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (LIBOR) of 1.64344% at December 31, 2016. Each advance is secured by Revenues as 
set forth in the Note Ordinance. The balance outstanding is $80.3 million as of December 31, 2016.

Scheduled principal maturities on the bonds and interest payments are as follows:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Principal Interest
2017 $ 12,730,000 $ 18,707,560
2018 11,575,000 18,157,810
2019 10,095,000 17,698,935
2020 29,165,000 16,792,435
2021 11,970,000 15,839,060
2022-2026 20,885,000 75,475,070
2027-2031 66,230,000 66,152,269
2032-2036 130,750,000 37,344,302
2037-2041 63,355,000 9,659,100
2042 14,310,000 286,200

$ 371,065,000 $ 276,112,740

Tacoma Power’s revenue bonds are secured by the net revenue of Tacoma Power and all cash and 
investments held in the bond and construction funds. The bonds are also subject to certain financial and 
non-financial covenants. The Division was in compliance with all loan covenants at December 31,2016.

As of December 31, 2016, the following outstanding bonds were considered defeased;

Issue
1964 Light & Power Bonds
1965 Light & Power Bonds
1967 Light & Power Bonds - Series A & B
1969 Light & Power Bonds
1979 Light & Power Bonds
2005 Electric System Revenue Bonds - Series A
2005 Electric System Revenue Bonds - Series B
2007 Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds

Amount 
$ 1,235,000

3.360.000
2.825.000
2.260.000 
5,475,000

230,000
27.460.000
14.540.000 

$ 57,385,000

These refunded bonds constitute a contingent liability of Tacoma Power only to the extent that 
cash and investments presently in the control of the refunding trustees are not sufficient to 
meet debt service requirements, and are therefore excluded from the financial statements 
because the likelihood of additional funding requirements is considered remote.

NOTE 6 PURCHASED POWER -  Tacoma Power purchased electric power and energy from BPA 
under a long-term contract that expires on September 30, 2028. The contract consists of a 
base rate per kWh and certain cost-recovery adjustment clauses can be invoked under 
particular circumstances.
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On December 1, 2008, the Board authorized the execution of a twenty-year Slice/Block Power 
Sales and Creditworthiness Agreement with BPA. The agreement allows Tacoma Power to 
purchase a Slice/Block power product from BPA which began October 1, 2011 and continues 
through September 30, 2028. In broad terms, the agreement requires Tacoma Power to 
purchase a firm amount (Block) and proportionate share (Slice) of power based on a number of 
criteria and calculations. This is a take or pay arrangement which allows Tacoma Power to 
remarket excess capacity. The related Creditworthiness Agreement provides for BPA to 
conduct a credit review of Tacoma Power. To determine if a letter of credit or cash deposit 
would be required, BPA completed this review and determined that as long as Tacoma Power’s 
credit rating remains above BBB-, no Letter of Credit or cash deposit will be required.

The power received under this contract averaged approximately 433,427 and 419,422 kilowatts 
per hour for 2016 and 2015, respectively. Charges for the BPA purchased power were 
approximately $114 million and $112 million for 2016 and 2015, respectively, and are based on 
the total amount of energy delivered and the monthly peak power demand.

Tacoma Power entered into an Energy Conservation Agreement (EGA) with BPA in 2009. 
Under this agreement, funds are collected in wholesale power rates to support regional energy 
efficiency programs. As utilities implement conservation programs and activities, BPA 
reimburses these funds per program specifications. For the years 2016 and 2015, Tacoma 
Power recovered $7,076,890 and $763,356 respectively through the ECA.

Under fixed contracts with other power suppliers, Tacoma Power has agreed to purchase 
portions of the output of certain generating facilities. Although Tacoma Power has no 
investment in such facilities, these contracts require Tacoma Power to pay minimum amounts 
(which are based at least in part on the debt service requirements of the supplier) whether or 
not the facility is operating. The cost of power obtained under the contracts, including 
payments made when a facility is not operating, is included in operations expense in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Information for the year ended December 31, 2016 pertaining to these contracts is 
summarized as follows:

Grand Coulee
Tacoma Power's Current Project Hydro
_____ Share of_______ Authority

Energy Gutput................................. 253,625 mWh
Megawatt Capacity........................
Gperating Costs................................... $ 2,227,828
Incentive Payments ............................. $ 3,538,658
R & R Repayment................................ $ 399,836
Contract Expiration Date ...............  5/9/2024

Grant County 
PUD - Priest 

Rapids Project 
26,975 mWh 

5 mW 
$80,802

4/1/2052

Cn April 17, 2008, the FERC issued a new license to the Public Utility District No. 2 of Grant 
County (Grant PUD) for the continued operation of the Priest Rapids Hydroelectric Project 
which consists of the Priest Rapids Development and the Wanapum Development. The 
original license for the Priest Rapids Project was issued on November 4, 1955 and expired on 
Gctober 31, 2005. Since then, the Project had operated under annual licenses. The renewed 
license issued by FERC allows Grant PUD a 44-year license for the continued operation of the 
Project. The term of Tacoma Power’s contract with Grant PUD is for the term of the FERC 
license. Tacoma Power’s purchase quantity and costs are tied to the actual costs of the 
Project.

Total expenses under the above contracts for the years 2016 and 2015 were $6,412,705 and 
$6,395,201, respectively, for Grand Coulee Project Hydro Authority, however, proceeds under 
the contract exceeded expenses in 2016 and 2015 for Grant County PUD - Priest Rapids 
resulting in a gain of $80,802 and $659,731, respectively.
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In addition, Tacoma Power is required to pay its proportionate share of the variable operating 
expenses of these projects.

Other Power Transactions - Other power transactions include purchases under short-term 
agreements and interchanges of secondary power between utilities in response to seasonal 
resource and demand variations. Fluctuations in annual precipitation levels and other weather 
conditions materially affect the energy output from Tacoma Power’s hydroelectric facilities. 
Accordingly, the net interchange of secondary power in and out may vary significantly from 
year to year. Tacoma Power’s trading activities are limited to purchasing power to meet native 
loads, optimizing the value of Tacoma Power’s power supply portfolio and selling energy 
during times of surplus.

Tacoma Power records applicable energy contracts using accrual accounting and recognizes 
the revenue or expense at the time of contract performance, settlement or termination. As of 
December 31, 2016 Tacoma Power had forward sales contracts totaling $28.7 million dollars 
extending out to September 2018 with a fair market value of $28.7 million. These contracts 
meet the normal purchase normal sales scope exception for derivative reporting under GASB 
53.

Tacoma Power’s net power purchases or sales and interchanged activities are reflected in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

A breakdown of the net interchange in kilowatt-hours is as follows:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Interchange Summary

Secondary Sales 
Portfolio Purchases 
Miscellaneous Exchanges 
Other
Net Interchange

2016 
(in kWh)

(2,731,083,000)
263,105,000

(1,533,000)
26.228.000

(2.443.283.0001

2015 
(in kWh)

(1,917,685,000)
293,059,000

(1,441,000)
54.924.000

(1.571.144.0001

NOTE 7 FLEET SERVICES FUND - The Department of Public Utilities has established a Fleet 
Services Fund to perform scheduled maintenance, repair and replacement of Department 
vehicles and related equipment.

Tacoma Power pays the Fleet Services Fund for its use of the vehicles and equipment to cover 
fleet operating expenses. Payments made by Tacoma Power in 2016 and 2015 were 
$6,733,591 and $7,212,082, respectively.

Fleet Services’ management makes an annual assessment of the capital replacement reserve 
balance for appropriate funding levels. It is the Fund's policy to maintain the Fund’s maximum 
balance at a level that will provide adequate purchasing power for a three-year cycle. The 
solvency of the Replacement Fund allowed Fleet Services to return a portion of interest earned 
on fund investments for the year to their customers. In 2016 and 2015, Fleet Services returned 
75% of the interest earned to Tacoma Power’s replacement fund. The amount of the refund 
was $106,192 and $107,916 for 2016 and 2015, respectively, which was used to offset the 
corresponding year’s fleet expenses.

NOTE 8 SELF-INSURANCE FUND - The Department of Public Utilities maintains a self-insurance 
program and insurance policies. The Department has established a Self-Insurance Fund to 
insure Tacoma Power and other divisions within the Department for certain losses arising from 
personal and property damage claims by third parties. The major risks to Tacoma Power are 
flooding, wind damage, chemical spills and earthquakes. Mitigating controls and emergency 
and business resumption plans are in place. To the extent damage or claims exceed insured 
values, rates may be impacted.
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Tacoma Power is required to make payments to the Self-Insurance Fund to cover claims 
incurred by Tacoma Power and administrative expenses of the Fund. Tacoma Power’s 
premium payments totaled $900,000 in both 2016 and 2015 respectively. Assets in the Self- 
Insurance Fund total $7.6 million which exceeds accrued and incurred but not reported 
liabilities. Equity in the Self-Insurance Fund is transferred to the appropriate operating divisions 
in accordance with GASB 10. Management believes Tacoma Power’s investment in the Self- 
Insurance Fund is more than adequate to settle all its known or estimated claims.

The City purchased a $15 million Fiduciary Liability Policy with a $100,000 deductible that 
provides for wrongful acts arising out of the administration of the City’s employee benefit 
programs and a Crime policy with a $1 million limit and $75,000 deductible for employee 
dishonesty and for fraudulent or dishonest act by employees against the City for loss of money, 
securities and property.

Other insurance policies presently in effect include coverage on the Department’s buildings and 
fleet vehicles as well as general liability and public official’s liability. The current insurance 
policies covering the buildings and fleet vehicles have deductibles or self-insured retentions of 
$250,000 for buildings and property within buildings and $10,000 per vehicle. There is a self- 
insured retention of $1.5 million for general liability. The public official liability policy has a 
$200,000 deductible. The Department’s total liability limit is $60 million any one occurrence 
and $60 million annual aggregate.

The general government general liability and public official liability policies provide $20 million 
of excess coverage with a $3 million retention. The City has a policy to cover extraordinary 
worker’s compensation claims with a statutory limit and a self-insured retention of $1 million per 
occurrence and an additional $250,000 for each 12 month policy period.

NOTE 9 TACOMA EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND (TERS)

The Tacoma Employees’ Retirement System (TERS or System), a pension trust fund of the 
City of Tacoma, issues a publicly available CAFR that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information may be obtained by writing to;

Tacoma Employee’s Retirement System 
3628 South 35th Street 
Tacoma, WA 98409

Or the TERS CAFR may be downloaded from the TERS website at 
www.cityoftacoma.org/retirement.

Administration o f The System - The "Tacoma Employees' Retirement System" is a cost­
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all employees 
of the City of Tacoma, with the exception of police officers, firefighters, and Tacoma Rail 
employees who are covered by state and federal retirement plans. Employees of the Tacoma- 
Pierce County Health Department, as well as, certain employees of the Pierce Transit and Law 
Enforcement Support Agency who established membership in the System when these 
agencies were still City of Tacoma departments, are also members. The Board of 
Administration of the Tacoma Employees’ Retirement System administers the plan and derives 
its authority in accordance with Chapter 41.28 RCW and Chapter 1.30 of the Tacoma City 
Code.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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At the direction of the City Council, the System is administered by the Board of Administration 
(the Board) consisting of nine regular members and one alternate member. The members of 
the Board are: the Mayor, who serves as Chair; the Director of Finance; the City Manager (or 
designee); the Public Utilities Director (or designee); three elected employee representatives; 
one elected retired representative; and one City resident (not employed by the City) elected by 
the other eight members. The nine Board members appoint a TERS member, either active or 
retired, as an alternate Board member. The Board is required by the Tacoma Municipal Code 
to make annual reports to the City Council on the financial condition of the System. The Board, 
subject to City Council approval, appoints the Director who is responsible for managing the 
daily operations of the System.

The breakdown of membership as of December 31,2015 is as follows:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Terminated vested and other terminated participants 
Active members:

City of Tacoma 
South Sound 911 
Pierce Transit
Tacoma-Pierce County Health Department 

Total active members 
Total membership

2,234
644

2,654
4
7

262
2,927
5,805

Membership - Substantially all employees of the City of Tacoma are members of the System, 
with the exception of police officers, firefighter, and Tacoma Rail employees, who are covered 
by state or federal retirement plans. Other members include employees of the Tacoma-Pierce 
County Health Department, and certain employees of the Pierce Transit and the South Sound 
911 (formerly known as Law Enforcement Support Agency) who established membership in the 
System when these agencies were still City of Tacoma departments.

Benefits - There are two formulas to calculate the retirement benefits. The benefit paid will be 
issued on the formula which provides the higher benefit. The most commonly applied formula, 
“service retirement”, is a product of the member’s average monthly salary for the highest, 
consecutive 24-month period, the number of years of membership credit, and a percentage 
factor (2% maximum) that is based on the member’s age and years of service. The other 
formula is an annuity based on member contributions. There are several options available for 
the retiree to provide for their beneficiaries. The System also provides death, disability and 
deferred retirement. Additionally, the System provides cost of living adjustment (COLA) 
increases up to 2,125% as of July 1st of each year; the actual COLA granted is dependent on 
the Consumer Price Index (Seattle Area -  all items) over the preceding calendar year.

Any active member who has not retired, and has five or more years of service as a member 
may purchase up to five additional years of service at the time of retirement. Total service 
including service purchased cannot exceed 30 years.

The System participates in the portability of public retirement benefits in Washington State 
public retirement. As provided under Chapter 4154 of the RCW, this allows a member to use 
all years of service with qualified Washington systems to determine retirement eligibility and 
percentage factor for benefits under the System.
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Contributions - The participating employers are responsible for funding the System at a level 
sufficient to pay obligations and ensure the actuarial and financial soundness of the System. 
Contribution rates for the employer and the employee are recommended by the Board of 
Administration and final approval rests with the Tacoma City Council.

Currently, the required contribution rate for employees is 9.20% of their regular gross pay; the 
employer contributes 10.80%, for a combined total of 20.00% which is sufficient to amortize the 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) of the System if future experience follows all 
actuarial assumptions. Changes to the contribution rate are subject to Sections 1.30.340 and 
1.30.360 of the Tacoma Municipal Code.

Significant Assumptions - The following actuarial methods were used in the funding 
valuation.
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Measurement Date 
Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Asset Valuation Method 
Inflation
Salary Increases 
Investment Rate of Return 
Cost of Living Adjustment 
Retirement Age 
Turnover

Mortality

December 31,2015 
January 1, 2016 
Entry Age Normal
Funding is based on statutory contributions rate.

This amount is compared to a 30-year amortization for the 
purposes of calculating the Actuarially Determined Contribution. 
The amortization method for the ADC is as follows:

• Level percent
• Open periods
• 30 year amortization period at 01/01/2016
• 4% amortization growth rate
4 year smoothing period; Corridor - None 
3%
4% general wage increase assumption 
7.25%
2.13%
Varies by age, gender, eligibility 
Varies by age, gender, eligibility
RP-2000 mortality for healthy and disabled annuitants, with age 
adjustments

Benefit and Assumption Changes - The comparability of the data from year to year can be 
affected by changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, accounting policies, and other 
factors. Between January 1, 2015 and January 1,2016 no assumptions were changed.

Target Allocations - The long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding expected 
inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting volatility and correlation. 
The capital market assumptions are per Milliman’s (the System’s actuary) investment 
consulting practice as of December 31, 2015. The target asset allocation is based on TERS 
Investment Policy Statement dated February 2014.
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Target Arithm etic Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Investment Grade Fixed Income 15.0% 2.00%

US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 5.0% 1.41%

High Yield Bonds 9.0% 4.22%

Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 5.06%

Global Equity 41.5% 5.72%

Public Real Estate 2.0% 6.07%

Private Real Estate 2.5% 3.60%

Private Equity 10.0% 9.29%

Master Limited Partnerships 4.0% 3.98%

Timber 2.0% 3.73%

Infrastructure 2.0% 5.14%

Agriculture 2.0% 4.30%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 3.00%

Assumed Inflation - Standard Deviation 1.89%

Portfolio Arithm etic Real Mean Return 4.94%

Portfolio Median Nominal Geometric Return 7.06%

Portfolio Standard Deviation 11.84%

Long-Term Expected Rate o f Return, net of 
investment expenses 7.25%

Sensitivity Analysis - The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the System, 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the System’s net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.25%) or 1 
percentage point higher (8.25%) that the current rate

1%

Decrease

6.25%

Current 

Discount Rate 

7.25%

1%
Increase

8.25%

Net pension liability (asset) $ 105,989,573 $ 34,177,293 $ (26,296,701)

As of December 31,2015, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as follows:

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 

Changes in Employer Proportion

Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

Total

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows

o f Resources of Resources

$ (2,287,552) $

- 30,122,690

(431) 24,760

- 9,322,004

$ (2,287,983) $ 39,469,454
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The net amount of deferred inflows and outflows, other than contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date, will be recognized as pension expense in each of the next four years.

Amounts will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016 $ 6,736,673

2017 6,736,673

2018 6,736,672

2019 7,739,529

2020 (90,080)

$ 27,859,467

The proportionate share of the Power Division is 39.47% of total System’s pension liability. The 
proportionate share was based on the actual contributions for the year.

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description - The City charges some early retirees not yet eligible for Medicare a health 
premium based on the claims experience of active employees and retirees rather than based 
on the claims experience of retirees only. This difference is a benefit to the retirees, since 
health claims costs generally increase with age. GAAP requires that the portion of age- 
adjusted expected retiree health claims costs that exceed the premium charged to retirees be 
recognized as a liability for accounting purposes. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectation and 
new estimates are made about the future.

Funding Policy
not required.

The City uses pay as you go funding; contributions to a separate trust are

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Present Value of Benefits (PVB) is the 
present value of projected benefits discounted at the valuation interest rate (3.75%).

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is the portion of the present value of benefits attributed to 
past service only. The portion attributed to future employee service is excluded. For inactive 
employees, the AAL is equal to the present value of benefits. For active employees, the 
actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual is allocated as a level 
percentage of expected salary for each year of employment between entry age (defined as age 
at hire) and assumed exit (until maximum retirement age). The portion attributed to service 
between entry age and the valuation date is the actuarial accrued liability.

The Normal Cost is that portion of the City provided benefit attributable to employee service in 
the current year.

The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is the amount the City is required to report as an 
expense for the year. The ARC is equal to the Normal Cost plus an amount to amortize the 
UAAL on a closed basis of 30 years, beginning January 1, 2007. The amortization period for 
2016 is 21 years.

The ARC represents an accounting expense, but the City is not required to contribute the ARC 
to a separate trust. If the City does not set aside funds equal to the ARC (less current year 
benefit payments) each year, then the ARC (less benefit payments) will accumulate as a non- 
current liability (Net OPEB Obligation) on the statements of net position. The City has a Net 
OPEB Obligation as of December 31, 2016 as the City has not set aside funds for OPEB.
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Excise Tax For High Cost or “ Cadillac” Health Plans in 2018 and Beyond- An excise tax 
for high cost health coverage or “Cadillac” health plans was included in the Affordable Care Act 
(ACA) passed into law in March 2010. The provision levies a 40% tax on the value of health 
plan costs that exceed certain thresholds for single coverage or family coverage. The 2018 
annual thresholds are $10,200 for single coverage and $27,500 for a family plan. If, between 
2010 and 2018, the cost of health care insurance rises more than 55%, the threshold for the 
excise tax will be adjusted.

The City believes that the current provisions of ACA should be reflected in the projection of 
benefits and therefore, the value of the excise tax is included in the valuation. It is assumed 
that there will be no changes to the current law and that there will be no changes in plan design 
to help mitigate the impact of the tax.

GASB Statement No. 45 indicates that the projection of benefits should include all benefits to 
be provided to retirees in accordance with the current “substantive” plan. The substantive plan 
refers to the plan terms as understood by the employer and plan members at the time of the 
valuation. For this reason, the City believes that the current provisions of PPACA should be 
reflected in the projection of benefits and therefore, the value of the excise tax is included in 
this valuation. It is assumed that there will be no changes to the current law and that there will 
be no changes in plan design to help mitigate the impact of the tax.

Summary of Changes -  As of the January 1, 2015 valuation the total AAL was $208,814,312, 
for the City, 20% lower than expected primarily due to clarification in spouse benefits, medical 
costs, demographic experience and a change to the assumption for future medical trends.

The following table is a summary of valuation results with a comparison to the results from the 
last valuation.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

January 1, 2013 January 1, 2015

Active employees 3,335 3,404
Terminated vested employees 394 442
Retired employees & dependents 846 744
Total 4,575 4,590

Annual Benefit Payments $ 9,887,335 $ 8,963,089
Discount rate 3.75% 3.75%
Present Value of Benefits (PVB) $ 326,742,538 $ 262,184,195

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 251,839,846 $ 208,814,312
Assets $ - $ -

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabitlity (UAAL) $ 251,839,846 $ 208,814,312

Normal Cost $ 5,484,587 $ 3,832,131
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 20,058,760 $ 16,966,964
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The following table shows the total value of the benefits provided, the member paid premiums 
and the City paid benefits as of January 1,2015.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Value of Subsidy at 3.75% Interest Total Value of Member Paid City Paid
Rate Benefits Premiums Benefits
Present Value of Benefits (PVB) 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 
Normal Cost
Annual Benefit Payments

$ 420,832,932 
$ 291,228,295 
$ 9,501,758
$ 12,325,369

$ 158,648,737 
$ 82,413,983 
$ 5,669,627
$ 3,362,280

$ 262,184,195 
$ 208,814,312 
$ 3,832,131
$ 8,963,089

The following table shows the calculation of the Annual Required Contribution and Net OPEB 
Obligation for the City and for Tacoma Power as of December 31, 2016.

City Division
Determination of Annual Required Contribution: 

Normal Cost at Year-end 
Amortization of UALL 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)

Determination of NET OPEB Obligation:
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on prior year Net OPEB Obligation
Adjustments to ARC
Annual OPEB Cost
Actual benefits paid
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year

$ 3,803,090 $ 858,656
15,665,117 398,368

$ 19,468,207 $ 1,257,024

$ 19,468,207 $ 1,257,024
2,666,468 377,568

(3,983,647) (468,000)
18,151,028 1,166,592
(8,539,402) (344,092)
9,611,626 822,500

73,129,502 10,068,490
$ 82,741,128 $ 10,890,990

The Division has included the liability in the other long term liabilities on the Statement of Net 
Position.

Funded Status and Funding Progress -

The following table shows the annual OPEB costs and net OPEB obligation for three years. 
This table is based upon a 3.75% interest rate.

Annual OPEB Cost Benefits Paid Net OPEB Obligation

Year Ended 
12/31/2014 
12/31/2015 
12/31/2016

City
$ 19,319,944 
$ 15,954,387 
$ 18,151,028

Division
$ 2,084,511 
$ 1,194,337 
$ 1,166,592

City
$ 9,292,539 
$ 8,963,089 
$ 8,539,402

Division 
$ 692,894 
$ 324,146 
$ 344,092

City
$ 66,138,206 
$ 73,129,502 
$ 82,741,128

Division
$ 9,198,300 
$ 10,068,491 
$ 10,890,990
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The actuarial cost method used for determining the 
benefit obligations is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under the principles of this method, 
the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual included in the valuation 
is allocated as a level percentage of expected salary for each year of employment between 
entry age (defined as age at hire) and assumed exit (until maximum retirement age).

The portion of actuarial present value allocated to a valuation year is called the normal cost. 
The portion of this actuarial present value not provided for at a valuation date by the sum of (a) 
the actuarial value of the assets, and (b) the actuarial present value of future normal costs is 
called the UAAL. In determining the Annual Required Contribution, the UAAL is amortized as a 
level percentage of expected payrolls for non-LEOFF 1 groups. For LEOFF 1, the UAAL is 
amortized as a level dollar amount. The amortization period was 30 years in 2007 and is now 
21 years.

Actuarial Methods and Significant Actuarial Assumptions;

Valuation Date: ..................................... January 1,2015
Census Date: ........................................  January 1,2015
Actuarial Cost Method: ........................  Entry Age
Amortization Method:...........................  Combination of level percentage and level

dollar amount, see note above.
Remaining Amortization Period: ..........  21 years, closed
Demographic Assumptions:.................  Demographic assumptions regarding

retirement, disability, and turnover are based 
upon pension valuations for the various pension 
plans.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate:............
Medical Cost Trend: ....

3.75% for pay-as-you-go funding
2015 6.9%
2016 6.6%
2017 5.9%
2020 5.5%
2030 5.9%
2040 5.7%
The medical cost rate is assumed to continue 
grading downward until achieving the ultimate 
rate of 4.8% in 2071 and beyond. The first year 
trend reflects assumed increases based on 
ACA fees. These trend rates assume that, over 
time, deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums 
will be periodically increased as medical trends 
increase. The trends above do not reflect the 
increases in costs due to the excise tax.

Economic Assumptions -  Discount 
Rate (Liabilities):..............................

Demographic Assumptions:.

3.75%

Eligibility;
Disability - Five years of service are required 
for non-service connected disability.

Retirement - TERS members are eligible for 
retiree medical benefits after becoming eligible 
for service retirement pension benefits (either 
reduced or full pension benefits):
• Age 55 with 10 years of service
• Age 40 with 20 years of service
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NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Capital Improvements - The financial requirement for Tacoma Power’s 2015/2016 biennial 
Capital Improvement Program is approximately $182.7 million. At December 31, 2016, the 
remaining financial requirement was approximately $12 million. The remaining financial 
requirement for Capital Improvement Programs relating to prior biennium is approximately 
$932,445.

General Legal Matters - Tacoma Power Division has received several other miscellaneous 
claims that either do not allege significant amounts or that the Legal Department has 
determined do not pose a risk to liability to the utilities.

TACOMA POWER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year Ended December 31st,
2016 2015

Employer's proportion of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage 39.47% 39.80%

Employer's proportion share of net 
pension liability (asset) $34,177,293 ($3,823,476)

Employer's covered payroll $20,220,795 $93,063,240

Employer's proportionate share of net 
pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered employee 
payroll 169.02% ^.11%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage the total pension liability 93.94% 100.71%

Schedule of Contributions Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ended December 31st,
2016 2015

Contractually required employer 
contribution $9,322,005 $9,053,341

Contributions in relation to the 
contracturally required employer 
contribution (9,322,005) (9,053,341)

Employer contribution deficiency 
(excess)

Employer's covered employee payroll $91,704,363 $93,063,240

Employer contribution as a 
percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 10.17% 9.73%

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year o f implementation; therefore, only two years are shown.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 2016

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

TACOMA POWER
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW 

2015 2014 2013
ASSETS

Utility Plant - Net ........... $1,033,409,064 $1,002,810,874 $978,885,275 $959,885,269
Special and Other Assets ..... 95,903,332 125,203,792 160,778,160 213,192,582
Current Assets ............... 289,162,319 267,460,091 365,173,352 328,974,357
Deferred Charges ............. - - - -
Total Assets ............... 1,418,474,715 1,395,474,757 1, 504,836,787 1,502,052,208

Deferred Outflows ............ 39,469,454 10,977,517 8, 026,229 15,941,231
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 1,457,944,169 1,406,452,274 1,512, 863, 016 1,517,993,439
NET POSITION ................... 821,995,693 825, 933,297 822,803,061 799,078,660
LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt ............... 457,601,726 441,928,130 530,580,510 564,960,765
Current Liabilities .......... 70,165,746 63, 906,544 86,776,174 82,905,132
Long-Term Liabilities ........ 57,893,021 22, 647, 914 24,703,271 23,048,882
Total Liabilities 585,660,493 528,482,588 642,059,955 670, 914,779

Deferred Inflows ............. 50,287,983 52,036,389 48,000,000 48,000,000
TOTAL NET POSITION, LIABILITIES,
AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
$1,-357, 944, 169
CHANGES IN NET

$1,406,452,274
POSITION

$1,512,863,016 $1,517,993,439

OPERATING REVENUES
Residential .................. $154,091,270 $149,195,092 $150,972,050 $149,662,791
Commercial ................... 27,703,400 26, 956,059 26, 594,512 25,110,481
General ...................... 115,600,650 116,053,999 114,718,365 109,046,936
Contract Industrial .......... 21,462,712 21,356,911 21,150,771 19,804,613
Bulk Power ................... 54,506,535 50,380,147 82,796,740 64,210,259
Unbilled .................. (840,477) 677,091 (666,187) 1,651,808
other ........................ 1,725,200 1,643,756 1,609,143 1,562,082
Total Electric Revenues .... 374,249,290 366,263,055 397,175,394 371,048,970

Other Operating Revenue ...... 44,365,098 44,363,160 44,070,713 43,413,115
Total Operating Revenues .... 418,614,388 410,626,215 441,246,107 414,462,085

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance ..... 312,790,388 299,200,704 294,741,044 276,558,723
Taxes ........ ................ 19,727,313 19,993,833 19,276,216 19,562,858.
Depreciation ................. 55,702,297 57,381,578 59,156,228 56,397,306
Loss on Asset Impairment ..... - - - -
Total Operating Expenses .... 388,219,998 376,576,115 373,173,488 352,518,887

NET OPERATING INCOME ........... 30,394,390 34,050,100 68, 072, 619 61, 943,198
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Other Income and Expense (Net) 1,555,659 (1, 923, 329) (728,908) (252,363)
Interest Earned on Investments 2,405,144 1,796,071 3,780, 834 1, 899,829
Interest Charges (Net) ....... (16,196,734) (19,428,673) (27,290,021) (25, 688,219)
Contributions to Family Need .. (480,000) (480, 000) (900,000) (900,000)
Gain on Sale of Utility Plant . - - - -

Net Income Before 
Contributions, Transfers S
Extraordinary Items ........... 17,678,459 14,014,169 42,934,524 37,002,445

Total Capital Contributions .... 8,846,216 9,383,844 7,788,292 8,839, 960
Transfers Out .................. (30,462,279) (24, 969, 422) (26,998,415) (25,970,230)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION ......... ($3,937,604) ($1,571, 409) $23,724,401 $19,872,175

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No .65 both 2012 and 2011 were restated
for comparative purposes. Years prior to 2011 are shown as originally reported.
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

$954/141,423 $944,969,878 $933, 796, 881 $900,879,652 $855,373,200 $794,683,393
154,745,677 196,860,001 223,057,734 104,606,844 122,629,299 157,462,325
333,694,736 313,457,995 279, 967,672 288,083,393 312, 006, 708 272,409,296

- 17,651,421 7,304,736 1,990,596 2,356,842
1,442,581,836 1,455,287,874 1,454,473,708 1,300,874,625 1,291, 999, 803 1,226,911,856

7,848,910 8,213,239 - - - -
1,450,430,746 1,463,501,113 1,454,473,708 1,300,874,625 1,291,999,803 1,226,911,856
779,206, 485 762,944,507 744,735,781 735,593,799 695,305,259 621,817,950

518,251,959 563,718,608 582,930,840 459,202,498 490,528,958 517,834,315
84,070,814 82,861,816 95,884,868 83,385,715 100,219,839 81,446,692
20,901,488 17,976,182 30,922,219 22,692,613 5,945,747 5,812,899
623,224,261 664,556,606 709,737,927 565,280,826 596,694,544 605,093,906
48,000,000 36,000,000 - - - -

$1,450,430,746 $1,463,501,113 $1,454,473,708 $1,300,874,625 $1,291,999,803 $1,226, 911,856

$141,236,063 $136,944,688 $127,908,143 $125,807,518 $131,188,854 $127,539,844
23,499,735 22, 324,063 21,147,156 21,005,151 22,138,244 22,486,943
103,586,233 99,958,156 96,579, 940 90,782,730 100,142,959 101,628,965
18,870,807 18,341,067 16,898,845 14,101,372 15,430,080 15,078,247
53,532,081 48,118,090 69,518,730 67,338,457 98,545,139 98,276,853
4,615,802 369,424 (3,564,337) (411,080) 1,576,914 49,376
1,558,268 1,373,168 1,472,125 1,190,013 1,387,629 1,359,098

346, 898,989 327,428,656 329,960,602 319,814,161 370,409,819 366, 419, 326
40,983, 752 36,895,939 36,892,658 35,691,490 33,998,632 33,739,569

387,882,741 364,324,595 366,853,260 355,505,651 404,408,451 400,158,895

267,457,626 247,409,057 259,366,287 220,849,709 246, 856, 188 237,383,019
17,494,729 16,970,015 15,553,041 15,187,859 16,075,356 15,558,011
57,842,109 56,555,538 55,717,463 53,049,558 48,377,708 43,705,705

342,794,464 320,934,610 330,636,791 289,087,126 311,309,252 296,646,735
45,088,277 43, 389, 985 36,216,469 66,418,525 93,099,199 103,512,160

3,055,848 1,226,132 2,202,089 1,322,007 3,255,797 1,754,339
5,835,775 8,444,683 7,786,710 8,721,608 12,539,619 14,127,012

(22,859,967) (21,917,623) (22,773,604) (22,804,261) (22,420,879) (22,680,647)
(450,000) (450,000) (900,000) (1,229,676) (450,000) (450,000)

- - - - 2,923, 465 1,467,378

30, 669, 933 30,693,177 22,531,664 52,428,203 88,947,201 97,730,242
9,480,111 14,222,934 10,224,518 9,844,736 10,219,425 12,046,164

(23,888,066) (23,913,077) (23,614,200) (21,984,399) (25, 679, 317) (25,258,949)
$16,261,978 $21,003,034 $9,141,982 $40,288,540 $73,487,309 $84,517,457
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TEN-YEAR POWER SUMMARY

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

MWh Available 
Generated
Nisqually ...................
Cushman .....................
Cowlitz ......... ...........
Wynoochee ...................
Hood Street .................
Grant Net Actual ............
Tacoma's Share of Priest Rapids
Tacoma's Share of GCPHA ......
Total Generated ...........

Purchased .....................
Interchange - Net .............
Losses - Net ............ .....
Total System Load ............ .

MWh Billed
Residential and Other..........
Commercial/General/Industrial.... 

Total Firm MWh Billed ......

MWh Available Over MWh Billed 
(Causes; Timing differences, 
internal use, and losses other 
than those reflected above.) ....
Percent of Power Generated .......
Average Load Factor .............
Average Number of Billings .......
Maximum Hourly Energy Load
MWh ...........................
Date ..........................
Time ..........................

Maximum Daily Energy Load
MWh ...........................
Date ................... ......

Minimum Hourly Energy Load
MWh .................. . .......
Date ..........................
Time ..........................

Minimum Daily Energy Load
MWh ...........................
Date ........................ . .

Average Hourly Energy Load .......

2016 2015 2014 2013

630,483 511,592 635,121 572,932
507,618 272,457 358,509 239,528

1,989,438 1,630,130 2,111,686 1,792,975
37,209 12,680 14,272 24,404
2, 942 1,889 2,281 3,503

- - (2,018) (3,279)
26,975 25,360 22,733 34,846
253,625 258,679 272,846 254,570

3,448,290 2,712,787 3,415,430 2,919,479
3,807,370 3,674,140 3,845,666 3,756,763
(2,438,369) (1,569,981) (2,339,277) (1,665,811)

(8,870) 10,340 14,057 7,398
4,808,421 4,827,286 4,935,876 5,017,829

1,855,706 1,801,114 1,890,970 1,950,829
2,771,822 2,786,233 2,838,967 2,855,932
4,627,528 4,587,347 4,729,936 4,806,761

180,894 239,939 175,940 211,068
71.71% 56.20% 69.20% 58.18%
60.02% 62.71% 55.31% 54.18%
176,784 174,562 172,531 171,506

913 877 1, 016 980
12/17/16 12/31/15 2/6/14 12/9/13
0900 hr 0900 hr 800 hr 800 hr

19,641 18,675 21,686 21,172
12/17/16 12/31/15 2/6/14 12/09/13

351 354 348 349
7/5/16 6/21/15 7/6/14 9/8/13
0400 hr 0600 hr 0600 hr 0500 hr

10,110 10,262 10,221 10,379
9/4/16 5/24/15 7/5/14 7/4/13

548 550 562 572
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

699,104 663,345 586,433 553,062 530,839 515,585
261,735 410,723 393,563 246,898 208,604 381,193

2,322,875 2,157,106 1,725,424 1,677,554 1,736,328 1,590,719
38,149 35,692 36,320 25,298 25,368 35,518
4,029 3,313 4,133 3,243 4,217 3, 914
(3,285) - - - - -
37,355 34,417 30,705 - - -
255,564 237,794 240,845 - - -

3,615,526 3,542,390 3,017,423 2,506,055 2,505,356 2,526,929
4,167,263 3,799,037 4,132,049 4,235,019 4,252,681 4,401,097
(2,814,479) (2,266,720) (1, 993, 911) (1,729,701) (1,677,704) (1,918,581)

20,718 (8,112) 10,599 4,210 10,132 12,433
4,989,026 5,066,595 5,166,160 5,015,583 5,090,465 5,021,878

1,935,518 1,997,714 1,925,549 1,994,692 1,979,930 1,922,289
2,812,769 2,838,424 2,794,406 2,829,425 2,866,480 2,889,520
4,748,287 4,836,138 4,719,955 4,824,117 4,846,410 4,811,809

240,741 230,457 446,205 191,466 243,639 210,069
72.47% 69.92% 58.41% 49.97% 49.22% 50.32%
61.47% 58.86% 52.82% 51.69% 56.68% 59.27%
169,012 169,123 169,413 168,207 166,307 165,122

924 931 992 1,062 1,018 960
1/16/12 1/3/11 11/23/10 12/10/09 12/15/08 1/12/07
1800 lir 0800 hr 1800 hr 800 hr 1900 hr 900 hr

19,100 18,788 20,591 21,103 21,237 20,312
1/16/12 1/11/11 11/23/10 12/9/09 12/15/08 1/12/07

340 310 303 295 349 355
9/19/12 7/5/11 9/3/10 7/5/09 7/6/08 9/16/07
0400 hr 0400 hr 0300 hr 0700 hr 0700 hr 0500 hr

10,160 9,171 9, 041 9, 036 10,235 10,348
9/2/12 7/3/11 9/5/10 8/15/09 8/31/08 9/2/07

566 548 524 549 577 569
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GROSS GENERATION REPORT - December 31, 2016 AND December 31, 2015

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

2016

KWH GENERATED, PURCHASED AND INTERCHANGED - Gross
Generated - LaGrande ..........................
Generated ~ Alder .............................
TOTAL NISQUALLY .............................

Generated - Cushman No. 1 .....................
Generated - Cushman No. 2 .....................
TOTAL CUSHMAN ...............................

Generated - Mossyrock .........................
Generated - Mayfield ..........................
TOTAL COWLITZ ...............................

Generated - Wynoochee .........................

Generated - Hood Street .......................

Tacoma's Share of Priest Rapids ...............

Tacoma's Share of GCPHA .......................

TOTAL KWH GENERATED - TACOMA SYSTEM .........

Purchased Power
BPA Slice Contract ...........................
BPA Block Contract ...........................
Interchange Net ...............................

TOTAL KWH GENERATED, PURCHASED AND INTERCHANGED ..
Losses .......................................
BaJdi Replacement .................’...........
Ketron ........................................
NT PC Mutuals Schedules........................
PC Mutual Inadvertent .........................

TACOMA SYSTEM FIRM LOAD .........................

PIERCE COUNTY MUTUAL LOAD .......................

KWH BILLED
Residential Sales .............................
Commercial Sales ..............................
General ......................................
Contract Industrial ...........................
Public Street and Highway Lighting ............
Sales to Other Electric Utilities .............

TOTAL FIRM .................................
Bulk Power Sales ..............................

TOTAL KWH BILLED ................................

YEAR ENDED OVER
Dec 31 Dec 31 (UNDER) PERCENT
2016 2015 2015 CHANGE

378,898,000 319,979,000 58,919,000 18.4%
251,585,000 191,613,000 59,972,000 31.3%
630,483,000 511,592,000 118,891,000 23.2%

185,318,000 107,411,000 77,907,000 72.5%
322,300,000 165,046,000 157,254,000 95.3%
507,618,000 272,457,000 235,161,000 86.3%

1,203,631,000 1,007,917,000 195,714,000 19.4%
785,807,000 622,213,000 163, 594, 000 26.3%

1,989,438,000 1,630,130,000 359,308,000 22.0%

37,209,000 12,680,000 24,529,000 193.4%

2,942,400 1,889,500 1,052,900 55.7%

26, 975, 000 25, 360, 000 1,615,000 6.4%

253,625,000 258,679,000 (5,054,000) -2.0%

3,448,290,400 2,712,787,500 735,502,900 27.1%

2,265,823,000 2,080,213,000 185,610,000 8.9%
1,541,547,000 1,593,927,000 (52,380,000) -3.3%
(2,438,369,000) (1,569,981,000) (868,388,000) 55.3%
4,817,291,400 4,816,946,500 344,900 0.0%

41,976,966 32,070,742 9,906,224 30.9%
1,864,094 2,645,869 (781,775) -29.5%
262,023 269,163 (7,140) -2.7%

(28,498,000) (28,075,000) (423,000) 1.5%
{24,475,004) 3, 429,073 (27,904,077) -813.7%

4,808,421,479 4,827,286,347 (16,864,668) -0.4%

1,435,535,000 1,422,462,000 13,073,000 0.9%

1,817,931,140 1,764,596,523 53,334,617 3.0%
316,085,742 309,650,083 6,435,659 2.1%

1,947,062,423 1,969,382,254 (22,319,831) -1.1%
508,673,780 507,200,696 1,473,084 0.3%
31,555,485 30,545,257 1,010,228 3.3%
6, 219,000 5,972,400 246,600 4.1%

4,627,527,570 4,587,347,213 40,180,357 0.9%
2,731,076,000 1,917,685,000 813,391,000 42.4%
7,358,603,570 6,505,032,213 853,571,357 13.1%
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2016

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

2017 ........ 18,389,310 29,964,310
2018 ........ ........  10,095,000 17,926,310 28,021,310
2019 ........ ........  29,165,000 17,471,560 46,636,560
2020 ........ ........  11,970,000 16,113,310 28,083,310
2021 ........ ........  3,795,-OQO 15,564,810 19,359,810
2022 ........ ........  3,985,000 15,375,060 19,360,060
2023 ........ ........  4,185,000 15,175,810 19,360,810
2024 ........ ........  4,395,000 14,966,560 19,361,560
2025 ........ ........  4,525,000 14,832,512 19,357,512
2026 ........ ........  24,185,000 14,685,450 38,870,450
2027 ........ ........  4,675,000 13,321,174 17,996,174
2028 ........ ........  4,905,000 13,087,424 17,992,424
2029 ........ ........  5,155,000 12,842,174 17,997,174
2030 ........ ........  27,310,000 12,584,424 39,894,424
2031 ........ ........  28,335,000 11,002,902 39,337,902
2032 ........ ........  29,335,000 9,347,016 38,682,016
2033 ........ ........  30,460,000 7,596,889 38,056,889
2034 ........ ........  31,630,000 5,779,646 37,409,646
2035 ........ ........  10,990,000 3,892,600 14,882,600
2036 ........ 3,343,100 14,878,100
2037 ........ ........  12,115,000 2,766,350 14,881,350
2038 ........ ........  12,720,000 2,160,600 14,880,600
2039 ........ ........  13,230,000 1,651,800 14,881,800
2040 ........ ........  13,755,000 1,122,600 14,877,600
2041 ........ ........  14,310,000 572,400 14,882,400

$358,335,000 $261,571,791 $619,906,791

The amounts above reflect debt service requirements, and do not include 
the portion funded in the current year for $12,730,000.
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CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Total Income ...... $425,755,909 $413,680,801 $447,043,485 $418,841,237 $400,235,482

Less: Operating Exp 332,517,701 319,194,537 314,017,260 296,121,581 284,952,355

Income Available for 
Debt Service ..... $93,238,208 $94,486,264 $133,026,225 $122,719,656 $115,283,127

Bond Redemption .... $12,730,000 $14,735,000 $32,115,000 $28,295,000 $28,785,000

Bond Interest ..... 19,025,810 22,420,035 26,626,411 24,112,971 27,747,001

Debt Service Payable 
on All Debt ...... $31,755,810 $37,155,035 $58,741,411 $52,407,971 $56,532,001

Times Debt Service
Covered .......... 2.94 2.54 2.26 2.34 2.04
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RESOURCES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

GENERATING FACILITIES 
Hydro:

Alder ............
LaGrande .........
Cushman No. 1 ....
Cushman No. 2 ....
Mayfield .........
Mossyrock ........
Wynoochee ........

Total Hydro ....

GENERATING
UNITS

2
5
2
3
4 
2 
1

AGGREGATE 
NAME PLATE 
RATING (kW)

50.000
64.000 
43,200
81.000

162,000
300.000 

_____ 12,800
713.000

APPROX. RATED 
4-YR. AVERAGE 
ANNUAL OUTPUT 
(1,000 kWh)

228,355 
358,733 
130,506 
214,011 
736,654 

1,144,311 
22,141 

2,834,711

Tacoma Power and the City of Seattle Light Department have entered into a 40-year 
purchase power contract with three Eastern Washington irrigation districts that 
have combined to develop the Grand Coulee Project Hydroelectric Authority. Tacoma 
Power and the City of Seattle Light Department share equally the output of the 
project which has a combined capacity of 128,700 kW and an annual energy capability 
of about 476,000,000 kWh.

AVERAGE
CUSTOMERS BY CLASS NUMBER BILLINGS

Residential .........................  157,540
Incidental ..........................  15,688
General .............................  2,642
Public Streets and Highways .........  914

Total System ....................  176,784

Circuit Miles of Transmission Lines
115 k V ....................................................
230 kV ................... .................................

Circuit Miles of Distribution Lines
Overhead ..................................................
Underground ...............................................

AVERAGE 
HOURLY ENERGY 

(kW)
1.312
2.300

106.376
3.941
2.988

307
44

1,178
836
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TAXES AND EMPLOYEE WELFARE CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR 2016

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

FEDERAL
Power Social Security (FICA) ........................ $6, 792,585

Total .............................................  $6, 792,585
STATE OF WASHINGTON

Retail Sales and Use Taxes .........................  3,753,474
Power Utilities and Business Operations Tax .......  13,070,478
Power State Employment Security .................... 101,804
Total .............................................  16, 925, 756

COUNTY
Lewis County - In Lieu of Taxes .................... 1, 529, 863
Mason County - In Lieu of Taxes .................... 184,297
Pierce County School Support - Eatonville .........  7,000
White Pass School Support ..........................  122,293
Mossyrock School Support ...........................  106,222
Morton School Support ..............................  2,985
Lewis County Fire Protection District .............  10,794
Pierce County Fire Protection District ............  56,965
Pierce County Drainage District .................... 17,484
Thurston County ..................................... 938

Total .............................................

MUNICIPALITIES
City of Tacoma Power Gross Earnings Tax ...........  28,412,707
Click[Network Gross Earnings Tax/Franchise Fees .... 3,304,400
City of Fife Power Franchise Fee ..................  1,206, 459
City of University Place Power Franchise Fee ...... 1,080,368
City of Lakewood Power Franchise Fee ..............  824,727
City of Fircrest Power Franchise Fee ..............  244,641
City of Steilacoom Power Franchise Fee ............  4,790

Total .............................................
TOTAL TAXES .......................................

Taxes as a % of Operating Revenues of $418,614,388 ......

EMPLOYEE WELFARE CONTRIBUTIONS
Power Industrial Insurance and Medical Aid.........  $2, 035,370
Power City of Tacoma Pension Fund .................. 9, 282,983
Power Medical/Life Insurance .......................  17,386,237

TOTAL EMPLOYEE WELFARE CONTRIBUTIONS ............  $28,704,590

2,038,841

35,078,092 
$60,835,274

14.53%
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2016 ELECTRIC RATES 
(Based on 2015 rate schedules)

RATE PER MONTH

Schedule A-1 - Residential Service
Customer Charge ....................................
Customer Charge (for collectively metered apartments)
Energy (all energy measured in kilowatt-hours) ....
Delivery (all energy delivered in kilowatt-hours ) .

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

TACOMA POWER

$10.50 per month 
$8.50 per month 
$0.039710 per kWh 
$0.034435 per kWh

Schedule A-2 - Low-Income/Elderly/Handicapped Residential Service
Seventy percent (70%) of the monthly bill as 
calculated under Section 12.06.160 of the official 
Code of the City of Tacoma, known as RESIDENTIAL SERVICE - 
SCHEDULE A-1.

Schedule B - Small General Service
Customer Charge ....................................
Customer Charge (for unmetered services) ..........
Energy (all energy measured in kilowatt-hours) ....
Delivery (all energy delivered in kilowatt-hours) ..

Schedule G - General Service
Customer Charge ....................................
Energy (all energy measured in kilowatt-hours) ....
Delivery (all kilowatts of Billing Demand delivered)

Schedule HVG - High Voltage General Service
Customer Charge ....................................
Energy (all energy measured in kilowatt-hours) ....
Delivery (all kilowatts of Billing Demand delivered)

$19.00 per month 
$14.75 per month 
$0.042507 per kWh 
$0.034587 per kWh

$50.00 per month 
$0.041192 per kWh 
$7.50 per kW

$210.00 per month 
$0.035175 per kWh 
$4.00 per kW

Other schedules also now in effect are:

CP - Contract Industrial Service (major industrial power use - 
written contract required)

H-1 - Street Lighting and Traffic Signal Service

H-2 - Private Off-Street Lighting Service

Electric rates were established by Ordinance No. 28285 passed March 17, 2015 
and became effective April 1, 2015.
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SALES OF ELECTRIC ENERGY
Year to Date - December 2016 & 2015

116 116

Residential & Other Commercial General Contract Industrial

Class o f Customer
Bulk

IYTD Dec 2016 □  YTD Dec 2015

TOTAL POWER BILLED 
Year to Date - December 2016 & 2015

g 1600I I  1400

Residential & C om m ercia l 
O ther

General 

Class of Customer 

B YTD Dec 2016 □ YTD Dec 2015

Contract
Industria l

2731

449 .3.97

Bulk
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General
31%

General
32%

SALES OF ELECTRIC ENERGY
Year to Date - Dec 2016 ($374,249,290)

Contract Industrial 
6%

Commercial
7%

SALES OF ELECTRIC ENERGY 
Year to Date - Dec 2015 ($366,263,055)

Contract Industrial 
6%

Bulk
14%

Residential & Other 
41%

' , -

Residential & Other 
41%

Commercial
7%
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POWER SOURCES (*)
Year to Date December 2016 & 2015

3674.
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Nisqually Cushman Cowlitz BPA
Generated By 

(*) Interchange excluded

Others

IYTD Dec 2016 DYTO Dec 2015

-61 -



POWER SOURCES (*) 
Year to Date - December 2016

OTHERS
4%

BPA
53%

NISQUALLY
9%

CUSHMAN
7%

COWLITZ
27%

POWER SOURCES (*) 
Year to Date - December 2015

OTHERS
5%

NISQUALLY
8%

CUSHMAN
4%

COWLITZ
26%

(*) Interchange excluded

62



TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES * 
Year to Date - Dec 2016 ($388,219,998)

Depreciation
14%

Other Oper Exp 
12%

Admin & General 
7%

Distr & T rang 
18%

Click! Network 
7%

Hydraulic Power 
8%

Other Prod Exp 
1%

Purchased Power 
33%

Depreciation
15%

Other Oper Exp 
12%

Distr & Trans 
13%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES * 
Year to Date - Dec 2015 ($376,576,115)

Admin & General 
12% Click! Network 

7%

Hydraulic Power 
7%

Purchased Power 
33%

Other Prod Exp 
1%

City Gross Earnings Taxes are not included in Total Operating Expenses.
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TEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF OPERATING REVENUES
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2016 SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
TACOMA POWER

CLICK!

Financial Status
Click! Network commercial revenues declined from $27.3 million in 2015 to $26.7 million 
in 2016. The retail cable TV customer base dropped 4.6 percent ending the year with 
17,468 active customers, and the Internet cable modem customers served by the three 
wholesale Internet Service Providers (ISPs) - Advanced Stream, Net-Venture, Inc., and 
Rainier Connect, grew by .4 percent ending the year with 23,344 active customers. 
Click! provided 173 broadband transport circuits to Clickl’s wholesale service providers 
allowing them to provide an array of telecommunication services to many businesses in 
the service area. Additionally, Click! continued to provide the City of Tacoma 1-Net 
services to approximately 190 sites, keeping the cost of telecommunications low for 
many government entities, and also provided support for just over 15,000 gateway 
power meter connections.

Cable TV Rate Adjustments
Because a final policymaker decision regarding Click! Network’s long term business 
plan remained outstanding in 2016, no cable television rate increases were 
implemented. Although Cable television prices continue to remain under market, the 
postponement of rate adjustments contributed to the decline in revenues.

Channel Additions
During 2016, Click! Network migrated 10 networks from optional service levels to its 
Broadcast package and migrated Big Ten Network and Sprout from its Sports & Family 
package to its Click! ON Digital package. Three networks discontinued operations in 
2016, Pivot, UWTV, and MundoMax, but TV Tacoma HD was added, bringing the total 
to 376 video and 65 audio channels. Click! also added a variety of national and local 
video on demand content for a total offering of over 12,000 hours of content to make the 
product more competitive. Additionally, Click! added new networks to its Watch TV 
Everywhere service. Clicki’s cable TV customers can now enjoy watching Click! video 
content from 84 networks on any of their mobile devices with an internet connection.

Website Improvements
Click! Network launched a new website in June 2016. Improvements included 
streamlined navigation, responsiveness to mobile device screen sizes, enhanced TV 
listings, and an online shopping cart. Click! cable television products, along with ISP 
internet packages, are now prominently displayed, enabling the potential customer to 
select services and submit a self-service order online.
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Customer Satisfaction Survey
Customer Satisfaction survey cards were mailed to all new cable TV customers and to 
all customers who had a service related issue. Click! customer service and technicians 
representatives received ratings averaging 3.7 and 3.8 respectively on a scale of 1 -  4. 
In addition, a Customer Satisfaction Survey conducted on Click! Network’s behalf by 
Washington State University’s Social & Economic Sciences Research Center (SESRC) 
showed a mean average overall customer satisfaction score of 8.08 on a 1-10 scale. 
The results revealed that customers are very satisfied with the services provided by 
Click! and in particular, recognized the quality of service provided by our Sales and 
Service Representatives and Service Technicians.

New Tools
Click! purchased the CPAT Flex Digital Leakage Monitoring System to address 
concerns about interference from cable leakage in the aeronautical and LTE bands. 
The CPAT Flex Digital Leakage Monitoring System automates the signal leakage 
detection process freeing up technicians for other tasks. Since the tool is continuously 
monitoring the network, signal leakage is quickly detected and repaired.

Click! also purchased the CheetahXD software to replace the former Cheetah Lite 
version. The CheetahXD software helps Click! network technicians manage the MFC 
network by providing end-to-end visibility across the MFC operations environment, and 
enables NOC personnel to proactively isolate network problems, trace root causes, 
assess potential impacts, and prioritize truck rolls by pinpointing fault and performance 
issues in real-time. With CheetahXD software, MFC network assurance is simplified, 
operational costs are reduced, and network performance is improved resulting in 
enhanced customer satisfaction.

Spectrum Reclamation
In 2015, Click! fully converted its system from analog to digital and freed up nineteen 
(19) 6 MHz channel slots. Since then, 6 of those freed up channels have been added to 
the bank of downstream Internet channels to meet the growth in customers and Internet 
usage. Therefore leaving 13 channels available for use.

Network Bandwidth
During 2016, Click! added NETFLIX cache servers to the local network. The addition of 
these cache servers has reduced bandwidth utilization by as much as 30%. Click! 
added an additional 10 Gig connection at Downtown South and Downtown North for a 
total of 30 Gig potential capacity at each location. The Core routers are being upgraded 
from the Cisco 7600 platform to the Cisco ASR 9912 platform. This will provide the 
necessary 10 gig ports and throughput to support current and future network growth. 
The Cable Modem Termination Systems (CMTS) are also being upgraded. The existing 
Cisco uBR 10000 series CMTSs are going to be replaced with new Cisco cBR-8 
CMTSs. The first set of Cisco cBR-8 CMTSs were purchased during 2016. These will 
support DOCSIS 3.1 Gigabit services and provide higher port and bandwidth capacity 
for meeting bandwidth demands and subscriber growth.
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Asset Management Program
During 2016, Click! continued to build its asset list and has developed its registries for 
the Router, MFC Distribution, and Headend Equipment asset classes, and is prepared 
to participate in the Tacoma Power’s Strategic Asset Management program. Click! also 
developed a Network Maturity Model, to more effectively manage its asset lifecycles 
and plan future capital expenditures.

Safety and Work Practices
In 2016, Click! continued to make improvements to its safety management practices. 
Improvements included: (i) Focusing on reviewing past performance; (ii) improvements 
in the oversight of injured worker claims; and (iii) increased review of leading indicators 
such as near misses and non-medical injury reports. Additional training was provided on 
Home Safety and how the employees and their families can be impacted by the 
activities we engage in outside of our work life. Safety posters and bulletin board 
messages were utilized to promote safety awareness. Each business unit held monthly 
safety meetings and the Click! Safety Committee met quarterly to improve safety related 
communications.

GENERATION

Hydroelectric Projects
Tacoma Power’s hydro plants were available 99.83 percent of the time in 2016 except 
for scheduled maintenance outages.

Cowlitz
Construction is wrapping up on the Cowlitz Falls North Shore Collector for collection of 
downstream migrating smolts from the upper Cowlitz River. The collector, located at 
Lewis County Public Utility District Cowlitz Falls Dam, will improve natural fish runs in 
the Cowlitz River and help Tacoma Power meet its Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) license obligations. The $35 million construction project is 
scheduled for final commissioning and operation in April, 2017. The 70 ton head gate 
for unit 51 was removed for the first time in 48 years and rehabilitated.

Cushman
Construction on both of the new Cushman fish hatcheries were completed and began 
operation in 2016. One Cushman unit was modified to allow for synchronous 
condensing operation which will allow Power Management to supply and sell capacity 
without consuming water. The 20-year-old exciters for all three generators at Cushman 
2 were replaced. Construction of recreation improvements in the Staircase area were 
completed and opened to the public during 2016.

Nisguallv
The 20-year-old exciters were replaced on four units at LaGrande and one governor 
was upgraded.
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Regulatory Compliance and Dam Safety
All dam safety and license compliance requirements were met and submitted to the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on time. All NERC compliance obligations were 
met and the 2016 audit resulted in no findings. Seyeral studies were concluded or 
nearly concluded relating to seismic upgrades to parts of our plants including the 
Mayfield penstock slope and the spillways at both Mayfield and Mossyrock. Potential 
seismic loading was recently increased on these projects which will cause us to haye to 
rework some preyious studies and explore new alternatiyes.

Parks
Tacoma Power’s parks seryed oyer 300,000 customers in 2016. Tacoma Power’s park 
customers continue to compliment the cleanliness, admire the beauty and maintenance, 
and praise the friendly and helpful staff. Nearly 99 percent of the customers rate the 
employees as helpful in the 2300 suryeys that were completed. A few of the many 
positiye customer comments receiyed include: “The staff is so friendly, gaye a warm 
reception, yery welcoming, helpful, warm, kind, congenial, cordial, courteous, amenable 
and generous!.’’ “Great family camping spot! Well-kept and lots of fun things to do.’’

Facilities
Chief Imo retired as the Facilities Manager and was replaced by Terry Coggins in 2016. 
Construction was nearly completed on the 4th floor remodel which will combine Finance 
and Purchasing functions on the 4th floor and free up space on the Main floor for other 
pressing facility needs.

POWER MANAGEMENT

2016 was a productiye year for Power Management, 
following) include:

Highlights (with more detail

1. Power Management had oyerall responsibility for deyeloping Tacoma’s first 
community solar projects. The projects were fully subscribed, constructed ahead 
of schedule and under budget, and receiyed a warm reception from the 
community.

2. We developed, marketed and executed numerous non-energy products and 
services in 2016 to mitigate weak wholesale market prices. The effort resulted in 
$2.4 million in additional net benefit for our customers.

3. We exceeded the conservation target in 2016 with low resource acquisition 
costs.

4. Power Management led efforts to create a way to convert City of Tacoma street 
lights to LED technology without the City borrowing funds.

5. We participated in regional efforts to investigate and influence regional wholesale 
markets and to investigate the potential benefits of transportation electrification.
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6. We renewed contracts with two large industrials customers that required 
significant negotiation and accommodation in key elements of the agreements.

Conservation Resources Management (CRMf
Tacoma Power acquires energy conservation as a resource to defer its need for future, 
more costly supply-side resources. Conservation in 2016 cost less than $21/MWh while 
other resources we might use to meet future load cost significantly more. CRM 
completed over 1,000 residential projects and over 200 commercial projects. 
Conservation also provides a positive touch point for thousands of customers with its 
popular programs that provide homeowners and businesses technical assistance as 
well as financial incentives to reduce the cost of their energy efficiency improvements. 
Additionally, CRM held 30 community events and 33 retailer events to promote efficient 
retail products.

For the 2016-2017 compliance biennium, Tacoma Power has a target of 9.4 aMW. As 
the first year of the biennium draws to a close. Conservation Resources Management 
(CRM) projects a year-end savings of 5.7 aMW and biennial savings of about 10 aMW. 
Savings in excess of the target would be eligible for use against our targets in the 
following two biennia subject to stipulations in RCW 19.285.040(c)(1), a Tacoma Power- 
led amendment to the Energy Independence Act.

In addition to working to meet its conservation goals, CRM developed new programs 
and tools throughout 2016 to better prepare for the future. CRM has implemented a new 
central database to house customer, program, and financial transaction information and 
automate time consuming tasks. Database development projects like this often come in 
over budget and delayed but this project was completed on time and within budget.

CRM has launched a new community solar program which allows customers to benefit 
from lucrative State incentives even if they don’t own their home or otherwise are not 
able to install solar energy themselves. The solar array is housed atop the TPU 
warehouse roof.

Another major project involving CRM was to create a rate whereby the City of Tacoma 
can convert most of its streetlights to LED fixtures without increasing its budget. CRM 
will manage the RFP process and oversee installation of the LED streetlights.

CRM also continues to promote the success of its “trade allies” who install energy 
efficiency measures under its programs. A new database portal will allow trade allies to 
view information regarding projects with their shared customers.
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Energy Resource Planning
Tacoma Power’s purchases a significant amount of power and transmission from the 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) at an annual cost of approximately $120 million 
and $18 million respectively. The Planning Unit actively participated in BPA’s pre-BP-18 
Wholesale Power and Transmission rate case workshops. We vigorously supported a 
revision to the way BPA allocated transmission costs among NT and PTP customers. 
However, BPA did not accept our recommendation. Pursuant to the BPA Power 
contract, on May 1 Tacoma Power had a one-time opportunity to change from a “slice” 
to a “block” customer. The Planning Unit assessed both products and found remaining 
a “slice” customer was most beneficial to the utility.

The Planning Unit participated with four other utilities in a study to illustrative of the 
value of transportation electrification to the region and individual utilities. The study 
identified electric vehicle adoption rates, wholesale electric prices, fuel prices, 
generation capacity prices, distribution system costs, and electric vehicle and charger 
costs as important factors to the economics of transportation electrification. The study 
suggests significant regional benefits from transportation electrification; however, utility 
impacts ranged from negative to positive depending on utility specific circumstances.

The Planning Unit worked with other parts of Tacoma Power to complete a report on 
potential near term strategies to interact with organized wholesale markets. The study 
considered functional staffing requirements, computer software and equipment costs for 
three level of CAISO interaction: participate as a Market Entity, pseudo-tie a unit, and 
bidding in an external resource.

The Planning Unit completed two contracts to acquire an estimated 200,000 RECs per 
year (unit contingent) for the post-2020 compliance period. Tacoma Power has now 
secured about 650,000 of the projected 750,000 renewable MWHs/RECs needed to 
comply with state mandates

The Planning Unit assessed replacing most of the current old metal-halide/sodium 
vapor street lights in the city of Tacoma with LED lights. The study found positive net 
benefits. This unit led a cross-utility team to develop a new street light ordinance to 
allow the instillation of the LED lights. The Tacoma City Council will consider the 
ordinance in 2017.

The Planning Unit participated in a number of state regulation and policy development 
efforts including Clean Air Rule (Ecology), amendments to the Energy Independence 
Act implementing rules (Commerce), fuel mix disclosure requirements (Commerce), and 
IRP requirements (Rep. Morris).

The Planning Unit worked with Tacoma Power’s two CP customers to renew the 
contracts under which they receive service. The Tacoma Public Utility Board approved 
the contracts at their September 21, public meeting.
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The Planning Unit worked with RPA to assess how potential changes to rates might 
affect different segments of customers (particularly low income customers) and how any 
negative impacts might be mitigated. This assessment was well received by internal 
audiences and at PPG.

The Planning Unit initiated the biennial service area energy conservation potential 
assessment. The study was about half complete by the end of the year. Presently it 
indicates about 35 aMW of achievable economic conservation potential over a 10-year 
period. As part of this work, the Planning Unit established the BPA Block contract 
power rate as the new avoided cost for the conservation cost-effectiveness test.

Resource Operations and Trading
Wholesale transactions in 2016 were characterized by strong sales volumes and lower 
wholesale prices compared to the prior year. Net wholesale power sales were 2.5 
million MWh, exceeding the budget estimates of 1.2 million MWh. Annual revenue was 
$50.1 million compared to budget estimates of $53.3 million.

In the first quarter of 2016, flows into Tacoma Power’s reservoirs were well above 
normal. These high inflows were due in part to warm temperatures and in part to high 
precipitation, especially at the Cushman hydroelectric project. The warm temperatures 
are typical of the strong El Nino conditions that were present in the first part of 2016.

Snowpack in Tacoma’s basins was also above normal into the early spring. However, 
the weather turned much warmer and drier with record high temperatures in April. The 
result was a rapid spring melt and a much lower than expected runoff. As a 
consequence, the storage reservoirs at the Cowlitz and Nisqually hydroelectric projects 
did not reach the normal summertime operating levels. Tacoma was able to make 
extraordinary efforts to refill Lake Cushman by early June.

To mitigate the impact of the below normal spring and summer flows, Tacoma worked 
with State, Federal and Tribal Natural Resource Agencies to reduce required flows at 
the Nisqually hydroelectric project in order to preserve water in storage and protect the 
downstream environment.

In October, Tacoma’s projects received above average precipitation, and record-setting 
inflows. The high flows continued into November, and allowed Tacoma’s reservoirs to 
recover after the dry spring and summer. In December, after almost an entire year of 
above-normal temperatures, conditions shifted towards a weak La Nina, and 
temperatures were well below normal for the month.

Overall for calendar year 2016, stream flows into Tacoma’s Cowlitz, Nisqually, and 
Cushman hydroelectric projects were above their historic levels at 110 percent, 101 
percent, and 136 percent, respectively. Flows into the Federal Columbia River Power 
System, which affect Tacoma’s Slice-of-the-System BPA contract, were 99 percent of 
normal.
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In 2016, Tacoma continued to find innovative ways to monetize the flexibility of its 
power resource portfolio by participating in emerging markets for various ancillary 
energy products.

Tacoma continued selling energy as a designated Asset Controlling Supplier (ACS), 
one of only three in the Pacific Northwest. With this designation, any sales made from 
Tacoma’s resource portfolio are deemed “low carbon” and can be sold at a premium. In 
2016, ACS sales resulted in additional revenue of almost $1.5 million.

Tacoma continued to analyze the capabilities of the resource portfolio to determine 
whether capacity and reserve products could be reliably supplied and to quantify the 
associated opportunity cost. We responded to several Request for Offers (RFOs) for 
Imbalance Capacity Products and were awarded two of the RFOs. Sale of these 
products plus sales made in the Day-Ahead and Real-Time markets provided additional 
revenue of approximately $1 million.

Power Management worked together with T&D and Generation to analyze, develop and 
implement a new Frequency Reserve product. In December, we were awarded a RFO 
and began delivering this new product which will provide approximately $200,000 of 
additional revenue.

RATES. PLANNING. AND ANALYSIS

Retail Rates
Tacoma Power completed a comprehensive update and review of its cost-of-service 
study working with its rate consultant. Black & Veatch. Staff also completed a rigorous 
study of impacts of various residential rate designs on Tacoma Power customers. Initial 
customer class rate adjustments were presented to the Public Utility Board on 
12/14/2016.

Energy Risk Management
Tacoma Power staff completed the first generation cash-flow-at-risk model. The model 
will enable better analysis of risks related to hedging decisions and provide new reports 
to Tacoma Power executives.

Staff hired a consultant to benchmark wholesale risk management practices against 
industry standards. The study helped staff to develop a roadmap and begin 
implementation of new business processes for enhancing credit reporting and risk 
controls.

Finance
Facing a $48.6 million reduction in wholesale and retail revenue, Tacoma Power 
focused on minimizing expense increases in the Operations & Maintenance, Personnel, 
and Capital budgets. Over 34 unfilled positions were repurposed during the budget 
process to align with the strategic needs of the utility.
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Additionally, the initial Capital budget was reduced by $29 million through a new review 
and development process. These cost reductions allowed the utility to hold rate 
increases to 5.9% each year despite the reduction in wholesale and retail revenue.

In addition, Tacoma Power’s credit ratings were confirmed byS&Pin 2016 as part of 
their regular monitoring and review cycle for the utility. Tacoma Power’s existing credit 
ratings of Aa3/AA/AA- by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch, respectively, continue 
to allow Tacoma Power access to low interest rates for future borrowing needs.

Strategy
Tacoma Power completed development of a new Strategic Plan in October 2016. The 
plan was developed using feedback from customers, employees, and stakeholders 
throughout the City of Tacoma. It focuses around the strategic principle of Community 
Value First and can be summarized into four primary focus areas: Employees, 
Customers, Finances, and Environmental Stewardship. In order to make progress on 
the plan, strategic initiatives have been developed and will be managed under a 
comprehensive strategy management program.

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION fT&Dt

System Reliability
The reliability performance of the transmission and distribution system is based on a 
six-year average, from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2016. The average 
number of customers (ACO) without service per outage was 81 customers. The 
average outage duration for each customer served (SAIDI) was 58 outage minutes per 
customer. The average frequency of sustained interruption per customer (SAIFI) was 
0.55 interruption averages per customer.

Rolling 6-Year
Average SAIDI SAIFI ACO

01/1/11-12/31/16 58.35 0.5509 81.06
2016 Performance 
Target <75 <0.95 < 150

Three major weather events occurred again in 2016, significantly more than our normal 
of 0-1 storms/year. These events were on March 1 (wind gusts to 45 mph SW), March 
13 (wind gusts to 44 mph S), and October 15 (wind gusts to 53 mph S). Tacoma 
applies Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) approved criteria to 
establish exclusion criteria for major storm events and continues to include major event 
data from qualifying events in its normal outage metrics, when widespread impacts are 
not realized.

The Tacoma native peak load was 906 MW on Thursday, December 8, 2016. The 
transmission peak occurred on Saturday, December 16, 2016, at 1,257 MW with a 
Tacoma Native load of 905 MW.
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System Planning and Operations
In December, the T&D Horizon Plan update was completed. The plan was last updated 
in 2011. The Horizon Plan provides additions, expansions, upgrades, replacements, 
rehabilitation, and improvements to Tacoma Power’s electrical infrastructure to mitigate 
identified future deficiencies. Staff identified 37 projects outlined in the Horizon Plan as 
those best to support an effective and productive electrical system, through the most 
economical means. These projects have been disbursed over eight biennial budgets 
(2017-2018 through 2031-2032) in an attempt to levelize future expenditures.

The average capital expenditure for the next 16 years is approximately $50,830,000 per 
biennium, with a total cost of $406,659,680. Both the average expenditure per 
biennium and the total cost are about 17% less than the amounts included in the last 
Horizon Plan.

On October 29, 2016, System Operations began operating with version 6.5 of the 
Outage Management System (OMS). The upgrade was one of many corrective actions 
proposed in the TPU sponsored study conducted by Utility Integration Solutions 
(UlSOL) in 2014. The upgrade has provided System Operations with additional user 
functionality and resulted in a more efficient means of providing outage information to 
Tacoma Power customers.

In December, Tacoma Power began operating as a member of Area Control Error 
Diversity Interchange (ADI). Joining ADI was a recommendation of the Market 
Assessment and Coordination Committee (MC) Phase-3 membership. Tacoma Power 
is the twelfth Balancing Authority (BA) to join the group and it is anticipated that one 
more BA, Chelan County PUD, will join in 2017. ADI members share control error, 
which results in fewer generator dispatch signals and less wear on generator 
components.

On December 1, 2016, Tacoma Power began a one-year membership in the Northwest 
Power Pool (NWPP) Frequency Response Sharing Group (FRSG). The group will allow 
Tacoma Power to pool compliance risk similar to the NWPP Contingency Reserve 
Sharing Group. Membership to the FRSG has provided additional support to Tacoma 
Power’s decision to sell 2 MW of frequency response. The sale of this newly created 
market product has enabled Tacoma to receive additional wholesale revenue.
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Transmission Service
Tacoma Power has the following transmission service agreements in place with the 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) for delivery of power to the Pierce County 
Mutuals (PCM). These agreements are pursuant to Tacoma Power’s Open Access 
Transmission Tariff (OATT).

PCM Service Type Agreement Term
Alder Network Oct 1 ,2013-O c t 1,2028
Lewis Network Oct 1,2013-O c t 1,2028
Lakeview Network Oct 1 ,2014-O c t 1, 2028
PenLight Network Oct 1,2014-O c t 1,2028
Eatonville and Chop Point-To-Point Oct 1 ,2 0 1 5 -Oct 1,2018
Elmhurst and
Parkland

Point-To-Point Oct 1 ,2015-O c t 1,2018

Milton Point-To-Point Oct 1 ,2 0 1 5 -Oct 1,2018
Steilacoom Point-To-Point Oct 1 ,2 01 5 -O c t 1,2018

The Point-To-Point agreements will be converted to network service once the 
arrangements are in place to allow for remote load shedding of PCM load when 
necessary to mitigate overloaded transmission lines. A technical team, which includes 
Chad Edinger and Aaron Anderson from Tacoma Power, has been meeting regularly 
with PCM personnel to develop a workable plan for the load shedding. Although 
progress has been somewhat slower than hoped, the meetings have been positive. 
The intention is to implement load shedding before the existing agreements expire in 
2018 to allow for the transition to Network service through October 2028.

In addition to the BPA agreements, Tacoma Power provides transmission service to 
Avangrid Renewables (previously known as Iberdrola Renewables) and Lewis County 
PUD. Avandgrid’s contract for 45 MW of Point-To-Point service is for the off-system 
delivery of power from the WestRock biomass generation project. The agreement term 
is from August 1, 2009 through July 31, 2021. Lewis County PUD takes service under a 
pre-OATT agreement. The service is for 70 MW of transmission service to deliver 
Cowlitz Falls generation over Tacoma Power’s facilities to BPA’s system. The 
agreement term is concurrent with Lewis County’s Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) licenses for the hydro project.
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The estimated annual revenues received from each of the entities are:

BPA
Avangrid
Lewis County PUD

$7,000,000
670.000
189.000

TOTAL $7,859,000

Asset Management
The T&D Asset Management (AM) program optimizes data for programs such as Pole 
Replacement, Underground Cable Replacement, Pad and Polemount Transformers, #6 
Copper Replacement, Padmount Switchgear, High Voltage (HV) Insulator and Power 
Transformer Replacement capital projects. With data collected, budgeting champions 
for these projects were able to calibrate their requested funds while optimizing risk 
levels to the transmission and distribution system.

Due to a higher than anticipated failure rate, T&D AM has gathered and processed 
asset class registries for live front padmount switchgear, HV insulators, and fused 
disconnects and has begun coordinated and targeted replacement. Due to high 
consequence of failure, and utilizing AM best practices, both HV brown porcelain 
insulators and 3-phase #6 copper conductors are high priority replacement items. In 
addition, a six-year maintenance plan was implemented for 12.5kV distribution switches 
to increase operability and mitigate failures.

Through the Pole Test-and-Treat program, 4,459 poles were tested with 4,312 of those 
poles eligible for treatment. Poles replaced under the Pole Replacement program 
totaled 0.76% of plant at 664 for 2016.

Utilizing consequence of failure modeling, the Cable Replacement program saw 0.69% 
of plant replaced in 2016, which totaled 58,397 feet of underground high voltage cable.

System Improvements
East F Substation has been rehabilitated and constructed in a new, modern 
configuration addressing reliability improvement and load growth. Due to safety 
concerns and coordination with systems that had to remain energized to carry load 
temporarily, Tacoma Power personnel performed all construction. The new East F 
Substation was energized and placed in service in November 2016.

The Potlatch Switching Station site was selected near Union, WA, within Tacoma 
Power-owned property along the Potlatch transmission lines. This new switching 
station, which is scheduled to be completed by July 2017, addresses transmission 
system reliability and new regulatory requirements.

The Pearl Cushman Upgrade project relaying was replaced at Pearl, Cedar, and Hilltop 
Substations to support rebuilding and replacing the transmission towers on North 21st 
Street. This project is under way and anticipated to be completed by 2018.
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The Henderson Bay Tower Replacement project is 60% designed, and expected to be 
constructed in 2018.

A new 15 MVA Mobile Substation was added to Tacoma Power’s fleet, 
improve our emergency response time to restore power.

This will

The LaGrande Substation transformer, which serves the Nisqually Hydroelectric Project, 
was replaced. This included removal of the last 115 kV fuses in Tacoma Power’s 
system.

T&D and Generation personnel coordinated with BPA to implement a generator runback 
and remedial action scheme at the Cowlitz Project to permit full generation output while 
mitigating overload conditions on the Chehalis-Mayfield 1 230kV line. In coordination 
with BPA, relaying was replaced on the Mossyrock-Chehalis 230kV line to modernized 
aging equipment.

Electrical Services
Transmission & Distribution’s Electrical Services workgroup provided 216 service 
connections requiring construction work performed, on average, within 3.9 days and 
1,491 service connections, without construction work performed, on average, within 1.7 
days. T&D issued 11,876 electrical permits and performed 21,000 electrical inspections 
for total permit revenue of $1,750,195.

Electrical Services completed design, agreements, and work orders for $1,444,000 in 
Residential Projects and $1,328,000 in Commercial Projects.

An Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) for the Electrical Permitting group was adopted 
this year. Utility Staff Support assisted 4,095 walk-in customers in the lobby and 
supported 23,487 customer phone calls.

Economic Development was promoted thru involvement on collaborative teams for over 
20 large potential developments and pre-application meetings for over 100 smaller 
developments. Economic Development initiatives progressed this year culminating in 
four drafted policies and procedures to urge economic development.

Safety and Work Practices
This was a year filled with safety rule changes and work practice improvements as we 
incorporated the new state and federal electrical safety rules updates into common 
practice. T&D had previously field-tested and selected products to ensure adherence 
with these revised rules including wood-pole fall protection, bucket-truck fall protection 
and arc-resistant face protection. The safety rule change with the greatest impact was 
the use of 100% fall protection while climbing wooden poles. To facilitate this change all 
wood-pole climbers were issued new fall protection systems and retrained in their 
proper use. The change to the 100% requirement has been embraced by the Line 
Section employees and should help prevent falls in the future.
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T&D Safety worked with the Tacoma Police Department to provide High-Voltage Safety 
Training to all uniformed department personnel.

Employee Resources/Develooment
T&D completed the thirteenth year of its engineering intern program. T&D hosts four 
engineering students, for 12-13 weeks each summer. The interns are recruited from 
local universities including University of Idaho, Washington State University, University 
of Washington, and Seattle University, with approximately 50% of current T&D 
engineers coming from the program. T&D continues its recruitment/outreach efforts and 
attends events targeted to increase diversity in our applicant pools. This includes 
working with the military and veteran populations and fostering partnerships with 
schools to ensure we have a pipeline of qualified applicants to fill jobs expected to 
become vacant through retirements in the next few years.

T&D Training and Development managed three apprenticeship programs, and provided 
training and work experiences to 37 apprentices and trainees in four areas: line (20); 
substation (12); advanced meter/relay technician (1); and system dispatcher (4).

UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

Utility Technology Strategy & Planning
In 2016, UTS developed a comprehensive business case for a combined Water and 
Power deployment of Advanced Metering Infrastructure across the service area.

This effort required significant engagement with internal and external stakeholders, 
senior management, vendors, and other utilities in an effort to determine a direction on 
AMI for TPU. Over the past 10 years Tacoma Power and Tacoma Water have 
implemented several advanced metering technologies to meet specific business needs 
for residential, commercial and industrial metering installations. All of the technologies 
previously implemented have reached the end of their useful life and are or soon will no 
longer be supported. In addition, customers are beginning to expect greater products 
and services which are enabled by AMI. The business case development activities 
included:

• Identification of AMI technology options available today to Power and Water 
Utilities

• Recommending the best AMI technology solution to meet TPU’s AMI business 
requirements

• Performing a detailed costs and benefits analysis for each AMI for budget 
planning

• Formalizing and documenting the agreed upon quantifiable and qualitative 
benefits for TPU

• Conducting presentations for and gaining approval from Executive Leadership 
and the Utility Board
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This effort also established a roadmap for TPU’s AMI implementation and defined a 
program governance model to support a combined Power and Water deployment.

UTS actively supported the Community Solar Project by providing the data 
communication infrastructure, and network connectivity needed for Tacoma Power to 
monitor and report on the amount of power generated by this new renewable energy 
resource. New business processes were developed to sell Community Solar units via a 
new web application that enabled the collection of payments from customers. This 
project was a collaborative effort among Power Management - Conservation, IT/EASD, 
Treasury, and UTS staff.

Employee Engagement
A labor management agreement addressing the support of operational and business 
technology systems was completed in 2016. The goal of this agreement was to improve 
service delivery by promoting workforce efficiencies through utilization of shared 
resources and improved employee knowledge and certification. As a result, UTS began 
to partition the private cloud computing infrastructure enabling the deployment and 
support of additional applications and systems from different Tacoma Power operating 
units and TPU Stakeholders.

Operational Efficiency
Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) visited Tacoma Power in July of 2016 
to conduct a Reliability & Compliance Internal Controls Evaluation (ICE).

This evaluation was used to assess whether the controls and measures Tacoma Power 
uses to ensure compliance with the North American Electric Reliability Corporation 
(NERC) Reliability Standards are adequate. The results of the evaluation along with any 
findings identified during the WECC On-Site Audit conducted early 2016 were then used 
to establish WECC’s Compliance Oversight Plan (COP) for Tacoma Power. Moving 
forward, WECC will use the COP to determine their audit approach for Tacoma Power 
and the number of Reliability Standards and Requirements Tacoma Power will be 
required to Self-Certify on an annual basis. The outcome has already greatly reduced 
our workload and produced a positive outcome for Tacoma Power.

Manual data gathering and manipulation to generate TPU Fleet operational and 
financial reports were streamlined through a new interface between SAP and the pool 
car kiosk systems. This project eliminated manual activities and enabled operational 
efficiencies to be achieved.

Tacoma Power’s Outage Management System and Customer Services’ iNovah 
applications were upgraded to bring the applications, operating systems, and databases 
current for continued vendor support, increasing reliability and reducing security risks.
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After a well-received pilot, the GIS team replaced the internet-enabled tool used by field 
staff with a new tool that provides for a better user interface, increased functionality and 
reliability.

Desktop Support deployed approximately 350 computers throughout TPU in 2016 using 
the newly adopted standards and specifications for desktops and/or laptops. In addition, 
the Computer Support Technicians (CSTs) sanitized over 200 computers infected by 
new vulnerabilities. The increase in vulnerabilities led to stronger Cyber Security 
Controls being applied to new computer deployments across TPU.

Technology Advancements
In 2016, UTS partnered and collaborated with key stakeholders across TPU and the 
City of Tacoma Information Technology Department to deliver a newly re-designed 
utility bill for our customers. This effort also implemented a new bill design and 
production solution that addressed end of life issues with the legacy platform and 
provide greater flexibility to future changes with the invoice and other customer facing 
documents. This effort was several years in the making and culminated with the delivery 
of a successful project that met both customer needs and internal technical support 
requirements.

The Lobby Queueing system was successfully implemented with new functionality that 
enables better reporting and real time situational awareness of customer traffic and wait 
times. This new technology has improved the customers experience while paying their 
utility bills and provided better tools to Customer Service Representatives, Supervisors 
and Managers.

The operational private cloud computing infrastructure deployed in 2011 to support 
Tacoma Power’s Energy Trading and Risk Management applications was upgraded in 
2016. The project significantly increased the computing capacity and included the 
implementation of the next generation of storage capability to increase reliability, 
flexibility, and performance.

In 2016, UTS completed a two year process which led to vendor selection and awarding 
a contract for a new Energy Management System (EMS). During the last year a 
rigorous evaluation process involving a Selection Advisory Committee comprised of 
eighteen (18) subject matter experts from UTS and other Tacoma Power workgroups 
reviewed and scored vendor responses to over 3,000 system requirements. Vendor 
finalists were then invited to present their solutions to the Selection Advisory Committee 
who also conducted site visits to other utilities to learn from their EMS upgrades. The 
new EMS is expected to come on-line in 2018 and will provide for a modern more- 
flexible platform supporting enhanced security along with more effective and efficient 
compliance with NERC CIP and other reliability standards.

A unified backup and recovery solution was deployed allowing TPU to consolidate and 
centrally manage the performance of system backup and recovery operations that 
support various operational and industrial control systems.
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Prior to this implementation these operations had to be managed individually by the 
application owners. The new solution utilizes technology to enhance performance 
improve security and system reliability.

The Communications Tower located within the Pearl Substation was deemed to be 
structurally insufficient. In partnership with Generation, UTS identified opportunities to 
reduce loading on the tower and make temporary upgrades to further reduce tower 
loading until the replacement of the existing tower could occur. Immediate planning 
began and the replacement project kicked off in the third quarter of 2016. Installation of 
the new tower and removal of the old is scheduled for some time in first quarter of 2017.

Security
UTS established a Cyber Security group comprised of a five (5) member team to begin 
developing and enhancing information security operations across all of TPU. This group 
began by utilizing a nationally recognized cyber security framework and approach to 
conducting security evaluations on TPU's Industrial Control System Environments. The 
evaluations have identified several areas where TPU can improve its security resilience.

A new security system was designed and installed at the South Service Center to 
improve physical security and provide enhanced video surveillance throughout the 
facility.

Regulatory
Tacoma Power’s 2016 Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) audit occurred 
in March. This audit was the culmination of several hundred hours of work and 
successful collaborations between the Reliability & Compliance (R&C) Office and 
Subject Matter Experts (SME) across Tacoma Power who support the Critical 
Infrastructure Protection (CIP) and Operations & Planning (O&P) NERC Reliability 
Standards. During the audit, WECC commented that Tacoma Power has a strong 
culture of compliance and a solid compliance program in place. WECC stated they will 
point to Tacoma Power’s Program as the standard for the industry.

July 1, 2016 was the effective date for a significant revision to the NERC Critical 
Infrastructure Protection Standards (Version 5 to Version 6), and over 20 new or revised 
Operation & Planning NERC Reliability Standards. Tacoma Power personnel vetted 
each of these standards through the new Standard Change Organizational Review and 
Evaluation (SCORE) process to ensure compliance. The SCORE process takes each 
new or revised standard and evaluates the impact (low, medium, or high) based on the 
risk and the resources necessary for implementation. This evaluation also assists in 
building a work schedule for completing any necessary work and assessing compliance 
prior to the enforcement date(s).
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A cross-functional committee (comprised of subject matter experts from Generation, 
Transmission & Distribution, and Utility Technology Services) developed a plan for 
meeting the new CIP Low Impact requirements that become enforceable in 2017 and 
2018. The planning included identifying the scope of work and resources required for 
each facility (people, budget, etc.).

In 2016, over 150 compliance documents went through an annual review and approval 
and a Cybersecurity Tabletop Exercise was conducted involving responders across 
Tacoma Power and the City of Tacoma Information Technology Department.

Chris Robinson 
Power Superintendent
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Memo

To: Chris Robinson

From: Doug Swanson

Re: Information Regarding Click! Accounting Policy and Procedures

Date: March 4th, 2016,

There have been many public statements made regarding the accounting fo r Click!, many o f which have 

been inaccurate. The fo llow ing information is an attem pt to  set the record straight regarding the 

financial statements o f Click! The historical accounting record should not be in doubt.

Background

Click! is a sub-fund o f the Tacoma Power enterprise fund. This fund structure was established at the 

tim e of Click's inception. Formal financial statements are produced at the enterprise fund level. Given 
tha t Click! is a sub-fund, formal CLICK! financial statements are not produced (e.g. Statements of Net 

Position, Statements o f Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position or the Statements o f Cash 

Flows). Click! does not have a "Balance Sheet" as assets are booked w ithin the Tacoma Power 
Statements o f Net Position as Communication Equipment. On a monthly basis, an Operational Summary 

is produced fo r CLiCK! which provides operating information such as revenues, expenses and net 
operating revenues (expenses)/net income.

All TPU fund financial statements, including the Click! sub-fund is prepared by the City o f Tacoma's 

Finance Department and not TPU Management. The statements are prepared according to  Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and fo llow  the pronouncements and guidelines o f the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The TPU fund financial statements are audited every 

year by both Moss Adams, an independent auditing firm , and by the State Auditor's Office. The financial 
statements have received unmodified opinions ("clean audits") fo r the last several years from  Moss 

Adams which means that the financial statements of the TPU funds are presented fa irly and in 
accordance w ith  GAAP.

Click! Network Costs:

The Communications Network was initially built at a cost o f $90.6 million w ith $24.8 million (27.4%) 

attributed to  Click! as documented in the Virchow Krause & Company review in 2003. The primary 
driver of this original allocation of build-out costs was to  determine if an investment would have been
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made if Tacoma Power was not offering Commercial Services /Click!. If the answer was "no", the 

investment costs were aliocated to  Commercial Applications /Click!. For assets capitalized between 

2003 and 2005, costs were allocated between Commercial Applications /Click! and Tacoma Power based 
on the nature o f the costs w ith in  individual work orders (e.g. Tacoma Power related work or Click! 
related work). A fter 2005, assets were capitalized as either 100% Click! or 100% Tacoma Power.

In addition, between 2003-2014, there were subsequent network additions o f $45.9 million fo r 

Commercial Services /Click! and the remaining book value o f those additions is $13.8 million. The 
remaining book value of the original network buildout costs fo r Commercial Services /  Click! is $1.1 

million as o f the end of 2014. The tota l book value fo r Commercial Services /Click! remaining to  be 

depreciated is $14.9 million as o f 12/31/2014.

Depreciation Expense

Accounting rules dictate tha t when purchases are made fo r equipment that w ill benefit more than one 

year, the cost is capitalized and the expense is spread out over the estimated useful life o f the asset. The 

intent is to  match the cost o f the asset w ith  the revenue stream that it generates. Some are arguing 

that, in a purely economic sense, the original network build-out is a "sunk cost". However, in an 

accounting sense, the cost o f the equipment purchased must be spread out over the multiple 
accounting periods of its' useful life in accordance w ith  GAAP.

It has been suggested by some tha t Click! is "making money" if you do not include the Depreciation 

Expense or if you were to  w rite -o ff the cost o f the network as an "impaired asset". The classification of 
an asset as impaired, which would allow fo r a w rite  off, is very specific under GAAP. The asset must not 

have any further value in order to  w rite  its cost down to  zero. This is ciearly not the case w ith  Click! as it 

has current and future value as evidenced by m ultiple parties willing to  offer compensation in order to 
run the network.

As described above, accounting rules dictate how capital costs should be recorded in accordance w ith 

GAAP. If Depreciation expense were to  be ignored, then the capital expenditures fo r Click! must be 
recognized in the year that they occur. To demonstrate the effects of whether Click! could afford it's 

capital outlay the follow ing information was reported in Click's Operational Summary report. From 

1998-2014, Click! reported $4.0 miilion in net operating income. During tha t same period cumulative 

Capital Additions of $70.7M are being reported. Based on the cumulative Operational Summary 

information Click! would have had a negative cash flow  o f ($66.7M), if the capital additions had been 

recognized in the year they were purchased versus capitalized and depreciated over the ir useful life.

Allocated Operational &  Maintenance costs (O &  M l

In the early 2000's TPU Management reviewed the work being performed in all o f the cost centers that 
had elements o f both Tacoma Power and Click! operations. The approximate split was 75% to  Click! and
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25% to  Tacoma Power. This cost allocation was reviewed by Virchow Krause & Company and deemed 
reasonable. O vertim e the use o f the network and the costs associated w ith  it have changed. In 2013, 

TPU Management reviewed the allocated costs using the same general methodology and the ir analysis 
showed that based on the current use o f the network a new split o f approximately 96% Click! and 4% 

Power was more appropriate. This study and its' methodology was deemed supportable by Moss 

Adams in 2015. The Finance Department performed its' own due diligence by interviewing Tacoma 
Power's Rates & Planning staff, Click! financial and operational staff and Moss Adams personnel. The 

Finance Department also determined tha t the allocations were supportable. The new allocation 

percentages were changed during the August 2015 financials and applied to  the entire 2015 year in 
order to  have the updated allocation rates as of the new biennium.

While these factors were deemed supportable, they are not the only factors that could be used. Other, 
reasonable factors could be employed tha t attem pt to  base the allocation on the root cause o f the cost. 

TPU's allocation method used various factors depending on the driver of the specific costs. Some factors 
included total miles o f fiber and coax, fiber count by type, service drops, number o f work orders and 
tim e allotment by Click! personnel.
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AMENDED RESOLUTION NO. U-10879

A RESOLUTION relating to Click! Network; approval of an All-in business and 
Tacoma Power funding plan to provide retail telecommunication 
services.

#1, WHEREAS the City Council, of Tacoma delegated authority to the 

Public Utility Board and the Department of Public Utilities ('TPU”), Light Division 

(dba “Tacoma Power"), to implement and manage a broadband 

telecommunications system ("Click! Network" or "Click!", as authorized through 

City Council Substitute Resolution No. 33668, approved April 8, 1997, and 

Public Utility Board Amended Substitute Resolution U-9258, approved April 9, 

1997), and

#2. WHEREAS the 1997 business plan contemplated that the revenues 

associated with telecommunications services related to city government 

communications, cabletelevision (“CATV") service, transport of signals to 

service providers offering telecommunications services, and internet access 

services would pay for the costs of such services and would provide an 

additional revenue stream to Tacoma Power to help offset the construction and 

operations costs associated with the telecommunications system, and

#3. WHEREAS many of the functions of the telecommunications system 

envisioned In the 1997 business plan have been achieved in their entirety since 

the infrastructure improvements were completed in 1999 including; conventional 

substation communication functions, distribution automation, city government 

communications functions, CATV service', and transport of signals for service 

providers offering telecommunications services (the last three functions are 

“Click!") and internet access services (through third-party providers), and

1
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#4. WHEREAS other contemplated functions have been partially 

achieved for certain electric customers through the Gateway meter program, 

which include: remote turn on/off for electric customers, automated meter 

reading (electric), and provision of information to customers that is relevant to 

their energy purchasing decisions, and

#5. WHEREAS the customers of the fully implemented uses of the 

telecommunications system (city government communications functions ("I- 

N e t), CATV service, and transport of signals for service providers offering 

telecommunications services) have shared in part of the capital costs of 

constructing the telecommunications system as well as the operation and 

maintenance of the infrastructure to the benefit of electric customers who would 

have paid 100% of these costs, and

#6. WHEREAS the telecommunications system continues to provide 

interconnectivity, advanced control, and power management between electrical 

substations, which provide safe, reliable, and efficient use of electrical 

resources for the benefit of all Tacoma Power customers, and

#7. WHEREAS the existing business plan and current cost allocations for 

Click!, functions do not generate sufficient revenues to fund current expenses 

and capital improvement costs related to these functions, and

#8. WHEREAS, on an ongoing basis, Tacoma Power will continue to use 

portions of the telecommunications system for conventional substation and 

other communications, distribution automation, etc., and

2016 Resciutions Power amended U-1C879 All in Retail Service Business and Tacoma Power Funding plan doc
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#9. WHEREAS, for a period of time, portions of the telecommunications 

system will continue to be utilized by Tacoma Power to support the Gateway 

meter program, which serves over 15,000 Tacoma Power customers, and

#10. WHEREAS future advanced meter infrastructure may use portions 

of the fiber network facilities of the telecommunications system and may, in 

part, rely on the hybrid fiber-coaxial (“HFC”) infrastructure to fully implement the 

remaining functions described in the 1997 business plan, and that if and when 

such future uses occur, Tacoma Power should pay a share of the costs of the 

telecommunications system related to such uses, and

#11. WHEREAS, following a nine-month review by the Click! 

Engagement Committee (a committee comprised of representatives of the City, 

TPU, and citizens appointed by the City), the Engagement Committee 

described the community benefits of an enhanced Click! telecommunications 

system and an outline of the features of such a system, and

#12. WHEREAS Tacoma Power has determined, in part as a result of 

the Click! Engagement Committee work, that to increase revenues, Clickl’s 

retail products must be enhanced to include retail internet services and voice­

over internet phone services that can be bundled with the current CATV 

services (Click! would continue offering wholesale data transport services and 

city governmental communications functions), and

#13, WHEREAS the studies by the Click! Engagement Committee and 

Tacoma Power’s financial analysis demonstrate that continuing to provide 

CATV services in support of retail internet services makes the sale of such

20'6Resoiul-cns PoweriAMENDED U-10879 Ail In Retail Ser/ice Business and Tacoma Pov;er Funding Ptan dec
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services a more competitive overall product and improves the financial 

sustainability of Click!, with estimations that Ciick! customers cover over 90% of 

the cost of service, and

#14. WHEREAS the studies of the Click! Engagement Committee, 

Tacoma Powers financial anaiysis, and industry experts conciude that high­

speed internet access of 1 gigabit will be the standard for the next generation. 

Click! needs to make capital improvements to the current telecommunications 

system infrastructure to achieve these or greater speeds and to keep the 

competitiveness of Ciick! internet services in the community, and

#15. WHEREAS ail financial models studied by the Click! Engagement 

Committee and Tacoma Power nonetheless show that the market price that can 

be charged for these enhanced Click! services and the market penetration that 

can be achieved will be insufficient to cover all of the costs associated with the 

operations and maintenance of the telecommunications system and the capital 

improvements necessary to update the HFC to allow for Tgigabit service, and 

#16. WHEREAS the internet-related uses of the current Click! 

telecommunications system and an enhanced Click! telecommunications 

system would provide Tacoma Power customers benefits by giving them 

access to advanced customer services options such as: power use monitoring, 

outage reporting, sctieduling of services, bill paying, and electrical appliance 

control, and

#17. WHEREAS, in planning for an uncertain and unknown future, there 

may be other potential functions related to the supplying of electricity to

ZG16 RosciuUcas Pcr^er AMENDED U-108^9 All In Retail Sendee Business and Tacoma Pty/zar Funding Pan .dec
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customers not considered in the existing business plan that might also make 

use of the telecommunications system infrastructure including: cyber security, 

electric car charger locations and metering, and enhanced customer information 

products (power usage by time of day, behavior-based saving programs, 

outage communications, energy audits, and participation in Evergreen Options), 

and ■,

#18. WHEREAS the Board has a duty to ensure that Tacoma Power 

ratepayers pay in their power rates only those costs that are directly and 

reasonably related to the provision of electric service, and

#19. WHEREAS the Board has a duty to ensure that Tacoma Power and 

Click! are in compliance with legal and statutory requirements, and

#20. WHEREAS Tacoma Power has excess power generation capacity 

within its service territory. In the past, Tacoma Power has benefited greatly by 

selling this excess capacity in the wholesale power markets to the benefit of all 

retail electric customers. Over the past few years, wholesale power prices and 

sales have dropped substantially. In support of Tacoma Power’s strategic 

business plan, Tacoma Power wants to make up this lost revenue by looking at 

ways to increase its retail power sales through economic growth in the 

community. Communities across the nation have benefited economically from 

competitive access to internet services in their communities. Tacoma Power’s 

continued operation and maintenance of the telecommunications system for 

internet access purposes assists in making the internet services competitive in

2C lu Resoiulions Power AMENDED U-10B79 Ad !n Retail Service Busmess ar'd Tacoma Power Funding Plan doc
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Tacoma Power’s service area, which increases economic growth that leads to 

greater retail power sales, and

#21, WHEREAS, in order to preserve the functionality and value of the 

telecommunications system for the benefit of Power customers, the Board has 

determined there should be a supplemental level of funding from Power to the 

telecommunications system based on direct services reasonably related to the 

provision of electric services as enumerated herein, and

#22. WHEREAS the Board nonetheless finds it wasteful and 

unproductive to abandon or leave unutilized the HFC components, which are 

currently used to provide ClicW functions (including CATV and internet access 

services) and, in order to preserve the functionality and value of the Click! 

telecommunications system, the Board determines it prudent to provide a 

supplemental level of funding from Tacoma Power to the telecommunications 

system for a limited period of time until a stable source of funding from an 

alternate source can be secured, and

#23. WHEREAS the Board has determined that along with enhanced 

product offerings, the new business plan should also grant Click!, management 

flexibility to change product offerings, prices, and marketing strategies, 

excluding the leasing of the entire network, without prior Board or Council 

approval so as to effectively compete with private companies offering similar 

products and services, and

2016 Reoctutidhs AMENDED U'10B7D An' In Retail Ser/ice Business and Tacoma Power Funding Plan dec
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#24. WHEREAS the Board finds it to be in the best interests of its electric 

customers and the citizens of Tacoma that a new business plan be approved 

for Click! functions; Now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF TACOMA;

Sec. 1. Click!’s proposed high-level "All-In” business plan (the “Business 
Plan’), attached as Exhibit A to this resolution, is approved.

Sec. 2. The Clerk of the Board is directed to forward this Resolution and 
the Business Plan to the City Council for immediate consideration. The Board 
requests, due to budget timing constraints, that the City Council make its 
decision in a timely manner. Upon approval of the Business Plan, funding, and 
other provisions of this resolution by Council, TPU staff is directed to complete 
the more detailed aspects of the Business Plan and then implement that plan.

Sec. 3. TPU’s request that Click! management be delegated authority to 
make changes to products and service offerings, prices (within the limitations 
set forth in the Click! rates/charges ordinance approved by the Board and 
Council), and marketing strategies contained within the Business Plan without 
further approval by the Board and City Council is approved, and the Councii.is 
requested to concur in such approval. All significant material changes to the 
Business Plan that would remove TPU as the primary operator of Click! 
including, but not limited to, the sale or lease of telecommunications system 
equipment or capacity, outsourcing of work, permanent discontinuance of 
products or services, etc. shall be brought to the Board and City Council for 
approval. Such delegation includes approval of contracts allowing third parties 
to use surplus portions of the network to supply services to their customers so 
long as such use does not materially interfere with Clickl's operations of the 
network or Ciickl’s ability to implement its Business. Plan and achieve its goals 
and objectives. Click! shall continue to bring contracts for the purchase of 
goods, services, and materials in excess of $200,000 to the Board for approval.

Sec. 4. Tacoma Power’s request to transfer an annua! amount to the 
Click! fund from Tacoma Power electric revenues, to appropriately compensate 
Power’s past, current and future beneficial uses of the telecommunications 
system infrastructure, which shall.be used to pay Click! operating, maintenance, 
taxes, capital costs and debt, is approved. Tacoma Power’s transfer from 
electric revenues under this Section 4 shall be a minimum of $6 Million 
annually, and in the event Ciickl’s costs exceed $6 Million for the year, Tacoma 
Power is approved to transfer additional funds not to exceed $10 Million per 
year. Click! may use these transferred funds to make capital improvements and

2016 ReacItJlicns Power AMENDED U-1C670 Ail In Retail Ser/ice Business and Taccnta Power Fundfog occ
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purchase equipment as necessary to meet the objectives of the All-In Business 
plan.

Sec. 5. Staff will present, not less than annually, to the Board and 
Council on Clickl's status relative to its business plan objectives and any 
changes made to the business plan and business outlook for Click!. In 2020 
and 2025, staff will prepare a report to the Board and Council detailing business 
plan objective achievements and financial status of Click! to determine any 
adjustments in future funding. Staff reports will describe the past, current, and 
future expected use of the telecommunications network by Tacoma Power.

Sec. 6. The Board directs staff to identify business efficiencies and 
savings that can be made through staff reorganization, looking at both 
represented and non-represented positions. Staff will negotiate with appropriate 
union representatives to collaboratively identify opportunities for efficiencies and 
savings.

Approved as to form and legality:

Chief Deputy City Attorne

<3C
'■■“©terk■ rk

..
Secretary

Adopted 7 -  ^  G

8
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Click! All-In Compete Business Plan

Key Business Plan Elements;

Click! is expected to provide retail cable modem internet, voice over internet protocol, 
commercial broadband services, and other advanced telecommunications services in addition to 
retail cable television service to residential and commercial customers.
Click! is expected to provide bundled service o f cable television, internet and phone services.
The Click! network is expected to continue operating as an Open Access Network.
Click! is expected to maintain its existing wholesale relationships with the Internet Service 
Providers (ISP), including Rainier Connect, Net-Venture and Advanced Stream. No buy out of 
the ISPs' businesses is assumed. Wholesale in ternet pricing offered to ISPs w ill need to  be 
addressed.
Click! is expected to maintain its existing wholesale relationships w ith the Master Service 
Agreement (MSA) holders, including Rainier Connect, Optic Fusion, twtelecom, Integra, 
CenturyLink, Spectrum Networks and Noel Communications, No buyout o f the MSAs' 
businesses is assumed. Wholesale broadband pricing offered to ISPs w ill need to be addressed. 
ClickI is expected to remain a unit o f Tacoma Power w ith in Tacoma Public Utilities and be 
governed by the Tacoma Public Utilities Board. More independent and flexible governance is a 
key element o f the plan.
Tacoma Power is expected to pay 6% o f the tota l O&M costs as Its proportionate share for 

. utilizing the telecommunications network. Tacoma Power's proportionate share of O&M costs 
may change over time as its use o f the telecommunications network changes. •
Click! is expected to  upgrade its hybrid fiber coaxial (HFC) network to 1 Gigahertz, deploy 
DOCSIS 3.1 technology, and, over time, build new plant extension with flber-to-the-hom e (FTTH) 
technology.
Click! is expected to offer Gigabit and multi-GigabIt service to residential customers.
Click!,is expected to continue offering Gigabit and multi-Gigabit Metro Ethernet services to 
commercial customers,
ClickI is expected to continue maintaining and supporting the City's Institutional Network (I- 
Net).
Click! is expected to  o ffe r discounted residential Cable TV and Phone services to payment 
challenged customers based on existing Federal poverty guidelines (up to 100% of the  income 
threshold) tha t have been adopted by Tacoma Public Utilities.
Click! is expected to  offer a $14,95 internet service for qualified low income customers, o f which 
$9.25 of the charge is expected to be covered by the new Federal Lifeline program leaving a 
customer out-of-pocket.cost o f $5.70 per month.
ClickI Is expected to  achieve labor cost and operating savings by negotiating work rule changes, 
providing employee training and contracting out new and certain existing functions.
ClickI is expected to conduct door-to-door Sales Burst campaigns during the firs t and th ird  years 
o f the new business plan period, which are expected to generate between 4,000 and 6,000 new 
customers.
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Click! All-In Compete Business Plan

Financial and Customer Summary (Low/High Growth):

•  It is anticipated that ClickI w ill continue to  operate in a defic it situation for the foreseeable 
future.

•  The viability o f this business plan is contingent upon securing external funding.

Base • A ssum ptions Year 2 • 2017 Y ear 5 • 2020 Year 10 > 2025

Homes Passed 113,950 113,950 113,950

fi of Retail Internet Customers
L.
H

10.416
10,750

26,215
28,919

31,379 
35,713 .

# o f Wholesale Internet Customers
L
H

17,333
17,333

5,695
4,556

3,754
3,003

Internet Market share
L
H

24.4%
24.6%

28.0%
29.4%

• 30.8% 
34.0%

I #  of Phone Customers
L
H

1,800
2,173

4,566
6,058

5,399
7,567

i
Phone Market share

L
H

1.6%
1.9%

4.0%
5,3%

4.7%
6.6%

# of Cable Customers
L
H

19,035
19,185

18,644
19,378

13,831
15,136

Cable Market share
L
H

• 16.7% 
16.8%

16.3%
17.0%

12.1%
13.3%

ft of employees
L
H

89
91

101
106

104 
• 110

Cumulative Capital investment
L
H

. S16.0M 
$16.1M

$29.5M 
$30,0M

$49.3M 
$50.2M

Annual Cash Flow/Subsidy
L
H

i$19.5M)
r$196M !

($4 3Mj 
($4 4M).

($5 7M ) 
($4 2M)

Cumulative Cash Flow
L
H

'.$19 3M) 
<$(9.6M)

($.39.5M) 
($38 8M|

(565 6M |
, ($58 7M i .

NPV
LH ($19 5M) 

($19 6M)
($.36 6M) 
i;$.33.9M)

($.56 3M.I 
($51 2M |
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Click! Asset and Expense A llocations

3/ 18/13

DRAFT

Summary

Rates, Planning & Analysis (RPA) along with staff members of Click! and Utility Technology Services (UTS) 
performed a study of the assets and expense allocations shared between Tacoma Power and Click!. The 
underlying need for the study was determined by the outdated allocations developed over 10 years ago 
when the Gateway program was being ramped up and a full Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 
roll-out was expected in the near-term. The Click! and AMI landscape has changed significantly from 
that time resulting in a fundamental change in how assets and expenses should be allocated between 
Click! and Tacoma Power going forward. This comes at a critical point in Clickl's business lifecycle as a 
new strategy for this operating unit of Tacoma Power is being developed. Solid, baseline financials are 
needed in order to make prudent future business decisions. Below is a summary of our findings and 
recommendations:

• Tacoma Power should "own" ail of the Hybrid Fiber Coaxial (HFC) plant shared between Tacoma 
Power and Click! up to the customer meter. Assets on the customer side of the meter used to 
deliver Click! service should be owned and funded by Click!. Although technically this is not a 
change from current practice, this philosophy of asset ownership should be clearly understood 
and communicated internally and externally. Click! should be considered a "user" of the HFC 
assets and be charged a usage fee accordingly (see next recommendation.)

• Click! should be charged a usage fee similar to a lease or rent for use of the HFC network. We 
recommend the "usage fee" be based on re-designing the Operating Expense allocation factors 
for three Cost Centers that directly support and maintain the HFC network. The split would be 
based on usage rather than the arbitrary 50%/50% or 100% splits as used currently. This 
includes Cost Center 555300 within Click! and Cost Centers 562700 and 562800 within the T&D 
Section of Tacoma Power. Further, we should move cost center 555300 inside of Tacoma Power 
to be consistent with 562700 and 562800. This recommendation is analogous to charging rent 
based on the maintenance cost to keep the asset operational. The impact to the 2013/2014 
budget would be an increase in Click! O&M by $2.9 million or $1.45 million per year.

• Click! should bear the full cost of other 08iM Expenses supporting the delivery of Click! services. 
The methodology used to determine the updated allocations of existing cost centers was based 
on contribution of labor to Tacoma Power or Click! applications. Many of the Cost Centers that 
are currently split 50%/50% or 100% Power are almost entirely functioning to support Click!

CCR #2519
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Service. The impact to the 2013/2014 budget would be an increase in Click! O&M of $9.8 
million or $4.9 million per year.

!‘ 6

Tacoma Power continues to fund the HFC capital asset expansion for the sole reason of 
supplying Click! service. Although this practice fits into the Tacoma Power asset "ownership" 
paradigm, the business case for expansion of the coaxial cable and Click! Fiber portion of the 
HFC network should be fully transparent, i.e. that the only return is derived from Click! revenue. 
There is no near term plan to build out a larger scale AMI system that would leverage the HFC 
network.

Click! should not include depreciation expense on any of the HFC Network, all HFC depreciation 
should be accounted for by Tacoma Power. Click! should only track depreciation on assets such 
as set-top boxes, testing equipment. Hub Electronics, and other assets used solely for serving 
Click! customers. The impact to this recommendation is unknown at this point. Follow-up 
work is needed to determine the impact to retail rates if any.

Additional work is needed to determine the Power retail rate impacts of changing the asset 
allocation between Click! and Power. Increasing the Power asset by the historical base cost of 
the HFC network that is currently considered Click! asset base would most likely shift a higher 
percentage of the rates to be paid by the Residential customer class since it would be 
considered Distribution.

Tacoma Power should review the future need for Data Conduit Requirements that are included 
in the Customer Requirements for Commercial Secondary Service. Data Requirements state 
that the data conduit system shall be installed wherever electrical power conduits are being 
installed. The data conduit requirements were established when a full AMI roll-out to the 
service territory was expected.
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Summary of Financial Impact to Click! If Recommendations Were Implemented

as o f  11/30/2012
A ll $ 's  in  1000's 2012 B u d g e t 2012 A c tu a l 2012 Diti.

Current Methodlogy
2013  2014

Recommended I
2013 201 4  1

C o m m e rc ia l O p e ra t in g  R e v e n u e
C ATV $19,846 $16,053 ($3,792) $19 ,403 $19,540 $19,403 $19,540
ISP 4,743 4,970 227 5,592 6,890 5,592 6,890
Broadband 941 1,379 439 1,297 1,444 1,297 1,444
Other 666 2,326 1,661 690 634 690 634

T o ta l C o m m e rc ia l O p e ra t in g  R e v e n u e $26,195 $24,729 ($1,466) $26,982 $28,508 $26 ,982 $28,508

T o ta l C o m m e rc ia l O p e ra tin g  E x p e n s e s $19,553 $18,305 ($1,248) $19,217 $19,421 $25,708 $25,589

E a rn in g s  b e fo re  I n t ,  T axe s , D e p , &  A m o rt. (E B ITD A ; $6,642 $6,424 ($218) $7,765 $9,087 $1,274 $2,919

Taxes $3,576 $3,557 ($19) $3,724 $3,843 $3,724 $3,843
Deprecia tion  and Am ortization* 5,847 5,847 (6 ,933) 5,945 5,945 5,945 5,945
N e t In co m e  (n o  in te re s t a llo ca te d ) ($2,781) ($2,980) $6,734 ($1,904) ($700) ($8,395) ($6,868)

*Note more v^rk  is needed on the assets to determine recommended Depreciation
C a sh  F lo w  R e c o n c il ia t io n

plus D epreciation and Am ortization $5,847 $5,847 $0 $5,945 $5,945 $5,945 $5,945
less Com m ercia l C ap ita l P a id  from  Current Fund 4,094 3,219 (875) 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200

N e t C a sh  F lo w  - C o m m e rc ia l ($1,029) ($352) ($875) $1,841 $3,044 ($4,650) ($3,124)

Background

RPA was asked to investigate and document Tacoma Power's methodology for allocating assets and 
expenses between Click! and Tacoma Power and recommend changes based on its findings. Although 
Click! is an operating unit of Tacoma Power and its financial statements are shown on a consolidated 
basis. Click! needs to be understood and managed as a stand-alone business. This determination is very 
complex given that the genesis of the Click! business model was to utilize Tacoma Power infrastructure 
originally put in place to support future Tacoma Power AMI. The decision to sell Cable TV and Internet 
services was based on bringing in additional revenues. The additional infrastructure needed to sell Cable 
TV and Internet services was minimal and it was assumed this additional infrastructure would be paid off 
quickly with the additional anticipated Click! revenues.

A brief History of Clickl/Tacoma Power Allocations

In April 2000, PriceWaterhouseCoopers, an external consulting firm, performed a review of Click! 
Network's financial performance1. One of the recommendations that emerged from the review was 
that Click! separate its capital and operating costs into Commercial (i.e. Click!) and Power (i.e. Tacoma 
Power) service categories. This cost segregation would better enable policy makers to judge 
performance of Click!.

On August 26, 2002, Dana Toulson, Tacoma Power Telecommunications Manager, responded in an 
email to the Tacoma Power Audit Team with the results of an effort to address the allocation concern 
and outlined a methodology to determine Capital Investments and Allocations of Operating Expenses2.

1 Click! Network Financial Performance Review, PriceWaterhouseCoopers, April 24 2000
2 See Email dated August 26, 2002 from Dana Toulson, Telecommunications Manager, to Tacoma Power Audit 
Team
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"To allocate total capital investment and estimate depreciation fo r the two business categories, each of 
the thirty-two Telecommunications Project work orders were evaluated to determine their commercial 
and power related portions. The team asked itself "Would these investments have been made if  Tacoma 
Power was not offering Cable TV, Internet or other commercial broadband services?" If the answer was 
no, the investment costs were allocated to Commercial Applications."

Based on this test, the team determined that approximately T1 .A%lll.T>% of the total $85.8 million 
initial investment in Clickl/Power Telecomm assets should be allocated to Clickl/Power respectively.
This is the split that determined depreciation expense on the initial investment for Click! and Po\wer.

Further, starting in the 2001/2002 Biennium, all work orders were designated either Commercial or
Power under the framework that Power owned all assets up to the Customer Meter, and Click! owrred-----
all assets on the customer side of the meter (and set-top boxes and other obvious capital equipment).
This is still the asset allocation methodology used today.

In the same email from Dana Toulson, the results of the Operating Expense Allocation were provided.
The team performed the same test on the "Org" (i.e. 5511, 5532, etc) to determine the split. Orgs were 
split either 100% or 50%/50% between ClickI and Tacoma Power. It was recognized at the time that the 
methodology would not always be perfect but it was reasonably reflective of Commercial and Power 
costs and had the advantage of being easy to administer and track.

In 2003, Click! hired external consulting firm Virchow Krause & Company to assess the reasonableness of 
the Capital and Operating Expense Allocations3. Virchow Krause applied a Net Present Value of AMI 
costs and benefits attributable to the HFC network to determine the asset allocation scheme. In general, 
the hybrid fiber (Fiber) portion of the network and the 97% of the coaxial cable (Coax) portion of the 
network costs were determined to be Power's assets. Overall, the report supports the existing asset 
allocation split (26%/74%) and also supports the Operating Expense split.

In summary, what is left is a general split of the initial investment from 1997-2000 being 27.4% Click! 
and 72.6% Power for purposes of calculating depreciation. Further, starting in 2001 until present, all 
assets that were purchased or developed up to the customer meter are considered Power's and 
considered Clickl's if they are on the customer side of the meter (or clearly belong to Click! like Set to 
Boxes, etc.). Further, the Operating Expense allocation is the same scheme as developed in 2002, Orgs 
are either 100% or split 50%/50% between Power and Click! based on their work function at that time.

/o o t fo '75/ iL5)

(f) / ^ 0/

3 See "Review of Cost Allocations For Click! Network Tacoma Power", Virchow Krause & Company July 23, 2003
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Asset Study

The main purpose of the asset study was to help inform the recommended expense allocations. We 
have not completed a comprehensive review of the assets at this time to determine whether they 
should be a Click! or a Power asset. This is an important next step as it would have a material effect on 
how the power rates are allocated across the customer classes. Adding HFC Asset Base to Tacoma 
Power's rate model would most likely increase the proportion of rates paid by the Residential customer 
class since it would be considered Distribution.

The first step in this exercise was to obtain a full listing of the Fiber/Coax system infrastructure and 
understand how it is currently split between Click! and Tacoma Power. The data was separated into 
understandable categories in order to facilitate discussion. There are some issues with the data and 
accounting classifications have changed over time, but overall it was deemed sufficient for this exercise. 
Below is the breakout that was used;

’■....■ • .........
Row Labels "  ̂ * > w

Historical Cost - 
Comm.

Historical Cost 
Pwr.

Book Value - 
Comm.

Book Value 
Pwr.

Coax 14,781,385 87,373,426 3,667,421 43,171,879
Fiber 1,995,061 7,458,972 560,397 3,026,195
HTU/Con\erter-Descrambler_HTU/Con\erter-Descrambler 17,728,326 1,752,854 4,536,495 -

Capital Connect 5,732,630 5,776,209 3,864,838 2,648,467
Sonet Equipment 5,081,400 2,064,760 1,809,290 523,121
Sonet Construction 3,004,760 4,713,587 1,503,851 2,051,205
MDU 1,460,282 5,267,545 457,035 1,973,418
Head End Equipment 3,557,380 826,517 1,952,574 577,117
Land and Structures_Hub Electronics 5,746,817 6,197,580 1,178,652 930,850
Land and Structures_Hub Labor/Assembly 1,922,189 1,218,434 1,602,467 989,303
Immaterial 7,068,627 9,625,484 1,499,917 1,299,457
Grand Total 68,078,857 132,275,367 22,632,938 57,191,012

Note that overall, there is approximately $200 million in historical cost and approximately $80 million in 
book value of the Fiber/Coax system today. The initial capitalization date was around 1999 and certain 
parts of the system are still being added today. The "immaterial" classification includes several asset 
classes, mostly capitalized in the late 1990's or early 2000's.

A more detailed description of the assets by year of capitalization are as follows:
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Historical Coi  ̂- Hisdtoi*lcat Oo^ - Book Value - ISook Value - 
Comm , Pwr . . Comm ■ Pwr

1999 13.502.992 35,778.001 3,069.396 8.132.784
2001 250 662 64 223
2003 49.478 1,888,021 23.090 882,546
2004 1.228,665 16,748,029 574,849 8.691.174
2006 - 3,425,492 - 2.283.965
2007 - 20.159.527 - 14.850.820
2006 - 6,393.079 - 5.043.078
2009 - 2,018.391 - 1.749.272
2010 - 962.224 _ 898.076
2011 - . 639,938

»i F ib e r
1999 1,708.702 4,527,438 430,870 1,141,648
2000 1,237 3,278 342 905
2001 547 1,448 104 489
2003 (45.443) 106,103 (28.341) 30,774
2004 330.018 1,141.538 157.342 590.850
2007 - 1.227.042 - 899,631
2008 - 452,124 - 361,699

!.-i H T U /C on ve rte r-D e sc ra m  b lo r_ H T U /C o n v o rto r-D o s c ra m  b ie r
1999 604.108 1.600.665 . _
2003 5,222.363 _ - -
2004 265,912 152,189 . -
2007 7,984,405 . 1.596.881 -
2009 469,217 - 281.530 -
2010 3,182,321 . 2.545,925 -
2011 - - 112.156 .

-  C a p ita l C o n n e c t
1999 833,619 2,208,787 225.710 598,048
2003 936,842 936,842 495,721 495.721
2004 546.570 851,826 255,981 399.004
2005 1,023.257 1,091.440 607,409 650,665
2007 953.649 687.315 703,933 505.030
2006 5,868 - 4,695 -
2009 879,997 - 762.664 -
2010 552,829 - 515,973 -
2011 - _ 292,753 -

S o n o t E q u ip m e n t
1999 589.892 1,562,998 148.096 392,401
2000 144.134 381,903 41.040 108.742
2002 466 1.234 191 507
2003 1,162,721 111,314 7.195 19,064
2004 2.571,798 7.311 1.200.731 2,406
2006 222.445 - O -
2008 6.428 _ 2.571 -
2009 234.656 - 140,794 -
2010 148,661 - 119,089 -
2011 _ - 149,583 -

-  S o n e t C o n s tru c tio n
1999 488,730 1,294,956 205,605 544,778
2000 73.411 194,512 27,420 72.653
2001 7,291 19,319 2.599 6.885
2002 544.966 1 .443,960 223,786 592.950
2003 34.645 1,167.384 16.168 544.779
2004 1.151.856 593,455 554.164 289.159
2006 667,344 - 444,896 -
2008 36.518 29,214 -

-  MDU
1999 998,368 2.645,311 261.766 693,583
2000 163,631 433,562 48,194 127,696
2001 9,046 23,967 2.701 7,156
2003 5,277 606,760 2.463 283,155
2004 263,961 978,211 141.913 463,631
2006 _ 403,576 - 269,051
2007 - 176,158 . 129,147
2008 - _ - -

<-iHeacl End E q u ip m e n t
2004 16.062 - -
2008 1.168.640 459.640 386.687 262.651
2009 1.536.004 - 847.145 -
2010 837,674 366,877 716.742 314,466

-•L a n d  a n d  8 truoturee__Hub E le c tro n ic s
1999 1.572.954 4.167.755 - -
2003 639.211 324,050 1,099 2.913
2004 1.423.963 356,653 - -
2007 . 521.414 - 193.504
2008 999,476 17,832 399.790 7,133
2009 493.881 249.475 296.328 149.685
2010 417.332 560,402 416.794 448.322
2011 - - 64,640 129.294

‘-  L a n d  a n d  S tru c tu re » „H u b  l_ a b o r/A sse m b ly
1999 65.105 146.007 - -
2003 322.798 239.797 171,125 126,480
2004 1.862 3.307 900 1,523
2007 - 334.221 - 62,113
2008 817.752 - 654,202 -
2009 405.629 153,249 351.545 132,816
2010 319,044 341.853 304.523 319,063
2011 . - 30,083 347.301

-j Im m a te r ia l
1999 2.233,231 6,032,018 238,007 630,631
2001 5,294 14,028 - -
2003 1.206 104,019 352 933
2004 784.773 263,866 (19.879) 1,106
2005 707.926 . 74,071 -
2006 1,093.615 1.555.577 23.018 O
2007 1.115,350 171,606 232.617 35.431
2008 421,696 1.396.838 185,528 578,389
2009 213,31 1 ‘ ----------------- -V. 170.251 51,176
2010 492,223 456,525 1,791
2011 \  130.427 -

G ra n d  T o ta l /o s ,078,887 132,275.367 22,632,838 87,191,012'
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Coaxial Cable

The coaxial cable infrastructure is the bulk of the cost of the HFC network. The Coax runs from the Click! 
node. The Click! node, is connected to the Fiber Ring with coax extended from the node by 
amplification and splitting to the service "Tap" where coaxial cable (coax) drops extend the system to 
individual residences and businesses. Coax is necessary for Click! CATV and High-Speed Internet 
Services. It is also necessary for backhaul of meter data for AMI. Currently, Tacoma Power owns and 
pays for all Coax infrastructure maintenance and capital investment for replacements, and for new 
services. Click! Commercial has not been allocated any Coax since the initial overall 27/73 split was 
applied to all assets in the early 2000's. Note also that the Coax build-out has slowed considerably in the 
last few years as can be seen in the chart above.

It is important to understand that there are only 18,000 two-way meters in the Gateway program that 
are actively using the Coax assets to transmit meter data. However, since it is understood that Tacoma 
Power will be installing two-way meters throughout its service territory at some point in the future. 
Power continues to pay for all capital costs up to the meter, and O&M costs to support the asset which 
is 100% of the capital and maintenance cost of the Coax asset. This issue is particularly acute when new 
customers request Click! services where there is not currently Coax to the house. Power pays for all the 
trenching and other costs to enable Click! service to the house, even though there is no intention of 
using the Coax for meter data any time in the near future.

Although the Coax build-out has slowed in recent years, there has been about $30 million spent and 
capitalized as Coax within the last 5 years, and about $50 million since 2004. O&M costs and Personnel 
expenses related to supporting the Coax is recognized in Cost Center (555300) for Click!, and two cost 
centers located in the T&D Section (562700 & 562800). Please see the Expense Study Section of this 
paper for the recommendation to change the allocation.

Fiber

The Fiber ring that runs from the Headend ties all of the substations together, and connects all the Click! 
Distribution Hubs, is currently considered Power's asset and all maintenance/replacement costs of the 
Fiber ring is allocated to Tacoma Power. Power is using this asset currently for many Distribution/SCADA 
operations and will continue to do so in the future. There are unused Fiber strands and then there are 
Fiber networks such as the PCON, 1-Net, HFC, SONET, and Carrier Ethernet.

Fiber is considered a "passive" asset and does not require proactive maintenance and is thus relatively 
inexpensive to maintain. Currently two cost centers located in the T&D Section (562700 and 562800) 
support the Fiber and Coax asset, as well as other infrastructure such as service drops and vaults. Please 
see the Expense Study Section of this paper for the recommendation to change the allocation.

Capital Connect

This asset class is comprised mostly of capitalized labor of all related installation services of Click! to the 
home. The installation costs include the wires and capitalized labor included in connecting the house
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wires to the "demarcation" point where the "inside" meets the "outside" of the meter. Based on the 
data above, it appears that Capital Connect costs are being correctly allocated to the ClickI asset base. 
However, on the expense side to support this effort. Cost Center 553500, Service Installation, which is 
comprised of approximately 24 Click! employees is being allocated 50% to Power and 50% to Click!. The 
reason this was originally split in this way was the Installation Group was installing Gateway meters as 
well as Click! service. Now there are very few Gateway instaliations given the program is not being 
expanded. Piease see the Expense Study Section of this paper for the recommendation to change the 
allocation.

SONET Equipment

SONET Equipment is for the sole purpose of transporting Click! data across the Fiber. For that reason, a!l 
SONET Equipment should be capitalized as a Click! asset and all maintenance/support costs for this 
equipment should be allocated to Click!. Note also that there is an Asset class called "Sonet" above. Per 
discussion with Click! engineers, this is most likely more representative of Fiber. In the early stages of 
building the infrastructure, the accounting classifications were most likely not appropriate and 
attempted to be too granular. Most of the "Sonet" asset was trenching in order to lay the Fiber in the 
ground (for which the SONET equipment would leverage). All SONET Equipment and SONET has been 
allocated to Click! since 2004, which appears reasonable.

SONET Construction

Per discussion with Click! this cost accounting does not appear to be used anymore. It is thought that 
the costs that used to map to this activity are now captured in the Fiber asset. No further work was done 
on this asset class.

Multiple Dwelling Units (MDU)

Per discussion with Click! this cost accounting does not appear to be used anymore. It is thought that 
the costs that used to map to this activity are now captured in the Fiber asset. No further work was done 
on this asset class.

Headend Equipment

Most of the equipment in the Headend is used for Click! video content for Commercial operations. The 
data center houses applications to monitor and troubleshoot the HFC Network and Commercial Services 
offered by Click!. Cost Center 555500, Click! Network Engineering, supports this work and is currently 
allocated 100% to Power. Please see the Expense Study Section of this paper for the recommendation to 
change the allocation.

Land and Structures_Hub Electronics

This represents Hub buildings: Northwest, Northeast, Southwest, Southeast, Downtown North and 
Downtown South. The equipment in the hubs is used to deliver CATV, High Speed internet, Ethernet 
and SONET services and is primarily used for Commercial operations. Cost Center 555300, Network
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Operations and cost center 555400; Broadband Services supports the work performed in these six hub 
buildings. Please see the Expense Study Section of this paper for the recommendation to change the 
allocation.

Land and 5tructures_Hub Labor/Assembly

This breakout represents labor to install the equipment at the hub buildings: Northwest, Northeast, 
Southwest, Southeast, Downtown North and Downtown South.
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Expense Study

After the team obtained an understanding of the asset base the O&M cost centers were studied. The 
purpose of this exercise was to determine a "usage" fee for the Cost Centers that support and maintain 
the HFC network and to ascertain the true cost to run the Click! business by examining the remaining 
Cost Centers.

Cost Center Description

HFj^Network Support

555300 Click Network Oper 

562700 PwrT&D HFC NtwrkCnst 
562800 PwrT&D HFC Ntwrk 6ng 

Cu'itomer Installation Support 

553500 Click 5vc Install 

553200 Click Tech Op Admin 
553600 Click Dispatch 

Network Services

555400 Click Broadband Svcs 
SSSSOOXUdlllX^l^gineering 

C j55600 ClickNeTsvrBSsC^ 
Admin/IT Cost

Allocation Factor Summary 

Old New

Comm. Pwr. Comm. Pwr

Protected 2013/2014 Expenses

Old Allocation New Allocation Difference

Comm. Pwr. Comm. Pwr. Comm. Pwr.

0% 100% 
0% 100% 
0% 100%

50% 50% 
50% 50% 

100% 0%

50% 50% 

0% 100% 
0% 100%

56% 44% 

56% 44% 
56% 44%

100% 0% 
86% 14% 

100% 0%

99% 1% 

95% 5% 

95% 5%

$ 2,965,634 $ 1,673,646 $1,291,988 
$ 1,607,885 $ 907,405 $ 700,480
$ 516,393 $ 291,424 $ 224,968

$ 2,769,997 $ 2,769,997 $ 5,539,994 $

$ 343,805 $ 343,805 $ 590,753 $ 96,857

$ 983,500 $ - $ 983,500 $

$ 1,222,868 $ 1,222,868 $ 2,421,278 $ 24,457
$ ■ $ 1,350,400 S 1,282,880 $ 67,520

$ ■ $ 1,899,167 $ 1,804,208 $ 94,958

$ 1,673,646 $ (1,673,646)

S 907,405 $ (907,405)
$ 291,424 $ (291,424)

$ 2,769,997 $ (2,769,997)

$ 246,948 $ (246,948)

$ -  $

$ 1,198,410 $ (1,198,410)
$ 1,282,880 $ (1,282,880)

$ 1,804,208 $ (1,804,208) .

551100 Click Admin 50% 50% 95% 5% $ 1,409,103 $ 1,739,328 $ 3,005,113 $ 143,317 $ 1,596,010 $ (1,596,010)

552200 Click Mkt Admin 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 2,433,826 $ $ 2,433,826 $ $ $
552100 Click MrktBusOpsAdm 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 399,491 $ $ 399,491 $ $ $
552600 Click Busns Sys 

Other(Unchanged)
50% 50% 100% 0% $ 888,323 $ 888,323 $ 1,776,647 $ $ 888,323 $ (888,323)

552300 Click Marketing 5vc 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 31,466,262 $ $ 31,466,262 $ $ $
552400 Click ISP Adv 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 524,000 $ $ 524,000 $ $ $
552500 Click Cust5ales 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 2,850,440 $ $ 2,850,440 $ $ $
553700 Click Converter Inv 100% 0% 100% 0% $ 913,340 $ $ 913,340 $ $ $

Total 75% 25% 96% 4% $ 46,204,956 $15,303,799 $ 58,864,208 $2,644,547 $12,659,252 $(12,659,252)

^ 1 1 .7

S-kiTf

{-cpr

13/1
j in iP 1' ' '

A description of the Cost Centers and support for the recommended changes are as follows:

HFC Support (555300, 562700, 562800) -  All three of these cost centers support and maintain the HFC 
plant. It is unclear why Cost Center 562800 (HFC Engineering and Design) and 562700 (HFC Construction 
and Maintenance) were positioned inside of the T&D Group and 555300 (HFC system performance 
maintenance and testing) was positioned under Click! (and allocated 50% to Power). However, the 
purpose of each cost center Is similar In that they maintain the operations of the HFC plant which 
includes engineering, design, conversion work, safety equipment, repairs. Operating supplies, etc to 
keep both the Fiber and Coax assets running as intended.

As discussed in the summary of this paper, it was agreed that the ownership structure for the HFC plant 
is that Power is considered to "own" all of the assets and Click! is a user of those assets to deliver its 
service. The usage "fee" that we propose is equivalent to Clickl's portion of the maintenance of the 
asset based on a set of allocators. In order to determine this "fee" we first allocated the cost of the 
Fiber portion based on the Fiber count of Click! and Power applications and then allocated the cost of 
the Coax portion based on customer count of Click! and Power (Gateway). In order to put this overall

TAG PRA HF 0018107



allocation scheme into context, it is anaiogous to a homeowner charging rent to tenants based on 
maintenance cost of the house only. Note all expenses used for this allocation were based on 2012 
actual amounts.

Fiber Allocation

The methodology used to recalculate the allocations was to first separate the costs for the Fiber portion 
and Coax portion of the assets based on miles of each.

Miles_Fiber
Miles_Coax

Total

Miles % of Total 
527 27%

1,400 _______ 73%

1,927 : 100%

Each respective percentage was then multiplied by the base 2012 total cost of the three cost centers to 
assign a total cost to maintain the Fiber and Coax asset respectively.

2012 Total Cost 562700, 562800, 555300 $2,643,601

Cost Allocated to Fiber (x 27%) $ 723,047
Cost Allocated to Coax (x 73%) $ 1,920,554 .

2012 Total Cost 562700, 562800,555300 $2,643,601

The next step was to allocate the Fiber and Coax to Power and Click respectively. For the Fiber portion 
of the cost, the Fiber Count for all o f the Plant was used. For ClickI the portion of the Fiber used was 
based on the Broadband Services (BBS), and for the ClickI Network, the remainder of the Fiber was 
assumed to be for Power (Dark, City-Net, PASS, AMR-Gateway).

The Fiber count is broken out as follows:

Fiber Count % of Total
BBS 307 10%
Click! Network 547 19%
Total Click Fiber 854 23%

Dark 1,904 65%;
City-Net 594 20%
PASS 396 14%

AMR/Gateway 38 1%
Total Power Fiber 2,932 77%

Total Fiber Count 3,786 100%

When aggregated into the Click! and Power Fiber as described above, the allocation to Click! and Power 
applied to the 2012, Cost Allocated to Fiber is as follows:
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Click! Fiber Allocation (%) 
Power Fiber Allocation (%) 
Total

23% $ 162,838
77% $ 560,209

100% $ 723,047

Coax Allocation

For the Coax asset, the allocation was based on customer count of Click! and Gateway users as shown in 
the table below.

Cable Customers 
ISP Customers 

Click! Total

Gateway Customers

Customer Count %
22,983 39%

;________ 17,753 _______30%

40,736

18,129

69%

30.8%

When applied to the 2012 Cost Allocated to Coax, the Coax cost is allocated to Click! and Power as 
shown in the table below.:

ClickI Coax Allocation 
Power Coax Allocation 

Total

» $
69% $ 1,329,069 
31% $ 591,484

100% $ 1,920,554

In total, the sum of the Click! costs for Fiber and Coax results in an allocation that is 56% Click! and 44% 
Power across the three cost centers as shown in the table below.

$ %
Click Total Fiber/Coax $1,491,908 56%
PowerTotal Fiber/Coax $1,151,693 : 44%
Total $2,643,601 ' 100%

Customer Installation Support

553500 Click Svcs Install -  The Service Install cost center is primarily the labor and supplies needed to 
physically hook the customer up to the meter for Click! services. When Gateway was being expanded 
some installs were for Gateway meters and some were for Click! services, and is most likely the cause 
for the original 50%/50% split. As the Gateway population is now almost static, all of this group's time 
and resources are for Click! services and supports a change to allocate 100% of this Cost Center to Click!.

553200 Click Tech Op Admin -  The Click! Tech Op Admin cost center is primarily service technician 
management labor and support staff. Very little time from this group of employees is spent on projects 
that benefit Power only, however, it was difficult to ascertain the amount that may be spent on Power 
applications. As such, the methodology we used to determine the allocation was to use the total
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overall average of the operational cost center re-calculated allocation. The operational cost centers 
were determined to be all cost centers except for the Administration. A straight average was used.

Network Services

555400-C lick Broadband Svcs - Based on interviews with Click! staff, two employees in this cost center 
work in the ISP team that configures, provisions and maintains the cable modem termination systems 
(CMTS). They estimate they spend less than 2% of their time working on support of the Gateway cable 
modems. Duties include Gateway cable modem priorities. Pay as you Go and support of approximately 
25 Tacoma Power Commercial accounts and the incidental work being performed on maintaining and 
upgrading the Clickl internet product. Other work consists of confirming that DNS entries are correct, 
supporting questions from UTS regarding Gateway modems, and supporting instailation of new Tacoma 
Power Commercial account cable modems. As this cost center is made up of seven employees, and 
given the fact that two of the employees within this cost center spend less than 2% of their time on 
Gateway applications, the overall time spent supporting Tacoma Power was estimated to be 1% overall 
for this cost center.

555500 -  ClcklNtwrk Engineering -  Based on interviews with employees in the Cost Center, very little of 
their time is spent Engineering the network for the benefit of Tacoma Power or Gateway. One of the 
three Engineers, the Internetworking Engineer is responsible for the design, performance and capacity 
requirements of the ISP routed network which includes the CMTS, a small amount of time of which 
supports the Gateway program. The other two engineers. Video and Broadband Services Engineer 
spend all their time planning, designing and maintaining their networks to support the commerciai CATV 
and Broadband Services products.

555600 -  Click Net Svcs Assurance -  Based on interviews employees in this cost center it is estimated 
they spend less than 5% of their time working on support of the Gateway Cable Modems. It Is estimated 
that 40% of the NSA's (Network Service Assurance) time is spent on monitoring CATV, high speed 
internet, Ethernet and SONET services. A portion o f that 40% is dedicated to monitoring and support of 
the Gateway cable modems. Monitoring includes the incidental monitoring of the Gateway cable 
modems along with the monitoring of Click retail cable modems. A system cable modem outage would 
affect the Gateway cable modems and as part of the reporting process would include an email sent to 
UTS notifying them of the outage event. The NSA sends out network status updates and planned 
maintenance notifications as well, which the UTS receives. The NSA indirectly monitors the physical 
infrastructure, Fiber and Coax which Tacoma Power owns. The devices monitored which are connected 
to the Fiber and Coax are lasers, receivers, nodes, ampiifiers, HFC power supplies, cable modems, 
Ethernet switches and SONET multiplexers.

Admin/IT Cost

551100 Click Admin -  The Click! Admin cost center is primarily the Section Manager and support staff 
and office supplies for Clickl. Very little time from this group of empioyees is spent on non-ClickI 
projects that benefit Power only. The methodology used to determine the allocation was the total 
recalculated Click! allocation from all o f the cost centers above.
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552600 Click Busns Sys-This cost center consists of the financial and IT group within Click! comprised 
of approximately 4 FTEs, Based on discussions and interviews with the manager of this group, very little 
time is spent on matters pertaining to Power only. For this reason, it was determined that 100% 
allocation to Click! was more appropriate than an arbitrary 50%/50% split between Click! and Power. 
When the Gateway program was being developed and the 50%/50% split was created, these employees 
were more involved in integrating 2-way metering data and financial planning for an AMI type 
environment.
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EDUCATION 

MBA, Finance 
Butler University 
Indianapolis, Indiana 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE AND BACKGROUND OF 

GARY S. SALEBA 

Exhibit_ (GSS-1) 
Page 1 of 8 

BA, Economics and Mathematics 
Franklin College 
Franklin, Indiana 

EMPlOYMENT 

October 1978 to 
Present 

Position: 

Responsibilities: 

Activities: 

EES Consulting, Inc. 
570 Kirkland Way, Suite 100 
Kirkland, Washington 98033 
Registered Professional Engineering and Management 
Consulting Firm 

Principal/Owner 

Overall supervision for all of EES Consulting's electric, water, 
wastewater and natural gas engagements in the areas of strategic 
planning, financial analysis, cost of service, valuations, mergers and 
acquisitions, rate design, engineering, load forecasting, load 
research, management evaluation studies, bond financing, 
integrated resource planning and overall utility operations. Overall 
responsibility for firm's quality assurance/quality control. 

Numerous testimony presentations before regulatory bodies on 
utility economics, strategic planning, finance, utility operations and 
requests for proposals. Supervised several integrated resource 
planning studies, average embedded and marginal cost of service 
studies, RFPs, technical assessments and financial planning studies 
for electric, water, gas and wastewater utility clients. Participated 
in comprehensive resource acquisition, strategic planning and 
demand side management analyses. Developed and verified 
interclass usage data. Conceptualized and implemented 
compliance programs for the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act 
and the Energy Policy Act of 1992. Contract negotiation and energy 
conservation assessments. Presentation of management audit, 
forecasting, cost of service, integrated resource planning, financial 
management, and rate design seminars for the American Public 
Power Association, Electricity Distributors Association of Ontario, 



October 1977 to 
October 1978 

Position: 

Responsibilities: 

Activities: 

June 1972 to 
October 1977 

Position: 

Responsibilities: 

Activities: 

Exhibit_ (GSS-1) 
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American Water Works Association, and Northwest Public Power 
Association. Past Board member of Northwest Public Power 
Association and ENERmnnect, Ltd. Past Chairman of Financial 
Management Committee and Management Division of the 
American Water Works Association. Project manager for 
construction of 248 MW gas turbine, and acquisition of over $1 
billion of utility service territory and equipment. Supervised 
engineer's report for over $5 billion in revenue bonds. 

National Management Consulting Firm 

Supervising Economist 

Analyzed various energy related topics to determine economic 
impacts. Reviewed utility financial activities. 

Participated in several utility rate/financial regulatory proceedings. 
Provided clients with critique of issues, position papers and expert 
testimony on the topics of cost of service, rate design, utility 
finance, automatic adjustment factors, sales perspectives and class 
load characteristics. Conceptualized load forecasting models and 
assisted in economic and environmental impact analyses. 

Indianapolis Power & Light Company 
P.O. Box 1595 B 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46206 
Investor-owned Utility 

Economist, Department of Rates and Regulatory Affairs 

Provided general economic and rate expertise in Rates, Regulatory 
Affairs, Customer Service and Engineering Design Departments. 

Calculated retail and wholesale electric and steam class revenue 
requirements and rates. Prepared expert testimony and exhibits 
for state and federal agencies regarding rate design theory, 
application of rates and revenues generated from rates. 
Determined long range revenue and peak demand projections. 
Supervised comprehensive load research program. Supported 
thermal plant Environmental Impact Statements. Provided 
industrial liaison. 
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PARTIAL LIST OF CLIENTS FOR WHOM FINANCIAL, OPERATIONAL AND STRATEGIC 
PLANNING PROJECTS 

HAVE BEEN DIRECTED BY GARY S. SALEBA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Alabama 

Arizona 

City of Birmingham Water and Wastewater 

City of Barrow 
City of Wrangell 
*Alaska Public Service Commission 
*Municipal Light and Power 
Alaska Village Electric Cooperative 

*Tucson Electric Power 
City of Dodge 
City of Page 
Navopache Electric Cooperative 

Arkansas 
City of North Little Rock 

California 
City of Indian Wells 
City of Palm Desert 
City of Moreno Valley 
City of Corona 
City of Redding 
Sacramento Municipal Utilities Board 
City of Burbank 
*State of California - Department of Water Resources 
Turlock Irrigation District 

City of Palo Alto 
City of Anaheim 
El Dorado Irrigation District 
City of Glendale 
City of Pasadena 
City of Roseville 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 
*Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
Nor-Cal Electric Authority 
Jefferson JPA 
City of San Marcos 

City of Cerritos 
Coachella Valley Association of Governments 



California (cont'd) 
California Power Authority 
Santa Clara Valley Water District 
Los Angeles County Community Choice Aggregation 
San Bernardino County Community Choice Aggregation 
West Riverside County Community Choice Aggregation 
San Jose Clean Energy Choice Aggregation 

East Bay Community Energy 
Los Angeles County 

Colorado 
*CFI Steel 
*Moon Lake Electric Association 
City of Denver- Wastewater 
*Denver Water Board 

Connecticut 

Illinois 

City of Groton 

City of Pompano Beach 
Florida Public Service Commission 
Dade County Water and Wastewater Utilities 

Kootenai Electric 
*Northern Lights 
Salmon River Cooperative 
Prairie Power and Light 
*Department of Energy 

City of Moscow 
Fall River Cooperative 
Lower Valley Power & Light 
*Industrial Customers of Idaho Power 
Clearwater Power & Light 

City of Heyburn 
City of Bonners Ferry 

City of Highland 
City of Collinsville 
City of Peru 
City of Winnetka 

*Indianapolis Power & Light Company 

*City of Iowa City 
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Kentucky 
*Kentucky-American Water Company 

Minnesota 
Polk-Burnett Electric Coop 

Missouri 
*General Motor, Inc. 

Montana 
Beartooth Electric Cooperative 
*PPL Montana 
Montana Associated Cooperatives 

Sun River Electric Cooperative 
*Montana Power Company 
Colstrip Community Center 
Flathead Electric Cooperative 
Glacier Electric Cooperative 
Vigilante Electric Cooperative 
Montana Electric Cooperative Association 

Western Montana G&T 
*Northwestern Energy, Inc. 
Yellowstone Valley Electric Cooperative 

North Dakota 

Oregon 

City of Watford City 
Garrison Diversion Conservancy District 

*Emerald PUD 
Clackamas Water District 
Central Lincoln PUD 
Springfield Utility Board 
Tri-Cities Service District 
City of Portland 
City of Klamath Falls 
City of Millersburg 
City of Gladstone 

City of West Linn 
City of Oregon City 
*Public Power Council 
Central Electric Cooperative 
Warm Springs Energy Cooperative 
Northern Wasco PUD 
West Oregon Cooperative 

South Dakota 
Black Hills Electric Cooperative 
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City of League City 
City of Brownsville 
City of Lubbock 
Pedernales Electric Cooperative 
City of San Antonio 
*Texas Municipal Power Agency 

*Moon Lake Electric Association 
Utah Association of Municipal Power Systems 

Washington 
*Western Public Agencies Group 

TrendWest Resorts 
Weyerhaeuser Corporation 
Costco 
*Pend Oreille County PUD 
City of Richland 
Industrial Customers of Grant County 
Benton REA 
Seattle City Light 

*Clark Public Utilities 
City of Blaine 
*Snohomish County PUD 
*City of Port Angeles 
*Clallam County PUD 
Chelan County PUD 
*City of Tacoma Electric, Water and Rail Utilities 
*Mason County PUD No.3 
*Peninsula Light Company 
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 
*Grays Harbor County PUD 
*Pacific County PUD 
City of Gig Harbor 
Ferry County PUD 
*City of Ellensburg 
City of Redmond 
Grant County PUD 
*Klickitat County PUD 
Cascade Natural Gas 

City of Kennewick 
Daishowa Corporation 
Seattle Water Department 
*Building Management Owners Association 

City of Bellingham 
*US Ecology, Inc. 
*A vista Corporation 

*Cowlitz County PUD 
*City of Cheney 
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Washington (cont'd) 
*City of Yakima 
City of Bellevue 
City of Shoreline 
Douglas County PUD 
AT&T 
WorldCom 
City of Toppenish 
City of Shoreline 
Microsoft 

Wisconsin 
*Wisconsin Manufacturing Association 
Polk-Burnett Cooperative 

Wyoming 
*Lower Valley Power and Light 

CANADA 

*University of Alberta 
*City of Lethbridge 
*City of Red Deer 
City of Medicine Hat 
Ocelot Chemicals 
Aqua Ita 
City of Calgary-Water and Wastewater Utilities 

British Columbia 
*Fortis, BC 

Alcan, Ltd. 
*Princeton Power & Light 
*West Kootenay Power 
*Ministry of Fisheries 
Crows Nest Resources 
Highland Valley Cooperative 
*Council of Forest Industries 
Crestbrook Industries 

Royal Oak Mines 
UtiliCorp Canada 
*Joint Industrial Electric Steering Committee 
*British Columbia Transmission Corporation 
*Terasen Gas 

Manitoba 
*Manitoba Legal Aid 

Northwest Territories 
*Northwest Territories Power Corporation 
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Ontario 
ENERconnect, Inc. 
Ontario Hydro 
*Municipal Electric Association 
North York Hydro 
Toronto Hydro 
*Ottawa Hydro 
Electricity Distributors Association 
*Ontario Energy Board 
*Association of Major Power Companies (AMPCO) 

OTHERS 

American Public Power Association 
American Water Works Association 
California Municipal Utilities Association 
Northwest Public Power Association 

*Prepared Expert Testimony 
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·1· · ·IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·FOR PIERCE COUNTY

·3· ·______________________________________________________

·4· ·EDWARD E. (TED) COATES;· · · ·)
· · ·MICHAEL CROWLEY; MARK BUBENIK )
·5· ·and MARGARET BUBENIK d/b/a· · )
· · ·Steele Manor Apartments;· · · )
·6· ·THOMAS H. OLDFIELD; and· · · ·)
· · ·INDUSTRIAL CUSTOMERS OF· · · ·)
·7· ·NORTHWEST UTILITIES, an Oregon)
· · ·nonprofit corporation,· · · · )
·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · · Plaintiffs,· · · · · )
·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · ·vs.· · · · · · · · · ·) No. 17-2-08907-4
10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · ·CITY OF TACOMA,· · · · · · · ·)
11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·)
· · · · · · · Defendant.· · · · · ·)
12· ·______________________________________________________

13

14· · · · · · · DEPOSITION UPON ORAL EXAMINATION

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·OF

16· · · · · · · · · · · WILLIAM FOSBRE

17· ·______________________________________________________

18

19· · · · · · · · · · · · ·10:05 A.M.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·NOVEMBER 29, 2017

21· · · · · · · 1001 FOURTH AVENUE, SUITE 4200

22· · · · · · · · · · SEATTLE, WASHINGTON

23

24

25· ·REPORTED BY: LESLIE POST, CCR No. 2378



·1· · · ·A.· · Correct.

·2· · · ·Q.· · Can you give me some explanation as to how

·3· ·it came to -- how this memorandum came about, why was

·4· ·it prepared, at whose request, et cetera?

·5· · · ·A.· · Well, the memorandum came about so that we

·6· ·could have one place where all the subjects that had

·7· ·been talked about related to telecommunications could

·8· ·be put down in a risk format to talk about various

·9· ·things that had been addressed by the courts, by the

10· ·FCC, by our City Charter, so it could be used by both

11· ·the Board and Council when they were discussing what

12· ·to do with the Wave proposal and with Click!.

13· · · ·Q.· · Okay.

14· · · ·A.· · It's meant to be a higher level document,

15· ·almost like an Attorney General's opinion, just to

16· ·give people background so when they're deciding on an

17· ·alternative or a course, they will at least know what

18· ·some of the law is that's out there.

19· · · ·Q.· · So when this memo was prepared and signed by

20· ·you and I guess initialed by Ms. Pauli, it was I take

21· ·it distributed in some fashion to the Mayor,

22· ·City Council and Public Utility Board?

23· · · ·A.· · Correct.

24· · · ·Q.· · Was that at a particular meeting or just in

25· ·advance of some meeting or can you remember how it was
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Req.#12146 

RESOLUTION NO. 37730 

A RESOLUTION relating to utility property; declaring certain property owned by 
2 the Department of Public Utilities, Light Division, to be surplus pursuant 

to RCW 35.94.040. 
3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

WHEREAS the Department of Ptiblic Utilities, Light Division 

(d.b.a. 'Tacoma Power") has owned and operated nine electrical substation 

sites on various properties located throughout the City and Pierce County, and 

WHEREAS each substation site is approximately 0.04 to 0.5 acres and 

was utilized for supporting the 4.2 KV electrical distribution system, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has upgraded the distribution system and 

determined it no longer needs the smaller 4.2 KV substations or properties, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has removed all equipment from the sites, 

determined that the properties are no longer needed for continued utility 

services, and the property is surplus to its needs, and 

WHEREAS RCW 35.94.040 requires the City to determine by resolution 

of its legislative authority that lands origin~lly acquired for public utility purposes 

are surplus to the City's needs and are not required for providing continued 

public utility service, and 

WHEREAS the Pub/le Utility Board recommends the City Council 

approve the declaration of surplus; Now, Therefore, 

- 1 -
res 12146.doc-CEM/iad 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

That the nine substation properties located throughout the City and 

Pierce County, as described in the attached Exhibit "A," are declared surplus to 

the City's needs and are not r.equired for continued public utility service, 

pursuant to RCW 35.94.040. 

Adopted FEB 1 0 Z009 

~~ 
Mayor 

Attest: 

II~~ 
City Clerk 

12 

13 s to form: 

14 

15 
Assistant City Attorney 

16 
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21 
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24 

25 

26 
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RESOLUTION NO. U-10270 

A RESOLUTION declaring utility-owned real property surplus to the needs of 
Tacoma Power. 

WHEREAS the City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, Light 

Division (d.b.a. "Tacoma Power") has owned and operated nine electrical 

substation sites on various properties (as further described in Exhibit A) located 

throughout the City of Tacoma and Pierce County, Washington, and 

WHERE;AS each substation site is approximately 0.4 to 0.5 acres, and 

was utilized for supporting the 4.2 KV electrical distribution system, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has upgraded the distribution system and 

determined it no:longer needs the smaller 4.2 KV substations or properties, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has removed all equipment from the sites 

and remediated as necessary to ensure applicable environmental standards 

have been met, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has determined that the properties are no 

longer needed for continued utility services, and has declared them surplus 

property to its needs, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power requests that the Utility Board and Tacoma 

City Council approve the Declaration of Surplus of these properties in 

anticipation of their eventual sale; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

That the nine substation properties (as further described in Exhibit A) 

owned by Tacoma Power and located in the City of Tacoma and Pierce County, 

1 
2CC9\Re9cl• .. tll)l: ls\U- ~0270 Sur;:ifus Si.tslat.on:s 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

Washington are found not to be essential for continued effective utility service 

by Tacoma Power and is properly declared surplus property and excess to 

Tacoma Power needs. 

· BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council is requested to 

declare the nine substation.properties (as further described in Exhibit A) owned 

by Tacoma Pow~r and located in the City of Tacoma and Pierce County, 

Washington as surplus to the needs of tl:ie City and Tacoma Power. 

Approved as to form and legality: 

William C. Fosbre 
Chief Deputy City Attorney 

Elizabeth Larson 

Laura Fox 
Chair 

Peter Thein 
Secretary 

13 Clerk 
Adopted_~1/=28~/~09"-----
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TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

3628 South 35th Street 

Tacoma, Washington 98409-3192 

! ________ ------~----· -·· · ·--- ----

December 15, 2008 

To the Chairman and Members of the Public Utility Board and 
The Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Tacoma Power hereby requt?sts that the Public.Utility Board and Tacoma City Council approve 
declaring the following nine substations surplus to the needs of Tacoma Power. 

1) Adams Substation 6) Lincoln Park Substation 
2) Centennial Substation 7) Parkland Substation 
3) Downing Substation 8) Ruston Substation 
4) Fairmont Substation 9) Warner Substation 
5) Junett Substation 

The -sites were acquired at various times and were mainly utilized for supporting a 4.2 KV 
distribution system. These substations were no longer required once the entire electrical 
distribution system was upgraded. The properties have been decommissioned and all of the 
equipment removed. Additionally, the parcels have been inspected and remediated as 
necessary to ensure applicable environmental standards are met prior to sale. 

The properties are located throughout the City of Tacoma and range in size from 0,.04 acre to 
nearly 0.50 acre. The sites have been appraised by GPA Valuation in order to establish a fair 
market value, these valuations will be utilized to set the minimum bids for the disposition of the 
property in accordance with the best interests of Tacoma Power and established City 
procedures. · 

I hereby recommend favorable consideration of this matter-by the Public Utility Board and City 
Council. 

Sincerely, 

/#?~ 
~~ines 

Director of Utilities 

~ = TACOMA 
W ATER 

"'il!"'tl'"l!JI" 
"'ll""JIW(OI· 
~-

~ 

T A COMA 
RAI l 
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Declaration of Surplus Property 
Certification 

Various light Division Properties 

TPU Reference: P2008-209/218 

In accordance with Tacoma Power Staff Procedures A-3, Disposal of Light 
Division Real Property, it is herein recommended that certain tracts of land, listed 
below, be declared surplus to the needs of Tacoma Public Utilities and the Light 
Division. 

1. Adams Substation, 1920 Adams Street N, Tacoma 
2. Centennial Substation, 543 N Stadium Way, Tacoma 
3. Downing Substation, 1801 N Orchard Street, Tacoma 
4. Fairmont Substation, 4924 N 31st Street, Tacoma 
5. Junett Substation, 3008 N 16~h Street, Tacoma 
6. Lincoln Park Substation, 1009 S 35th Street, Tacoma 
7. Parkland Substation, 1O1 127th Street E, Tacoma 
8. Ruston Substation, 5001 N Visscher Street, Tacoma 
9. Warner Substation, 3404 S 45th Street, Tacoma 

The majority of the sites were the sites o·f substations that supported a 4.2 KV 
. distribution system. These substations were no longer required once the entire 
electrical distribution system was upgraded. ·The substations on the properties 
have been decommissioned and the equipment has been removed. 

An appraisal has been done on all of the properties. Additionally, the properties 
have been inspected and remediated as necessary to ensure applicable 
environmental standards are met prior to sale. 

Tacoma Power management and .staff have reviewed these properties and 
determined they are surplus to both its current and future needs. Tacoma Power 
therefore finds no reason to retain these properties and has approved the 
proposed recommendation for declaring the properties surplus and the eventual 
sale of those properties. 

The real properties to be declared surplus are described on exhibit "/4..". 

, .. . ' .. .. _ ... ---·--·-------··--····-· ··-- ·--·- -- " . -·-· -··-- ··- .. ---- . ..... ... ___ - ---- -·-·- - --·-·-·- ·---·- - -·"' ···--· ····-. - - ·-· ·-· . - .. ··- - . .. 



Said tracts of land meets the operational, legal and envi ronmental conditions of 
surplus property, and IS HEREBY DECLARED SURPLUS to the needs of 
Tacoma Power on this day of , 2008. 

APPROVED: 

WlT!iam A. Gaines 
Director of Utilities 

REVIEWED: 

5:?-,hQ \b-J_,J2_._ 
OaJtWard . 
Transmission & Distribution Manager 

REVIEWED: 

--~~~~·~~~~~~~~ 

Russell Post 
Environmental Services 

REVIEWED: 

APPROVED: 

Q· ~ \A 

~·{.µ~· 
Gary EG;1 field ~ 
Superintendent, Tacoma Power 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Bill Fosbre 
Interim Chief Assistant City Attorney 

REVIEWED: 

M,~~~ 
Real Property Services 

~· 1 ·on 
Chief Surveyor 



IEXH!BIT II A'p 

SUBSTATION LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 

1. Ada_ms Substatjon 

The East 170 feel of the North 120 feel oi Block 102, Amended Map of Second School Land Addition, 
according to the plat recorded in Book 7 of Plats at page 79, records of Pierce County, Washington 

2. Centennial Substation 

Commencing at the intersection of the Southerly line of Stadium Way and the Westerly line of North 6th 
Street produced, which is the Nortlleasterly corner of Block 3604, Map of New Tacoma, W.T.; 
thence running Northeasterly along the Westerly line of North 6th Street produced 80 feet; 
thence Southeasterly at right angles 55 feet along the Northeasterly line of Stadium Way to the point of 
beginning 
thence continuing Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line of Stadium Way 25 feet; 
thence Northeasterly at right angles 72 feet more or less to a point on the Southwesterly line of the 
right-of-way of the Northern Pacific Railway Company; 
thence Northwesterly along said right-of-way line 26 feet more or less; 
thence Southwesterly·at right angles to Stadium Way 78 feet more or less to the point of beginning 

3. Downing Substation 

The West 100 feet of the South 130 feet of Block 106, Amended Map of Second School Land Addition, 
according to the plat recorded in Book 7 of Plats at page 79, in Pierce County, Washington 

4. Fairmont Substation 

Lots 11 and 12, Block 1309, Fairmount Park Adclltron to Tacoma, according to tlie plat recorded In Book 
4 of Plats at page 7, in Pierce County, Washington 

5. Junnett Substation 

Lots ·1, 2, 3 and 4. Block 6. Baker's First A.ddition to Tacoma, according to the pl2.1 recorded in Book 2 of 
Plats at paGe 118, .in Pierce County, 'Nashington 



6. Llnc2ln Park Sybstation 

A portion of lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Block 17, Lincoln Park Addition to the City of Tacoma, according to the 
plat recorded in Book 7 of Plats at page 111, described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 8 Township 20 North Range 3 East of the VV.M. in 
Pierce County, Washington; 
thence SoL1th 89° 45' 45" West along the South boundary of said Section 1303.00 feet to the Southwest 
corner of said Plat of Lincoln Park Addition to ihe City of Tacoma; 
thence North 00" 05' 15" East along the West boundary of said plat a distance of 30 feet to tr1e true point 
of beginning; 
thence continuing North 00° 05' 15" East along said West boundary a distance of 119.5 feet; 
thence South 89° 54' 45" East 79.33 feet; 
thence South 00° 50' 22" West 1 04 .33 feet; 
t11ence on a curve to the right having a radius of 15 feet tl~ro.ugh an angle of as• 55' 23" to a point 30 feet 
north of the South boundary of said plat and North 89° 45' 45" East of the point of beginning; 
thence South 89° 45' 45" West 63.04 feet to the point of beginning 

7. Parkland Substation 

The South 50 feet of lot 1, Rosted1's Subdivision, according to tile plat recorded in Boo!< 6 of Plats at 
page 81 in Pierce County, Washington 

8. · Ruston Substation 

Lots 21, 22 and 23, Block 2, Defiance Park Addition, according to the Plat recorded in Book 5 of plats, 
page(s) 29, in Pierce County, Washington. 

9. Warner Substation 

Lots 1 and 2, Block 41, Cascade Park Addition to Tacoma, according to the plat recorded in Book 1 
page 120, in Pierce County, Washington 
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Tacoma 

TO: 
FROM: 
COPY: 
SUBJECT: 
DATE: 

SUMMARY: 

City of Tacoma 

Mayor and City Council 
William A. Gaines, Director of Utilities/CEO 
Elizabeth Pauli, City Manager, and City Clerk 
Resolution -- Set Public Hearing - October 24, 2017 
September 27, 2017 

City Council Action Memorandum 

To set Tuesday, November 7, 2017, as the date for a Public Hearing regarding the sale of approximately 
1,875 SF of Tacoma Power property for $72,100. 

STRATEGIC POLICY PRIORITY: 
• Assure outstanding stewardship of the natural and built environment. 
• Encourage and promote an efficient and effective government, which is fiscally sustainable and 

guided by engaged residents. 

This request supports the above policy priorities by allowing retention of the property in a substantially 
native condition, and offering the opportunity for public input on this real estate transaction_ 

BACKGROUND: 
This vacant property was declared surplus to Tacoma Power's needs in 2009 by Tacoma Public Utility 
Board Resolution No. U-10270 and City Council Resolution No. 37730, along with a Director's 
i\Iemorandum. Through an inforrnal bid process in 2017, a neighbor was the successful bidder and will 
purchase the property for $72, I 00. A restrictive covenant will be included in the quit claim deed 
prohibiting development of the property. 

The sale is subject to both Public Utility Board and City Council approval. The terrns and conditions of 
the purchase and sale agreement have been approved by Real Property Services and reviewed by the 
City's Legal Department and is now routing for signature. If approved, the sale is expected to close by 
November 30, 2017. 

AL TER.t"IA TIVES: 
The alternatives to disposing of the property through the bid/sale process, as allowed under TMC 
l .06.280f, are to either retain ownership or to dispose via a negotiated disposition. Tacoma Power does 
not have a need for continued fee ownership of the property, and if it were to retain ownership there 
would be continued management and administrative costs. The informal bid/sale process was determined 
to be the most efficient disposition method, as the most likely purchaser is a neighbor and the prope1ty 
would likely not appeal to most other market participants. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Tacoma Power and Renl Property Services recommend that the City Council set a Puhlic Heming in 
accordance with RCW 35 .94.040, to be held Novemba 7, 2017 to receive public comment regarding the 
proposed sale of approximately l ,875 SF of Tacomn Power real property located in Tacoma, WA. Once 
the Public Hearing bas been conducted, a separate re4uest will bi:! presented to the City Council for the 
approval of the sale and conveyance of the real property. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to setting this public hearin~. 
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RES(lLUTION NO. U-10961 

A RESOLUTION related to Tacoma Power; authorizing a negotiated sale 
of surplus real property to Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman. 

WHEREAS the City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, Light 

Division (d.b.a. "Tacoma Power"), in 2009, by Utility Board Resolution U-10270, 

declared surplus approximately 1,875 SF of property located at 543 North 

Stadium Way, in Tacoma, Washington ("Property"), and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Power has negotiated an offer to sell the property to 

Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman, pending Public Utility Board and City Council 

approval, in the amount of $72, 100; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PUBLIC UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

Sec. 1. That the negotiated sale of approximately 1,875 SF of property, 

located at 543 North Stadium Way, in Tacoma, Washington, as more fully 

described in the documents on file with the Clerk of the Board, to Ronald L. and 

Linda R. Coleman, in exchange for payment of $72, 100, is hereby approved. 

Sec 2. That the City Council is requested to hold a public hearing on this 

matter pursuant to RCW 35.04.040, and thereafter approve this recommended 

negotiated sale and authorize the proper officers of the City of Tacoma to 

execute all documents necessary to perfect the sale, substantially in the same 

1 
201 l'Reso\utions Pov.er'tJ-10~61 S"le of Surplus Property to Ronald L. and Lnda R. Coleman 



Request for Board meeting 

of October 11, 2017 

CITY OF TACOMA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION Date: September 27, 2017 

INSTRUCTIONS: File request in the Office of the Director of Utilities as soon as possible but not later than nine working days prior to the 
Board rnectin at wh!ch it is to be introduced. Completion instructions are contained in Administrative Polic POL-104. 

1. Summary title for Utility Board agenda: (not lo exceed twenty-five words) 

Authorize the sale of approximately 1,875 SF of Tacoma Power property to Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman for $71,200 . 

2. A resolution is requested to: (brief description of action to be taken, by whom, where, cost, etc.) 

Authorize the sale of approximately 1,875 SF of Tacoma Power property - identified as Pierce County Assessor Tax Parcel No. 
0321322021 - located at 543 North Stadium Way, in Tacoma, WA, to Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman for $72,100 . 

3 . Summarized reason for resolution: 

This vacant property was declared surplus to Tacoma Power's needs in 2009 by Tacoma Public Utility Board Resolution No. U-10270 
and City Council Resolution No. 37730, along with a Director's Memorandum. Through an informal bid process in 2017, a neighbor 
was the successful bidder and will purchase the property for $72, 100. A restrictive covenant will be included in the quit claim deed 
prohibiting development of the property. 

The sale is subject to both Public Utility Board and City Council approval. The terms and conditions of the purchase and sale 
agreement have been approved by Real Property Services and reviewed by the City's Legal Department and is now routing for 
signature. If approved, the sale is expected to close by November 30, 2017. 

4. Attachments: 

a. Director's Memo 
b. Aerial Photos 
c. Purchase and Sale Agreement 
d. 2009 documents for Declaration of Surplus Property 
e. CAM Request to set Public Hearing 

s. D Funds available r2l Proposed action has no budgetary impact 

6. Deviations requiring special waivers: 

Chris Robinson, Power 
Su erintendent!COO 

Approved: 

Wt/Ii · 



3628 South 35111 Street 

Tacoma, Washington 98409-3192 

POWER 
fACOMA PUILIC urll.ITlliS 

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

Date: September 27, 2017 

To: William A Gaines, Director of Utilities/CEO 

From: Chris Robinson, Power Superintendent/COO (1,f 

Subject: Disposition of Centennial Substation Property 

Recommendation: 
Tacoma Power requests that you authorize the sale of its property known as the Centennial 
Substation site identified as Pierce County Assessor Tax Parcel No. 0321322021, consisting of 
approximately 1,875 SF of land, located at 543 North Stadium Way in Tacoma, WA to Ronald L. 
and Linda R. Coleman for $72, 100. 

Background: 
This vacant property was declared surplus to Tacoma Power's needs in 2009 by Tacoma Public 
Utility Board 'Resolution No. U-10270 and City Council Resolution No. 37730, along with a 
Director's Men:iorandum. Through an informal bid.process in 2017, a neighbor was the 
successful bidder and will purchase the property for $72, 100. A restrictive covenant will be 
included in the quit claim deed prohibiting development of the property. 

Your approval is requested to submit this matter to the Public Utility Board for consideration and 
approval. Upon approval from the Public Utility Board, Real Property Services will hold a Public 
Hearing and seek final approval of the sale from the Tacoma City Council. If approved, the sale 
is expected to close by November 30, 2017. 

APPROVED: 

o~ 
William A Gaines 
Director of Utilities/CEO 



Pierce County Tax Parcel No. 032132202·1 

543 North Stadium Way, Tacoma, WA 98403 



Pierce County Tax Parcel No. 0321322021 

543 North Stadium Way, Tacoma, WA 98403 



CITY OF TACOMA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

LIGHT DIVISION 
REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

AGREEMENT NO. A3145 

Reference No.: P2014-114 
Seller: City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, 

Light Division, (d.b.a. Tacoma Power) 
Buyer: Ronald L. Coleman and Linda R. Coleman, H/W 
Abbreviated 
Legal Description: Portion NW%, S32, T21N, R03E, W.M., Pierce Co., WA 
County: Pierce 
Tax Parcel No.: 0321322021 

This REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is 
entered into as of August 31, 2017 between the CITY OF TACOMA, DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC UTILITIES, LIGHT DIVISION (d.b.a. Tacoma Power), a first class municipal corporation 
("Seller"), and Ronald L. Coleman and Linda R. Coleman, husband and wife ("Buyer"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain real property more particularly described in 
Section 1 below. 

WHEREAS, Buyer desires to preserve the property in substantially the same condition as 
it currently exists and has therefore agreed to accept title with a covenant restricting development 
of the property. 

WHEREAS, Buyer desires to purchase from Seller, and Seller desires to sell to Buyer the 
real property on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this 
Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Buyer agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Real Property. Seller agrees to sell and convey to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase 
from Seller, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the real property 
located at 543 North Stadium Way 98403 in the City of Tacoma, County of Pierce and State of 
Washington, more particularly described as follows: 

{See attached legal description Exhibit" A"} 

Also known as Pierce County Tax Parcel Number 0321322021 (the "Property"). 

2. Deposit. Buyer has delivered to Seller an earnest money deposit in the amount of 
Seventy-Two Thousand and One Hundred U.S. Dollars ($72,100.00) (the "Deposit"}, the full 
purchase price of the Property. The Deposit will be held by the Seller pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement. Any interest that accrues on the Deposit will be for the benefit of Seller, and if 
Buyer forfeits the Deposit to Seller pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, then all interest 
accrued on the Deposit will be paid to Seller. 

3. Purchase Price. The total purchase price for the Property (the "Purchase Price") will be 
Seventy-Two Thousand and One Hundred U.S. Dollars ($.72,100.00), which shall be deposited as 



specified above. The Purchase Price, consisting of the Deposit, will be paid to Seller in cash at 
Closing. 

4. litle to Property. 

4.1 Conveyance. At closing Seller shall convey to Buyer fee simple title to the 
Property by duly executed and acknowledged quit claim deed (the "Deed") with a 
covenant restricting development of the Property. 

4.2 Preliminary Commitment and Title Policy. Buyer, at Buyer's expense, has 
received a preliminary title commitment and will seek, also at Buyer's expense, to have 
issued an owner's policy of title insurance insuring Buyer's title to the property. 

4.3 Condition of Title. Buyer hereby accepts the condition of title to be conveyed via 
the Deed, accepts all encumbrances to title. and waives the right to advise Seller by 
written notice of any disapproved encumbrances to title. 

5. Conditions to Closing. 

5.1 Tacoma Public Utility Board and Tacoma City Council Aoproval. This 
Agreement. and the transaction contemplated hereby, must be duly approved by 
the Tacoma Public Utility Board and the Tacoma City Council prior to closing. If 
said approvals are not obtained, this Agreement will terminate, and the Deposit, 
less any costs advanced or committed for Buyer as authorized herein, or other 
costs subsequently agreed to in writing, will be returned immediately to Buyer, all 
documents and other funds will be returned to the party who deposited them, and 
neither party will have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement, 
except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.1 
will obligate the Seller to obtain City Council approval beyond the ordinary course 
of City procedure. 

5.2 Buver's Indemnification. Buyer agrees to assume all liability for and to defend, 
indemnify and save Seller harmless from all liability and expense (including 
reasonable costs and attorneys' fees) in connection with all claims, suits and 
actions of every name, kind and description brought against Seller or its agents 
or employees by any person or entity as a result of or on account of injuries or 
damages to persons, entities and/or property received or sustained, arising out 
of, in connection with or as a result of the acts or omissions of Buyer, or its 
agents or employees in exercising its rights under this Agreement, except for 
claims caused by Seller's sole negligence. 

5.3 Buyer Feasibility Study. Buyer hereby waives the right to conduct inspections or 
feasibility studies related to the Property and will take title to the Property on an 
as-is basis. 

6. Condition of the Property. 

6.1 "As Is" Buyer acknowledges that the Property will be purchased under this 
Agreement in an "AS IS" CONDITION WITH ALL FAUL TS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATIONS, THE CONDITION OR STABILITY OF THE SOILS OR GROUND 
WATERS, THE PRESENCE OR ABSENCE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ON OR 
UNDER THE PROPERTY, SOLELY IN RELIANCE ON BUYER'S OWN 
INVESTIGATION, EXAMINATION, INSPECTION ANALYSIS AND EVALUATION OF 
THE PROPERTY. As of the date this Agreement is signed by both parties, Seller has 
made no representations and warranties, express or implied, regarding the Property, 
excluding those representations and warranties expressly provided in this Agreement. 
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Seller shall surrender the Property in as good condition, except for normal wear and tear, 
as exists on the date of this Agreement. Seller agrees that it will not damage nor commit 
waste on the Property between the date of acceptance of this Agreement and the date of 
closing. 

6.2 Evaluations. Buyer agrees that it will rely on its own evaluations of the Property, 
with the exception of written documentation, including, but not limited to any disclosures 
required by law, provided to it by Seller, to determine the suitability of the Property for 
Buyer's intended use. However, Buyer's determination of non-suitability of the Property 
for Buyer's intended use shall not be a bona fide reason for termination of this 
Agreement. 

7. Closing. This transaction will be closed outside of escrow. The closing will be held at the 
office of the Seller on or before November 30, 2017 (the "Closing Date"). If Closing does not 
occur on or before the Closing Date, or any later date mutually agreed to in writing by Seller and 
Buyer, Seller will immediately terminate the sale and forward the Deposit to Buyer. When notified 
by the Seller, Buyer will deposit with Seller without delay all instruments and monies required to 
complete the transaction in accordance with this Agreement. "Closing," for the purpose of this 
Agreement, is defined as the date that all documents are executed, the sale proceeds are 
available for disbursement to the Seller, and legal title passes to the Buyer. Seller agrees to 
provide the original deed and executed excise tax affidavit, if required, to First American Title, 
attention Bruce Judson, 4707 South 191

h Street, Suite 101, Tacoma, Washington 98405 to effect 
recording of the deed and filing of the excise tax affidavit. 

8. Closing Costs and Prorations. Seller shall pay state of Washington real estate excise 
taxes, if any, applicable to the sale. Seller shall pay the cost of recording the deed . Property 
taxes and assessments for the current year, water and other utility charges, if any, shall be 
prorated as of the Closing Date unless otherwise agreed. Seller is a property tax exempt 
organization pursuant to R.C.W. 84.36.010, and therefore property taxes will only be due from 
Buyer for its ownership from and after the Closing Date. 

9. C@sualty Loss. Seller shall promptly notify Buyer of any event prior to the Closing Date 
which causes damage to or destruction of any portion of the Property. If Buyer and Seller cannot 
come to an agreement regarding any such damage to or destruction of the Property, including the 
settlement of any insurance claims, then Buyer and Seller will each have the right to terminate 
this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the other party within twenty (20) days 
after receipt of actual notice of such casualty loss. Upon exercise of such termination election by 
either party, this Agreement will terminate, and the Deposit will be returned to Buyer. 

10. Possession. Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Buyer on the Closing Date. 
Seller shall remove any and all personal property from the Property on or before the Closing 
Date, unless specifically authorized in writing by Buyer. 

11. Eyent§ of Defavlt. In the event Buyer falls, without legal excuse to complete the 
purchase of the Property, then that portion of the Deposit which does not exceed five percent 
(5%} of the Purchase Price shall be forfeited to Seller as the sole and exclusive remedy available 
to Seller for such failure. In the event Seller fails, without legal excuse, to complete the sale of 
the Property, Buyer shall be entitled to immediate return of its Deposit, and may pursue any 
remedies available to it in law or equity, including specific performance. 

12. Notices. Any notice under this Agreement must be in writing and be personally delivered, 
delivered by recognized overnight courier service, given by mail or via facsimile. E-mail 
transmission of notice shall not be effective. All notices must be addressed to the parties at the 
following addresses, or at such other addresses as the parties may from time to time direct in 
writing: 
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Seller: 

Buyer: 

Tacoma Public Utilities - Real Property Services 
ABS - 2"d Floor 
3628 S. 35th Street 
Tacoma, WA 98409 
Facsimile No.: (253) 502-8539 

Ronald L. Coleman and Linda R. Coleman 
602 North Stadium Way 
Tacoma, WA 98403 
rcoleman@dpearson.com 
Facsimile No.: (253) 238-5158 

Any notice will be deemed to have been given, when personally delivered, and if delivered by 
courier service, one business day after deposit with the courier service, and if mailed, two 
business days after deposit in the U.S. mail, and if delivered by facsimile, the same day as 
verified. 

13. Counterpsirts: Faxed Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts and by different parties hereto, each of which counterpart when so executed shall 
have the same force and effect as if that party had signed all other counterparts. Facsimile 
transmitted signatures shall be fully binding and effective for all purposes. 

14. Brokers and Finders. In the event any broker or other person makes a claim for a 
commission or finder's fee based upon the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, the party 
through whom said broker or other person makes its claim shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
other party from said claim and all liabilities, costs and expenses related thereto, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, which may be incurred by such other party in connection with such 
claim. This indemnity shall survive the closing of this transaction. 

15. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument 
executed by Seller and Buyer. 

16. Continuation and Survival of Representations and Warranties . All representations and 
warranties by the respective parties contained in this Agreement or made in writing pursuant to 
this Agreement are intended to and will remain true and correct as of the time of Closing, will be 
deemed to be material, and will survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the 
delivery of the Deed and transfer of title for a period of 6 (six) months whereupon they shall 
terminate. Such representations and warranties, however, are not assignable and do not run with 
the land, except as may be expressly provided herein or contained in a written instrument signed 
by the party to be charged. 

17. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the state of Washington. 

18. Attorney Fees. If either party fails to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement 
or if a dispute arises concerning the meaning or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, 
the defaulting party or the party not prevailing in the dispute, as the case may be, shall pay any 
and all costs and expenses incurred by the other party in enforcing or establishing its rights under 
this Agreement, including without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorney fees incurred in 
connection with any federal, state or bankruptcy proceeding. 

19. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of all acts required to 
be done and performed by the parties hereto. 
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20. FIRPTA. The Seller will prepare a certification or equivalent that Seller is not a "foreign 
person" within the meaning of the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act ("FIRPTA"), and 
Seller agrees to sign this certification. 

21. Waiver. Neither Seller's nor Buyer's waiver of the breach of any covenant under this 
Agreement will be construed as a waiver of the breach of any other covenants or as a waiver of a 
subsequent breach of the same covenant. 

22. Nonmerger. The terms and provisions of this Agreement, including without limitation, all 
indemnification obligations, will not merge in, but will survive, the closing of the transaction 
contemplated under the Agreement. 

23. Assignment. Buyer shall not assign this Agreement without Seller's prior written consent. 
which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

24. Negotiation and Constructjon. This Agreement and each of its terms and provisions are 
deemed to have been explicitly negotiated between the parties, and the language in all parts of 
this Agreement will, in all cases, be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or 
against either party. 

25. Additional Acts. Except as otherwise provided herein, in addition to the acts and deeds 
recited herein and contemplated to be performed, executed and/or delivered by any party hereto, 
the parties agree to perform, execute and/or deliver, or cause to be performed, executed and/or 
delivered, any and all such further acts, deeds and assurances, which may reasonably be 
required to give effect to the Agreement contemplated herein. 

26. Waiyer of RCW 64.06 Disclosure. Buyer and Seller acknowledge that the Property may 
constitute "Commercial Real Estate" or "Residential Real Property" as defined in RCW 64.06.005. 
Buyer waives receipt of the seller disclosure statement required under RCW 64.06 for 
transactions involving the sale of such real property, except for the section entitled 
"Environmental." The Environmental section of the seller disclosure statement (the "Disclosure 
Statement") will be provided to Buyer at least three business days prior to Closing. 

27. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
with respect to the purchase and sale of the Property, and supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings, oral or written, between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set 
forth above. 

SELLER: BUYER: 

William A. Gaines, Date Ronald L. Coleman 
Director of Utilities I CEO 

Chris Robinson Date Linda R. Coleman 
Power Superintendent I COO 

Approved as to form: 

Office of City Attorney Date 

City of Tacoma Review 

TACOMA POWER 

Dolores Stegeman Date 
Transmission and Distribution Power Section Manager 

Joseph A. Wilson Date 
Transmission and Distribution Power Section Assistant Manager 

Khanh Thai Date 
Transmission and Distribution Power Supervisor Ill 

Jeff Singleton 
Chief Surveyor 

FINANCE: 

Andrew Cherullo 
Director of Finance 

Date 

Date 
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EXHIBIT "A" 

Legal Description 

Commencing at the intersection of the southerly line of Stadium Way and the westerly line of 
North 61

h Street, produced, which is the northeasterly corner of Block 3604, Map of New 
Tacoma, W.T.; thence running northeasterly along the westerly line of North 5th Street 
produced, 80 feet; thence southeasterly at right angles 55 feet along the northeasterly line of 
Stadium Way to the point of beginning; thence continuing southeasterly along said northeasterly 
line of Stadium Way, 25 feet; thence northeasterly at right angles 72 feet more or less to a point 
on the southwesterly line of the right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway Company; thence 
northwesterly along said right of way line 26 feet more or less; thence southwesterly at right 
angles to Stadium Way 78 feet more or less to the point of beginning. 

Situate in the City of Tacoma, County of Pierce, State of Washington. 

Also known as Pierce County Assessor Tax Parcel Number 0321322021. 

SUBJECT TO a perpetual covenant running with the land prohibiting development and 
occupation with permanent structures intended for human habitation or use. Excluded from this 
prohibition are landscaping and utilities. 



Exhibit 

REAL PROPERTY DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

(ENVIRONMENTAL ONLY) 

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE SELLER 

Please complete the following form. Do not leave any spaces blank. If the question 
clearly does not apply to the property write "NA." If the answer is "yes" to any * items, 
please explain on attached sheets. Please refer to the line number(s) of the question(s) 
when you provide your explanation(s). For your protection you must date and sign each 
page of this disclosure statement and each attachment. Delivery of the disclosure 
statement must occur not later than five business days, unless otherwise agreed, after 
mutual acceptance of a written contract to purchase between a buyer and a seller. 

NOTICE TO THE BUYER 

THE FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES ARE MADE Y EL l;R A O\,JT THE CONDITION 
OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5Y3 .tl . . " E PROPERTY"), 
OR AS LEGALLY DESCRIBED ON ATTACHED EXHIBIT __ 

SELLER MAKES THE FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES OF EXISTING MATERIAL FACTS 
OR MATERIAL DEFECTS TO BUYER BASED ON SELLER'S ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE 
OF THE PROPERTY AT THE TIME SELLER COMPLETES THIS DISCLOSURE 
STATEMENT . UNLESS YOU AND SELLER OTHERWISE AGREE IN WRITING, YOU 
HAVE THREE BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE DAY SELLER OR SELLER'S AGENT 
DELIVERS THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT TO YOU TO RESCIND THE 
AGREEMENT BY DELIVERING A SEPARATELY SIGNED WRITTEN STATEMENT OF 
RESCISSION TO SELLER OR SELLER'S AGENT. IF THE SELLER DOES NOT GIVE 
YOU A COMPLETED DISCLOSURE STATEMENT, THEN YOU MAY WAIVE THE 
RIGHT TO RESCIND PRIOR TO OR AFTER THE TIME YOU ENTER INTO A SALE 
AGREEMENT. 

THE FOLLOWING ARE DISCLOSURES MADE BY SELLER AND ARE NOT THE 
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY REAL ESTATE LICENSEE OR OTHER PARTY. THIS 
INFORMATION IS FOR DISCLOSURE ONLY AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE A PART 
OF ANY WRITTEN AGREEMENT BETWEEN BUYER AND SELLER. 

FOR A MORE COMPREHENSIVE EXAMINATION OF THE SPECIFIC CONDITION OF 
THIS PROPERTY YOU ARE ADVISED TO OBTAIN AND PAY FOR THE SERVICES OF 
QUALIFIED EXPERTS TO INSPECT THE PROPERTY, WHICH MAY lt'.ICL.UDE, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, 
PLUMBERS, ELECTRICIANS, ROOFERS, BUILDING INSPECTORS, ON-SITE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT INSPECTORS, OR STRUCTURAL PEST INSPECTORS. 
THE PROSPECTIVE BUYER AND SELLER MAY WISH TO OBTAIN PROFESSIONAL 
ADVICE OR tNSPECTIONS OF THE PROPERTY OR TO PROVIDE APPROPRIATE 
PROVISIONS IN A CONTRACT BETWEEN THEM WITH RESPECT TO ANY ADVICE, 
INSPECTION, DEFECTS, OR WARRANTIES. 
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/ 
Seller 0 is/ 121 is not occupying the property. 

I. SELLER'S DISCLOSURES: 

*If you answer "Yes" to a question with an asterisk(*), please explain your answer and attach 
documents, if available and not otherwise publicly recorded. If necessary, use an attached 
sheet. 

ENVIRONMENTAL YES NO DON'T 

*A. Has there been any flooding, standing water, or D D 
KNOW 

l2l 
/ . 

drainage problems on the property that affect the 
property or access to the property? 

izr"' *B. Is there any material damage to the property from D D 
fire, wind, floods, beach movements, earthquake, 
expansive soils, or landslides? 

/ 
*C. Are there any shorelines, wetlands, floodplains, or D D [2] 

critical areas on the property? 

~ *D. Are there any substances, materials, or products D D 
in or on the property that may be environmental 
concerns, such as asbestos, formaldehyde, radon 
gas, lead-based paint, fuel or chemical storage 
tanks, or contaminated soil or water? / •e Is there any soil or groundwater contamination? D 0 v *F Has the property been used as a legal or illegal D 0 
dumping site? / ' 

*G Has the property been used as an illegal drug D D [a 
manufacturing site? 

ca/ *H Does any part of the property contain fill dirt, D D 
waste, or other fill material? 

[21/ *I Has the property been used for commercial or D D 
industrial purposes? if *J Are there any radio towers that cause interference D D 
with cellular telephone reception? 

The foregoing answers and attached explanations (if any) are complete and correct to the 
best of my/our knowledge and I/we have received a copy hereof. I/we authorize all of my/our 
real estate licensees, if any, to deliver a copy of this disclosu7 ent to othe ~ eal estate 
licensees and all prospective buyers of the property. 

/ ~~ 

DATE: ~-/?-!"! SELLER 
' 

DATE: SELLER 
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NOTICE TO BUYER 

INFORMATION REGARDING REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS MAY BE OBTAINED 
FROM LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES. THIS NOTICE IS INTENDED ONLY 
TO INFORM YOU OF WHERE TO OBTAIN THIS INFORMATION AND IS NOT AN 
INDICATION OF THE PRESENCE OF REGISTERED SEX OFFENDERS. 

BUYER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A. Buyer hereby acknowledges that: Buyer has a duty to pay diligent attention to any 
material defects that are known to Buyer or can be known to Buyer by utilizing 
diligent attention and observation. 

B. The disclosures set forth in this statement and in any amendments to this 
statement are made only by the Seller and not by any real estate licensee or other 
party. 

C. Buyer acknowledges that, pursuant to RCW 64.06.050(2), real estate licensees 
are not liable for inaccurate information provided by Seller, except to the extent 
that real estate licensees know of such inaccurate information. 

D. This information is for disclosure only and is not intended to be a part of the written 
agreement between the Buyer and Seller. 

E. Buyer (which term includes all persons signing the "Buyer's acceptance" portion of 
this disclosure statement below) has received a copy of this Disclosure Statement 
(including attachments, if any) bearing Seller's signature. 

DISCLOSURES CONTAINED IN THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT ARE PROVIDED BY 
SELLER BASED ON SELLER'S ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF THE PROPERTY AT THE 
TIME SELLER COMPLETES THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. UNLESS BUYER AND 
SELLER OTHERWISE AGREE IN WRITING, BUYER SHALL HAVE THREE BUSINESS 
DAYS FROM THE DAY SELLER OR SELLER'S AGENT DELIVERS THIS DISCLOSURE 
STATEMENT TO RESCIND THE AGREEMENT BY DELIVERING A SEPARATELY 
SIGNED WRITTEN STATEMENT OF RESCISSION TO SELLER OR SELLER'S AGENT. 
YOU MAY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO RESCIND PRIOR TO OR AFTER THE TIME YOU 
ENTER INTO A SALE AGREEMENT. 

BUYER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS DISCLOSURE 
STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE HEREIN ARE 
THOSE OF THE SELLER ONLY, AND NOT OF ANY REAL ESTATE LICENSEE OR 
OTHER PARTY. 

Date: BUYER 

Date: BUYER 
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Req. #17-1165 

RESOLUTION NO. 39869 

A RESOLUTION relating to surplus property; declaring certain real property owned 
by the Department of Publ ~i c Uti1lities, Light Divi1sion (d .b.a. "Tacoma Power"), 
consisting of approximately 1,875 square feet of property located at 
543 No.rth Stadium Way, in Tacoma, Washington, surplus to the needs of 
the City; and authorizing the negotiated sale and conveyance of said 
property to Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman for the amount of $72, 100. 

WHEREAS the City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, Light 

Division (d .b.a. "Tacoma Power"), owns approximately 1,875 square feet of 

property located at 543 North Stadium Way, in Tacoma, Washington ("Property"), 

as more fully described in the documents on file in the office of the City Clerk, and 

WHEREAS in 2009, pursuant to Utility Board Resolution U-10270, the 

Property was declared surplus to Tacoma Power's needs, and 

WHEREAS Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman have offered to purchase the 

Property for $72, 100, which is deemed acceptable by Tacoma Power and the 

• Department of Public Works, Real Property Services Division, and 
15 

16 WHEREAS a restrictive covenant will be included in the quit claim deed 

17 prohibiting development of the Property, and 

18 WHEREAS the Department of Public Works proceeded with the negotiated 

19 

I 

disposition process pursuant to Tacoma Municipal Code ("TMC") 1.06.280.F, and 
20 

21 
WHEREAS, on October 11, 2017, by adoption of Public Utility Board 

22 Resolution No. U-10961, the Property was approved for sale, pending confirmation 

23 from the City Council , and 

24 

25 

26 

Res17-1165.doc-BF/bn 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1'0 

11 

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2017, pursuant to RCW 35.94.040 and 

TMC 1.06.280, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed sale 

of said Property, and 

WHEREAS, there being no foreseeable need for continued City ownership 

of the Property, the sale of said Property appears to be in the best interests of 

the City, pending final approval from the City Council; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

Section 1. That continued ownership of approximately 1,875 square feet 

of property located at 543 North Stadium Way, in Tacoma, Washington, owned 

12 , by the Ci,ty of Tacoma, through its Department of Public Utilities, Light Division, 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 ' 

23 

24 

25 

26 

is not essential to the needs of the City and is hereby declared surplus pursuant 

to RCW 35.22.020 and Article I, Section 1.2, and Article IX of the Tacoma City 

Charter. 

Section 2. That the proper officers of the City are hereby authorized to 

execute all documents necessary, including a Quit Claim Deed, to convey the 

- 2 -
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1 property to Ronald L. and Linda R. Coleman for the amount of $72, 100, said Quit 

2 
Claim Deed to be substantially in the form of the deed on file in the office of the 

3 

4 
City Clerk. 

5 
. NOV 2 1 2017 

Adopted 
6 

7 
Mayor 

8 Attest: 

9 

10 
City Clerk 

11 

12 
Approved as to form: 

13 *'k,,,~ 
14 City Attorney 

15 Requested by Public Utility Board 

16 Resolution No. U-10961 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 
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Request for Board meeting CITY OF TACOMA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

ot November 15, 2017 REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION Date: November 3, 2017 

INSTRUCTIONS: File request In the Office of the Director of Utilities as soon as possible but not. later than nine working days prior to the 
Board meetinq at which it is to be introduced. Completion instructions are contained in Administrative Polley POL-104. 

1 . Summary title for Utility Board agenda: (not to exceed twenty-five words) 

Declare surplus and authorize the sale of approximately 106 acres of Tacoma Water property to Pierce County Department of Parks 
and Recreation for $2,775,100. 

2. A resolution is requested to: (brief description of action to be taken, by whom, where, cost, etc.) 

Declare surplus and authorize the sale of approximately 106 acres ofT acoma Water property, identified as Pierce County Assessor Tax 
Parcel Nos. 0419132006 and 0419133001, and a portion of Tax Parcel No. 0419141000 located east of the McMillin Reservoirs at 13004 
Reservoir Road E, Puyallup to Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation. An easement for access will also be granted, and 
easements to Tacoma Water will be retained for a waste water pipeline, access road, and a depression used for waste water discharge. 
Consideration for the sale is $2,775,100. 

3. Summarized reason for resolution: 

This property is part of the McMillin Reservoir complex developed in 1912 to store water from the Green River for distribution to the 
Tacoma Water service area. It has served as an open-space buffer around the formerly open McMillin Reservoirs. However, with 
replacement of the open reservoirs by enclosed tanks In 2012, there Is no longer a need for Tacoma Water to own the property. A 
portion of the property had been used by Tacoma Water as a dump site for spoils and materials. The dump site was closed in 1999. 
An abandoned standpipe Is also located on t~e property. The standpipe, along with on-going responsibility for monitoring and 
remediation, if necessary, for the closed former dump site, will be transferred to Pierce County. 

The property is zoned RR, residential resource, per the Pierce County South Hill Community Plan. Tacoma Water began discussions 
with Pierce County in 2013 to acquire the property for use as a park and potential regional trail hub. A letter was sent in 2014 
Informing the neighboring property owners that Tacoma Water was considering options for disposal of the property. Two public 
meetings were held in 2015 to discuss options to sell the property to Pierce County, together with possible sale of an adjacent 43 acre 
property to the Puyallup School District. The Pierce County Council approved Resolution R-2015-95 on September 22, 2015, which 
provided a $2,083,805 Conservation Futures grant toward purchase of the property. An offer was receive<;! from Pierce County 
Department of Parks and Recreation on September 15, 2017 to purchase the property for a total consideration of $2,775,100. The sale 
proceeds will be placed in the Tacoma Water Capital Reserve Fund. 

Following are the steps needed to complete the transaction: 
1) At its sole expense, Pierce Co. will complete the property segregation process, to include preparation of associated easements, 

needed to reconfigure that portion ofT acoma Water's Tax Parcel No. 0419141000 property Included In the sale. 
2) The property sale is expected to clo.se by December 31,2017. During the interim, we will proceed to Board and Council for 

declaration of surplus and approval of the sale. 

Tacoma Water has accepted an offer from Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation for $2,775, 100; this figure takes into 
consideration the reservation of easements to Tacoma Water. Payment will be made in two Installments. A payment of $2,220,100 will 
be paid at closing, expected on or before December 31, 2017, with the remaining $555,000 due and payable on or before February 28, 
2018. Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation intends to develop a park and regional trail hub on the property. The offer is 
subject to both Public Utility Board and City Council approval. 

The terms and conditions of the purchase and sale agreement have been approved by Tacoma Water and Real Property Services and 
reviewed by the City's Legal Department. 

4. Attachments: 
a. Director's Memo 
b. Aerial Photo 
c. Purchase and Sale Agreement 
d. CAM Request to set Public Hearing 
e. Declaration of Surplus Property 

5. 0 Funds available rgj Proposed action has no budgetary impact 

6. Deviations requiring special waivers: 

Originated by: ' , Re~quested by: 

j ( ) ~ if'1--~·····-· 
,' Cf~}:'t-;tl I ft~tld~~~ .. --.. , - ·--

--~~--¥-----------------
·'Greg v.Ztkhardt, Environmental Programs Scott Dewhirst, Water Superintendent 

Manager 
Document! 

Approv:m t:.. • ·. 
Willi~m A. Gaines, Director of Utilities I CEO 



-P13~~~~ nd 
Tacoma City of Tacoma City Council Action Memorandum 

TO: 
FROM: 
COPY: 
SUBJECT: 
DATE: 

SUMMARY: 

Mayor and City Council 
William A. Gaines, Director of Utilities/CEO 
Elizabeth Pauli, City Manager, and City Clerk 
Resolution - Set Public Hearing - November 21,2017 
November 3, 2017 

To set Tuesday, December 5, 2017, as the date for a Public Hearing regarding the declaration of surplus 
and sale of approximately 106 acres of Tacoma Water property for $2,775,100. 

STRATEGIC POLICY PRIORITY: 
• Assure outstanding stewardship of the natural and built environment. 
• Encourage and promote an efficient and effective government, which is fiscally sustainable and 

guided by engaged residents. 

This request supports the above policy priorities by allowing retention of the property in a substantially 
undeveloped condition for park and trail use, and offering the opportunity for public input on this real 
estate transaction. 

BACKGROUND: 
This property is patt of the McMillin Reservoir complex developed in 1912 to store water from the Green 
River for distribution to the Tacoma Water service area. It has served as an open-space buffer around the 
formerly open McMillin Reservoirs. However, with replacement of the open reservoirs by enclosed tanks 
in 2012, there is no longer a need for Tacoma Water to own the property. A portion of the property had 
been used by Tacoma Water as a dump site for spoils and materials. The dump site was closed in 1999. 
An abandoned standpipe is also located on the property. The standpipe, along with on-going 
responsibility for monitoring and remediation, if necessary, for the closed former dump site, will be 
transferred to Pierce County. 

Tacoma Water began discussions with Pierce County in 2013 to acquire the property for use as a park and 
potential regional trail hub. A letter was sent in 2014 informing the neighboring property 'owners that 
Tacoma Water was considering options for disposal of the property. Two public meetings were held in 
2015 to discuss options to sell the property to Pierce County, together with possible sale of an adjacent 43 
acre property to the Puyallup School Distdct. The Pierce County Council approved Resolution R-2015-
95 on September 22, 2015, which provided a $2,083,805 Conservation Futures grant toward purchase of 
the property. An offer was received from Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation on 
September 15, 2017 to purchase the property for a total consideration of $2,775,100. The sale proceeds 
will be placed in the Tacoma Water Capital Reserve Fund. 

Following are the steps needed to complete the transaction: 

1) At its sole expense, Pierce Co. will complete the property segregation process, to include 
preparation of associated easements, needed to reconfigure that portion of Tacoma Water's Tax 
Parcel No. 0419141000 included in the sale. 

2) The property sale is expected to close by December 31, 2017. During the interim. we will 
proceed to Board and Council for declaration of surplus and approval of the sale. 

Revised: 08/0312016 
1 
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Tacoma City of Tacoma City Council Action Memorandum 

Tacoma Water has accepted an offer for $2,775,100; this figure takes into consideration the additional 
grant of easement for access and reservation of easements for a waste water pipeline, access road, and a 
depression used for waste water discharge. Payment will be made in two installments: $2,220,100 will 
be paid at closing, expected by December 31,2017, with $555,000 due by February 28,2018. Pierce 
County intends to develop a park and regional trail hub on the propetty. The offer is subject to both 
Public Utility Board and City Council approval. The terms and conditions of the purchase and sale 
agreement have been approved by Tacoma Water and Real Property Services and reviewed by the City's 
Legal Department. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternatives to disposing of the property through the negotiated disposition process, as allowed tmder 
TMC 1.06.280f, are to either retain ownership or to dispose via a bid/sale process. Tacoma Water does 
not have a need for the property, and if it were to retain ownership there would be continued management 
and administrative costs. The negotiated disposition process was determined to be the most efficient 
disposition method, since the bid/sale process would not likely return positive results for such a large 
property. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Tacoma Water and Real Property Services recommend that the City Council set a Public Hearing in 
accordance with RCW 35.94.040, to be held December 5, 2017 to receive public comment .regarding the 
proposed sale of approximately 106 acres of Tacoma Water real prope1ty located in unincorporated Pierce 
County, W A. Once the Public Hearing has been conducted, a separate request will be presented to the 
City Council for the approval of the sale and conveyance of the real property. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to setting this public hearing. 

2 
Revised: 08/03/20 16 
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f MEMORANDUM 

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

Date: November 3, 2017 

To: 

From: 

William A Gaines, Director of Utilities/CEO 

Scott Dewhirst, Water Superintendent 1-J:::), .. \~'(\ 

Subject: Disposition of Real Property- Portion of McMillin Reservoir 

Recommendation: Tacoma Water requests that you declare surplus and authorize the 
sale of approximately 106 acres (Pierce Co. AssessorTPNs 0419132006 and 
0419133001, and a portion of TPN 0419141 000) located east of the McMillin Reservoirs 
to the Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation. An easement for access will 
also be granted, and easements will be retained for a waste water pipeline, access road, 
and a depression used for waste water discharge. Consideration for the sale is 
$2,775,100. 

Background: This property is part of the McMillin Reservoir complex developed in 
1912 to store water from the Green River for distribution to the Tacoma Water service 
area. It has served as an open-space buffer around the formerly open McMillin 
Reservoirs. However, with replacement of the open reservoirs by enclosed tanks in 
2012, there is no longer a need for Tacoma Water to own the property. A portion of the 
property had been used by Tacoma Water as a dump site for spoils and materials. The 
dump site was closed in 1999. An abandoned standpipe is also located on the property. 
The standpipe, along with on-going responsibility for monitoring and remediation, if 
necessary, for the closed former dump site, will be transferred to Pierce County. 

Tacoma Water began discussions with Pierce County in 2013 to acquire the property for 
use as a park and potential regional trail hub. A letter was sent in 2014 informing the 
neighboring property owners that Tacoma Water was considering options for disposal of 
the property. Two public meetings were held in 2015 to discuss options to sell the 
property to Pierce County, together with possible sale of an adjacent 43 acre property to 
the Puyallup School District. The Pierce County Council approved Resolution R-2015-
95 on September 22, 2015, which provided a $2,083,805 Conservation Futures grant 
toward purchase of the property. An offer was received from Pierce County Department 
of Parks and Recreation on September 15, 2017 to purchase the property for a total 
consideration of $2,775,100. The sale proceeds will be placed in the Tacoma Water 
Capital Reserve Fund. 

Following are the steps needed to complete the transaction: 

1) At its sole expense, Pierce Co. will complete the property segregation process, to 
include preparation of associated easements, needed to reconfigure that portion 
of Tacoma Water's Tax Parcel No. 0419141000 included in the sale. 

2) The property sale is expected to close by December 31, 2017. During the 
interim, we will proceed to Board and Council for declaration of surplus and 
approval of the sale 



Tacoma Water has accepted an offer for $2,775,100; this figure takes Into consideration 
the reservation of easements. Payment will be made in two installments: $2,220,100 
will be paid at closing, expected by December 31,2017, with $555,000 due by February 
28, 2018. Pierce County intends to develop a park and regional trail hub on the 
property. The offer is subject to both Public Utility Board and City Council approval. The 
terms and conditions of the purchase and sale agreement have been approved by 
Tacoma Water and Real Property Services and reviewed by the City's Legal 
Department. 

Schedule: Upon approval from the Public Utility Board, Real Property Services will hold 
a Public Hearing and seek final approval of the transaction from the Tacoma City 
Council. If approved, the transaction is expected to close December 31, 2017. 



TACOMA WATER SALE TO PIERCE COUNTY - MCMILLIN RESERVOIR PROPERTY 

Property to Pierce County: Dark Gr<.>cn -106± Acres / I ;:.,:!.! i .: ·,.,;-.! - Access Easement 
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• 1(~1: CityofTacoma 
liiiiiliiiiii~ Declaration of Surplus Property (DSP) 

To: Purchasinq Division Date: Nov 3, 2017 0 Declaration of Surplus Personal Property 
From: TPU- Tacoma Water 181 Declaration of Surplus Real Property 
Contact Name: Greg Muller R.E. Officer Phone: 253.502.8256 0 Declaration of Unusable Personal Property1 

1 Items that are broken, unusable, have no commercial, salvage, or donation value, and have no special disposal requirements (e.g., hazardous 
metals}, may be disposed by the owning department. Do not submit DSP Form to Purchasing for these items. 

Description of Surplus Property 
Describe Item or Attach List: 1 06+/- Acres of Tacoma Water Property Fixed Asset # _,_N:::.:/ A~--':.......---:--:---­

Accounting (for costs/proceeds}: Address/Location of Items: Portion of Pierce Co. TPN 0419141000. 
0419132006, and 0419133001 

Estimated Commercial or Resale Value: ~$...:2::....7.:...:7~5:.....1~0~0.:.::.0~0 ______ _ 
Minimum Acceptable Bid: "'-$ __ ___.N.::..I......,A ____ .......;;_ 

Cost Center: ~N~IA..:._ ______ _ 
General Ledger Acct: 1860030 

I hereby certify the asset(s) listed have no further public use or the sale thereof Is In the best interests of the City 
and declare these Items as surplus according to sections 1.06.272 through 1.06.278 of the Tacoma Municipal 
Code. Items may be sold, transferred, donated or otherwise disposed of in accordance with the City's surplus 
property licies a Cl t T Municipal Code. 

Cit 

DISPOSAL REQUEST 
(to be completed by department) 

Requested Disposal Method(s}: 

0 Intra City Transfer 
Name of Department ___________ _ 

0 Bid Solicitation (Formal I Informal) 

0 Vehicle Auction (attach vehicle surplus form) 

Specify Contract-----------
0 Online Auction Service 

(attach online auction surplus form) 

0 Special Advertisement (attach advertisement) 

Specify Newspaper----------

0 Supplemental Mailing List (attach) 

0 Website Posting 

0 Special Disposal Requirements (e.g., environmental, 

regulatory) 

0 Salvage Services 

Specify Contract-----------

0 Donation 

0 2-Good-2 Joss 

181 Other: Negotiated Sale 

0 Okay for Disposal: 

APPROVED: 

Procurement and Payables Manager Date 

Declaration of Surplus Property (DSP) Form 

DISPOSAL ACTION 
Internal Use Only- Purchasing Division 

0 Formal Bid No.-----------­

Resolution/Ordinance No.---------

0 Informal Bid No. 

0 Online Auction 

0 Special Advertisement 

0 Contract Services 

0 Salvage Services 

0 Okay for Disposal 

D Website Posting 

0 Supplemental Mailings 

D Intra-City Transfer 

D Donation 

0 2-Good-2 Toss 

Date Advertised/Posted:---------­

Sale Amount:.:.-------------­

Sold To: Name-----------------
Address 

Donated To: Name------------­

Address 

0 Hold Harmless Release Received 
Recipient is: 0 Public Agency 0 Non-Profit serving ... 

0 General Public 0 Employee 

Accounting, if different from above: 

Revised: 03/12/2009 
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Req. #17-1230 

RESOLUTION NO. 39884 

A RESOLUTION relating to surplus property; declaring certain real property owned 
by the Department of Public Utilities, Water Division (d.b.a. "Tacoma 
Water"), identified as portions of Pierce County Assessor Tax Parcel 
Nos. 0419132006, 0419133001, and 0419141000, covering approximately 
106 acres, located east of the McMillin Reservoirs at 13004 Reservoir Road 
East, Puyallup, in Pierce County, Washington, surplus to the needs of the 
City; and authorizing the negotiated sale and conveyance of said property to 
the Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation for the sum of 
$2, 775, 100. 

WHEREAS the City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, Water 

Division (d.b.a. "Tacoma Water"), owns property identified as portions of Pierce 

County Assessor Tax Parcel Nos. 0419132006, 0419133001, and 0419141000, 

covering approximately 106 acres located east of the McMillin Reservoirs at 

13004 Reservoir Road E, Puyallup, in Pierce County, Washington ("Property"), as 

more fully described in the documents on file in the office of the City Clerk, and 

WHEREAS Tacoma Water has determined the Property is no longer 

essential for continued effective utility service, and 

WHEREAS the Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation has 

offered to purchase the Property for $2,775, 100, which is deemed acceptable by 

Tacoma Water and the Department of Public Works, Real Property Services 

Division, and 

WHEREAS the Department of Public Works proceeded with the negotiated 

disposition process pursuant to Tacoma Municipal Code ("TMC") 1.06.280.F, and 

- 1 -
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WHEREAS, an easement for access will also be granted and Tacoma Water 

will reserve easements for a waste water pipeline, access road, and a depression 

for waste water discharge, and 

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2017, by adoption of Public Utility Board 

Resolution No. U-10973, the Property was declared surplus to Tacoma Water's 

needs and approved for sale, pending confirmation from the City Council, and 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2017, pursuant to RCW 35.94.040 and 

TMC 1.06.280, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed sale of 

said Property, and 

WHEREAS, there being no foreseeable need for continued City ownership of 

the Property, the sale of said Property appears to be in the best interests of the 

City, pending final approval from the City Council; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TACOMA: 

Section 1. That continued ownership of approximately 106 acres of property 

identified as portions of Pierce County Assessor Tax Parcel Nos. 0419132006, 

0419133001, and 0419141000, covering approximately 106 acres of property 

located east of the McMillin Reservoirs at 13004 Reservoir Road East, Puyallup, in 

Pierce County, Washington, owned by the City of Tacoma, through its Department 

of Public Utilities, Water Division, is not essential to the needs of the City and is 

hereby declared surplus pursuant to RCW 35.22.020 and Article I, Section 1.2, and 

Article IX of the Tacoma City Charter. 

- 2 -
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Section 2. That the proper officers of the City are hereby authorized to 

execute a deed and all other documents necessary to convey the property to the 

Pierce County Department of Parks and Recreation, for the amount of $2,775, 100, 

said deed to be substantially in the form of the deed on file in the office of the City 

Clerk. 

Adopted 
DEC 1 9 2017 

Attest: 

Approved as to form: 

Chief Deputy City Attorney 

Requested by Public Utility Board 
Resolution No. U-10973 

Res1 7-1230.doc-BF/ak 

Mayor 
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SAGE MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS, LLC

CITY OF TACOMA 
TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

2013 MANAGEMENT REVIEW

FINAL REPORT

T A C O M A  P U B L I C  U T I L I T I E S

T

November 7, 2014

SAGE MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS, LLC

EXHIBIT

TAG PRA HF 0009093



Planning and Performance Management Guidance
> The TPU operating divisions have made major improvements in planning and 

performance management.
> The biennial budgeting process is well developed and well executed.
> The application of planning and performance management elements among the 

divisions is inconsistent.
> There is no formal documentation of the assumptions and forecasts made in the 

biennial budgeting process, which could be used as the basis of a business plan.
> TPU has not established common mission elements upon which planning and 

performance management can be based.
> The TPU organizational level could benefit from a roll-up of quantitative 

performance metrics and targets. Existing metrics should be expanded to cover 
all divisional mission components.

> Performance gaps do not drive strategic planning.

Click! Strategic Plan
> Click! services are priced competitively.
> Click! customer service levels are high.
> Click! competition with Comcast likely keeps the traditional cable TV rates for 

both providers lower than they would be otherwise.
> The telecommunications industry is evolving rapidly with resultant increasing 

competition for incumbent suppliers.
> In addition to the industry structural changes, Click! has a number of competitive 

disadvantages.
> Click! has been, and is, experiencing a steady loss of customers and resultant 

financial deterioration due to industry structural changes.
> It appears that Click! cannot overcome the industry structural changes and its 

competitive disadvantages.
> As a result of the industry changes and the competitive disadvantages. Power 

has been subsidizing Click! and the subsidies will likely grow over time.

Customer Services Strategic Plan
> The initial strategic plan has been followed.
> The updated Strategic Plan appropriately proposes to complete projects started 

under the 2010 Strategic Plan and to focus on improving customer experience 
and internal processes.

> Customer Services has utilized an outside consultant to develop and manage its 
performance measurement and reporting process.

Compensation Philosophy, Policies, and Governance
> The TPU Succession Planning program partially ameliorated the impact of 

planned and unplanned attrition during the pay freeze.
> The multi-year pay freeze caused significant attrition in Power.
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1. Use identified performance gaps as a major input into strategic planning. 
(Refer to Finding 7)

Once a performance gap has been identified, credible initiatives to close the gaps 
should be chartered. Available resources should be applied to the most important areas 
of under-performance.

D. CLICK! AND CUSTOMER SERVICES STRATEGIC PLANS
Click! and Customer Services were excluded from the scope of the 2013 Management 
Review except for two areas. The Request for Proposals project scope, as clarified in 
the Questions and Answers Matrix of Anticipated Assessment Areas for the 2013 
Management Study, includes examining the Click! and Customer Services strategic and 
business plans and human resources practices. This section addresses the Click! and 
Customer Services strategic and business plans. The discussions of Click! and 
Customer Services human resources practices are included in Section E of this chapter 
and in the Human Resources section in Chapter VI, General Government Shared 
Services.

CLICK!

Background
Click! operates and maintains a hybrid fiber coaxial (HFC) telecommunications network 
that supports the operation of Tacoma Power’s electrical transmission and distribution 
system, provides retail cable TV, provides wholesale high-speed internet and data 
transport services, and operates the City of Tacoma’s INET network.
Clickl’s service territory covers most of the Tacoma Power service territory, including 
outside of the Tacoma city limits. Click! is available to approximately 120,000 of 
Power’s 160,000 customers.
Click! is organized as a section under the Power Division, like Generation or 
Transmission and Distribution. It is not an enterprise fund, but has 13 discreet Click! 
cost centers within the Power enterprise fund. The Click! General Manager reports to 
the Power Superintendent and is part of the Power management team. The Power 
Senior Leadership Team acts as the Click! “Board of Directors.” Click! rates are 
approved by the Public Utility Board (Board) and City Council, the same as Power, 
Water, and Rail rates.

The HFC engineering and construction units that design and build the HFC network are 
housed in the Power Transmission and Distribution (T&D) section and are part of its 
budget. HFC engineering and construction is not directly charged to Click! but some 
costs are allocated to Click!.

Click! does not use TPU’s Customer Services unit for billing and walk-in and call center 
customer service. It provides its own customer service call center, billing, and lobby 
service. TPU Customer Services does accept payments for Click! at the payment 
kiosks and provides call center and walk-in referrals to Click! for new customers.
Click! was originally conceived as telecommunications infrastructure to support the 
Power smart grid and advanced metering infrastructure (AMI) initiatives. It was also
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used to compete with the perceived substandard service and high costs of the 
incumbent commercial cable provider in Tacoma at the time.
Planning for Click! started in about 1995. The infrastructure build started in 1997. The 
first customer payment was received in 1998. Most of the infrastructure construction 
was complete by 2009-2010. Click! is substantially an overbuild of the incumbent cable 
TV company’s system (now owned by Comcast), and Click! directly competes with 
Comcast for traditional cable TV service.
Power built and owns the fiber infrastructure. Within the fiber bundles, approximately 
50% of the fibers are dark (unused). The remaining fibers are divided into three 
network systems, with no joint use of single fibers. The Power Communications and 
Operations Network (PCON) is used for the smart grid (such as, communication with 
substations) and is operated and maintained by the Power Communications unit. The 
second system is the General Government’s (GG’s) INET network. Click! operates and 
maintains the INET system under a cost reimbursement agreement with the GG. The 
third network is the Click! commercial network used for its retail and wholesale services.
Click! operates as an open-access network and presently provides service to three local 
retail internet service providers (ISPs) for residential and small office, home office 
(SOHO) customers and five ISPs serving point-to-point and sonnet broadband service 
to commercial and industrial accounts. Click! wholesales network capacity to these 
ISPs. The Board and City Council have both consistently supported this arrangement. 
However, in response to industry changes. Click! has explored the possibility of entering 
the retail internet service market. This would likely involve buying out the ISPs’ 
contracts. This proposal was last publicly revisited with the Board and Council in 
January 2012, and the incumbent ISPs prevailed in retaining their exclusive retail agent 
status.
The contracts with the ISPs automatically renew with a 60 day termination provision for 
both parties. Two of the three existing contracts have a non-compete clause, meaning 
Click! cannot compete with the ISPs by offering retail broadband service while the 
contracts are in effect.
As an organizational unit within the Power Division, Click! generally follows the Power 
planning and performance management process. Please see Chapter III for a 
description of the Power planning and performance management process.
Click! has multiple planning and performance management components, including:

> Click! Network’s Playbook -  a summary of strategic objectives, leadership 
principles, core values, aspirational values, and vision.

> Click! Network Strategy Map -  a summary of Clickl’s strategies from the 
financial, customers, internal processes, and employees perspectives.

> Click! Quarterly Balanced Scorecard Reports -  status and notes on focus 
objectives from the Strategy Map.

> Click! Network Goals and Measurements 2014 Performance/Status Report - 
articulates the goals associated with the four balanced scorecard 
perspectives and summarizes status/performance of each one.
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In addition to the Power planning and performance management process, a 
telecommunications consultant expert in publicly owned telecommunications enterprises 
assists Click! in periodically revising the draft strategic plan to adjust for changing 
circumstances.

Findings
1. Click! services are priced competitively.

Click! regularly compares its prices to the Comcast prices in the Tacoma area, both 
inside and outside of the city limits. A recent Click! market comparison performed in 
connection with a recent rate increase proposal had the following results.

Click! Market Price Comparison

Component
Click!

Proposed
Rates

Comcast
Tacoma

Rates

Click!
Versus

Comcast
Tacoma

Comcast
Outside
Tacoma

Rates

Click!
Versus
Outside
Tacoma

29 Broadcast 
Channels $17.99 $20.51 14% Less $23.01 28% Less

88 Standard 
Channels $52.99 $52.99 Same $69.49 31% Less

150 Digital 
Channels $74.49 $70.99 4.9% Higher $87.49 17% Less

150 Digital 
Channels and 
Two Premium 

Channels

$102.49 $110.97 8.3% Less $127.47 24% Less

Click! rates are lower in all cases except one. On a typical bill basis, Click! analysis has 
found that Click!'s costs are 3.9% lower at the “bottom of the bill.”

2. Click! customer service levels are high.
A recent Click! customer satisfaction survey conducted by an independent research firm 
found the following:

> Almost half of Click! customers have previous experience with Comcast and 
most customers switched from Comcast to Click! because Click! is a local, 
lower-priced provider

> Overall satisfaction with Click! cable TV is quite strong
> Customers would recommend Click! 3:1 over customers who would not
> 73% of customers plan to continue to subscribe to Click!
> Customers are satisfied with all of Clickl’s customer touch points: Customer 

Service Representative, Lobby Representative, Website, and Technician
Click! also recently engaged an independent consultant to conduct a series of focus 
groups with both Click! subscribers and non-subscribers. The focus groups generally 
confirmed the high service levels experienced by Click! customers.
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3. Click! competition with Comcast likely keeps the traditional cable TV rates 
fo r both providers lower than they would be otherwise.

Virtually all of the Click! service territory is directly competitive with Comcast. The Click! 
strategy is to underprice Comcast in directly comparable services. This has served to 
keep both Click! and Comcast prices under market in the competitive service territories. 
The Click! Market Price Comparison table shown above validates that Click! is 
successful in accomplishing this strategy.

4. The telecommunications industry is evolving rapidly with resultant 
increasing competition for incumbent suppliers. (Refer to 
Recommendation 1)

Clickl’s current competitors include the satellite providers, Dish and Direct TV, Comcast, 
and the several internet streaming services (e.g., Netflix, Hulu, iTunes, Google Play, 
HBO, CBS, and several free services). CenturyLink is expected to introduce its Prism 
product in Tacoma soon. Prism is similar to AT&T’s Uverse in that it delivers internet 
protocol television (IPTV) over twisted pair telephone lines. Additionally, fiber to the 
home providers, such as, Verizon Fios and Google, could elect to enter the Tacoma 
market at some point.
The recent customer survey conducted by an independent customer research firm 
mentioned above also found that many Click! customers use their devices to stream 
video: desktop computers -  47%, laptop computers -  48%, web-enabled smart phones 
-  39%, and tablets -  55%. Most of these customers also use these devices to watch 
television shows as well.

The recent Click! customer survey also discovered that 59% of the Click! customers 
were 55 or older. Just as many young people now do not have land line telephones and 
only have cell phones, there is an increasing trend away from traditional cable 
subscribers to broadband customers who stream their videos, movies, and television 
shows over the internet. Most national cable companies are losing traditional cable 
subscribers.

While the commercial and industrial broadband business is only 2-3% of the Click! 
business, the Click! ISPs in this space have several other competitors.

5. In addition to the industry structural changes, Click! has a number of 
competitive disadvantages. (Refer to Recommendation 1)

Clickl’s competitive disadvantages include the following;
Inability to Bundle Services. Because of the wholesale arrangement with the ISPs for 
broadband services, Click! cannot provide bundled service, like the “triple play,’’ 
combining cable television, internet service, and phone service or the “quadruple play’’ 
that includes cellular service. Even CenturyLink offers the triple play by teaming with 
Direct TV. This is a major competitive disadvantage for Click!. This structure also 
makes for inefficiency because one customer may have at least two different installation 
forces dispatched to install or maintain service.
Programming Costs. Programming costs are a large part of cable operators’ cost 
structure. Click! programming costs per customer are increasing even as the number of
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customers is decreasing. A recent Click! programming cost analysis showed the 
following programming cost per customer increase over the last four bienniums.

Programming Cost per Customer

i Biennium Average Number of 
Customers

Percentage Cost increase per 
Customer

2007-2009 24,521 Baseline
2009-2010 24,241 7.7%
2011-2012 23,000 9.6%
2013-2014 20,000 7.7%

Technology. The Click! network is traditional cable television HFC architecture. Newer 
technologies include the Verizon Fios fiber to the home and the AT&T Uverse, which 
terminates with twisted pairs but places more fiber to coaxial/copper nodes farther into 
the system. Wireless competitors using Wi-Fi are expected as well.
Power Cost Allocation. Since inception, it has been assumed that Power would be 
using the Click! infrastructure for its smart grid and AMI initiatives. As such, Power has 
borne a significant portion of the ClickI costs. However, it now appears that Power 
expects to use cellular and other wireless technologies rather than the Click! system for 
its continued smart grid and AMI initiatives which could mean that Power will bear less 
of the Click! costs under such a scenario.
Employee Labor Cost. Approximately 80% of Clickl’s 96 employees are represented 
by a bargaining unit, as are most of the other Power employees. The managers and 
supervisors, sales and marketing, and business system employees are not represented. 
Several Click! employee positions are currently “red-lined" (salary rates frozen). The 
wage and benefit structure and labor overhead allocations for Click! employees are the 
same as for Power employees. This structure may result in Click! total employee labor 
costs being higher than competitors not bound to a public utility cost structure.
Because the Click! workforce is largely represented, there are few opportunities to 
contract construction, operations and maintenance, and customer service work. This is 
a competitive disadvantage compared to Comcast and other competitors, who can 
contract some work to lower cost providers.
Also, because of Clickl’s affiliation with the City of Tacoma and its pay policies. Click! 
cannot pay its employees commissions or incentives as its competitors can.
Governance and Scale. Click! is relatively small and shrinking business in a highly 
competitive, rapidly changing, and consolidating (e.g., Comcast with Time Warner and 
AT&T with Direct TV) industry. However, Click! is governed as a unit within a publicly- 
owned utility. Click! is not a separate business unit or enterprise fund. It is an 
organizational unit within the Power enterprise fund. The first line of Click! oversight is 
the Power Superintendent and the Power management team. From there, oversight is 
provided by,the TPU CEO, the Board, and the City Council. While this governance 
structure has proven highly effective for public utilities, it is not optimal for a competitive 
telecommunications business. And, while Click! itself is staffed with 
telecommunications industry professionals. Click! has no telecommunications industry
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experts in its governance chain. This is a disadvantage to large-scale competitors who 
have a depth of telecommunications industry expertise and substantial resources for 
marketing and research and development. Telecommunications and cable TV are not 
core competencies of Power.

6. Click! has been, and is, experiencing a steady loss of customers and 
resultant financial deterioration due to industry structural changes. (Refer 
to Recommendation 1)

With the exception of wholesale internet customers, the Click! customer base has been 
steadily declining since the peak of approximately 25,000 customers in 2010 to about 
20,000 today. Click! was originally planned for 45,000 customers. Click! provides at 
least standard cable service to only 17.5% of the homes it passes. The number of 
customers is projected to continue to decline. The reductions in customers can be 
attributed to the declining economic well-being of some customers, the national trend of 
switching from cable to streaming on the internet, increasing rates, and triple play 
competition from Comcast. Additional competitors will likely increase the pace of 
customer losses.

7. It appears that Click! cannot overcome the industry structural changes and 
its competitive disadvantages. (Refer to Recommendation 1)

Click! has worked hard to cut costs as the revenue has decreased. It has reduced 
about $5 million in costs per biennium. However, revenues continue to fall short of full 
cost recovery. There is no evidence that Click! will be able to turnaround its 
deteriorating situation. The option of raising rates to cover more costs accelerates 
customer losses.

8. As a result of the industry changes and the competitive disadvantages. 
Power has been subsidizing Ciick! and the subsidies wili likely grow over 
time. (Refer to Recommendation 1)

Click! revenue should cover its total allocated cost, including direct costs, debt service, 
services provided by other units, and allocated overhead. It does not and Click! is 
losing money. Click! financial losses are covered by the Power fund. This means that 
Power ratepayers are subsidizing Click! customers.
Power customers who are also Click! or Comcast subscribers may benefit from lower 
cable costs provided by the Click! competition with Comcast. Power customers who are 
not cable subscribers do not receive this benefit. Also, it does not appear that the lower 
cable costs match the Power subsidy of Click!

In the 2013/2014 biennium, Click! costs were allocated 75% to Click! and 25% to 
Power, for Power use of the Click! network for smart grid and AMI. If Power decides not 
to use additional Click! resources for these purposes (e.g., opting instead for wireless 
infrastructure), the allocation would potentially change to 96% Click! and 4% Power. 
This would further exacerbate the Power subsidy of Click!.
The current situation in which Tacoma Power is absorbing Click! deficits is untenable 
and should be resolved quickly.
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Recom mendation
1. Sell, lease, or close Click! as soon as reasonably possible and within one 

year at the latest. (Refer to Findings 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8)

The Power subsidy to Click! is unfair to the Power ratepayers and should not continue. 
Potential buyers or lessors for Click! could include its retail ISPs, Comcast, Google, and 
various independent operators (e.g., TDS Acquired Bend Broadband and Comcast 
bought Alameda Telecom). However, it is not certain that an acquirer or lessor would 
come forward. TPU should engage an expert firm to attempt to sell or lease Click! as 
soon as possible. The lease option should only be used if a creditworthy counterparty 
(able to sustain the lease payments) is found. If a sale or lease is not possible, TPU 
should close Click!.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

 
 
 

EDWARD E. (TED) COATES, et. al., 

 

 Plaintiffs, 

 v. 

 

CITY OF TACOMA, 

 Defendant. 

 
No. 17-2-08907-4 
 
DECLARATION OF STEVEN 
KLEIN IN SUPPORT OF 
DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO 
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

 

 
I, Steven Klein, declare as follows: 
 

1. I am over the age of 18, have personal knowledge of the facts stated herein, 

and am competent to testify thereto.  

2. I am an independent consultant, providing services to utilities and other 

entities based on my career working for municipal and publicly owned utilities.  Prior to 

becoming a consultant in May 2015, I was General Manager and CEO of the Public 

Utility District #1 of Snohomish County (“Snohomish PUD”).   

3. Prior to joining Snohomish PUD in April 2006, I was Superintendent of 

City of Tacoma, Department of Public Utilities, Light Division, commonly known as 

Tacoma Power.  I was promoted to Superintendent in July 1993 and held that position 



 

DECLARATION OF STEVEN KLEIN 
IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION 
TO PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT - 2 
500998202 v3 
500998202 v4 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 

 

 

 

K&L GATES LLP 
925 FOURTH AVENUE SUITE 2900 

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98104-1158 
TELEPHONE: (206) 623-7580 
FACSIMILE: (206) 623-7022 

until I departed for Snohomish PUD.  Prior to that, I held a variety of positions with 

Tacoma Power.     

4. In the mid-1990s, when I was the Superintendent of Tacoma Power, the 

electric utility industry was undergoing significant telecommunications advances in 

response to deregulation of the industry. These advances would enable utilities like 

Tacoma Power to improve the operations of their generation, distribution, and 

transmission assets.  

5. During the mid-1990s, there was nationwide legislative and regulatory 

interest in the introduction of retail competition that would allow customers of electric 

utilities to choose their electricity suppliers.  Retail electric utility customers would be 

allowed to choose a company other than their electric utility to supply their electricity, 

while their utility continued to provide the distribution and transmission system and 

metering to deliver that electricity. Thus, many electric utilities were investing in 

advanced technology to retain a competitive edge. 

6. As I considered the rapidly changing face of the electric utility industry due 

to technological developments and the potential adoption of retail electric competition, I 

established a team at Tacoma Power to explore the possibility of using 

telecommunications as a way to respond.  After internal research and input from 

consultants, we decided that the best option was to construct a hybrid fiber coaxial 

telecommunications system to modernize and interconnect Tacoma Power’s generation, 

distribution, and transmission assets.  The system would also support the installation of 

“smart meters” at the residence or place of business of every Tacoma Power electric 

customer. Smart meters would provide important benefits to Tacoma Power and its 

customers, including providing real-time data for monitoring and billing electricity 
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consumption, remote meter reading, remote connection and disconnection, and pay-as-

you-go electricity consumption programs. 

7. As originally designed, the coaxial part of the telecommunications system 

would support the smart meters and the fiber part of the telecommunications system 

would support connection of Tacoma Power’s local, distributed generation, distribution, 

and transmission assets to achieve a variety of operating efficiencies. 

8. Relying on the Pierce County Superior Court’s two summary judgment 

rulings in 1996 and 1997, Tacoma Power went forward with expending money from the 

Power Fund to build Tacoma Power’s telecommunications system and to sell excess 

capacity for internet access, data transport, and cable television services. 

9. Attached as Exhibit A is an accurate copy of excerpts from the City of 

Tacoma’s 2005 Electric System Revenue Bond offering. The document explains to 

potential bond purchasers the process by which Tacoma Power’s and Click’s rates are set 

and Tacoma Power’s ultimate responsibility of “providing electric service revenues 

covering all operating and maintenance expenses, all debt service and a portion of capital 

improvements and additions made to the Electric System”: 

Services or rates designed to meet the needs of one group of customers are 
required to be accomplished without negative impacts to other Tacoma Power 
customers. Costs that Tacoma Power incurs to provide services will be recovered 
through the rates and prices it charges to its customers. Tacoma Power last 
increased retail rates by an average 5.2% effective April 4, 2005. See “POWER 
SUPPLY RESOURCES AND COST OF POWER—Long-Term Purchases and 
Sales of Project Capability—Bonneville Power Administration Purchases." 
 
The Public Utility Board establishes telecommunication service rates for Click! 
subject to approval by the City Council. Rate ranges established for all commercial 
products and services allow Click! the flexibility to respond to market 
opportunities while recovering operating costs. Rates for analog and digital cable 
TV packages were increased by an average of 6% in May 2005, with the increase 
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for certain services ranging from 2% to 17%. The rate increase was the second 
since establishing the cable TV business line in 1998.  

10. In 2002, Tacoma Power developed an allocation formula to track expenses 

and revenues generated by the telecommunications system that could be respectively 

attributed to the operations of Tacoma Power’s electric system versus Click’s sale of 

excess capacity to the ISPs, for retail cable services, and as wholesale, high capacity, 

point-to-point data transfer for certain large customers.  Tacoma Power developed these 

allocations in order to make informed management decisions about the 

telecommunications system. 

11. During the mid-2000s, Tacoma Power developed gateway meters (Tacoma 

Power’s name for its smart meters) that could relay information from its electric 

customers to Tacoma Power headquarters via the telecommunications system. 

12. Attached as Exhibit B is an accurate and complete copy of the 2003 

Virchow, Krause & Company Review of Cost Allocations for Click! Network. Page 7 of 

the report lists the ways in which Tacoma Power was using the telecommunications 

network to deploy smart metering for Tacoma Power’s residential, commercial, and 

industrial customers. 

13. Since the late 1990s, the excess capacity on Tacoma Power’s 

telecommunications system has been sold for internet access, data transport, and cable 

television services. Click’s customers include cable television customers as well as ISPs 

and other companies that wanted to purchase wholesale internet and data transport. 

14. At the time of its construction, the telecommunications system was a state-

of-the-art hybrid fiber coaxial system. 

15. Shortly after the telecommunications system was constructed, Tacoma 

Power and the electric utility industry was sent into a financial tailspin by the California 
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NEW ISSUE 
FULL BOOK-ENTRY

RATINGS: See “Ratings” herein.

In the opinion o f  Preston Gates & Ellis LLP, Bond Counsel, assunung compliance with certain covenants o f  the City, interest on the 2005 Bonds is 
excluded from  the gross income o f  the owners o f  the 2005 Bonds fo r  federal income tax purposes under existing law. Interest on the 2005 Bonds is not 
an item oftax  preference fo r  purposes ofeither individual o r  corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the 2005 Bonds may be indirectly subject 
to corporate alternative minimum tax and certain other taxes imposed on certain corporations. See "TAX EXEMPTION" herein fo r  a  discussion o f  
the opinion o f  Bond Counsel.

TACOM A POW ER
TA CO H A  P U » V I «  U T I U T l i a

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON

$93,480,000
Electric System Revenue 

Bonds, 2005 Series A

$156,425,000
Electric System Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, 2005 Series B

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: January 1, as shown on the inside eover

The 2005 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds under a book-entiy-only system, initially registered in the name of Cede & Co. (the 
“Registered Owner”), as nominee for The Depository Trast Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository 
for the 2005 Bonds, Individual purchases o f the 2005 Bonds will be made in the principal amount o f $5,000 Or any integral multiple thereof 
within a sirigle maturity. Purchasers of the 2005 Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive certificates representing their interest in the 
2005 Bonds, Principal and interest are payable by the Fiscal Agency of the State of Washington, currently The Bank of New York, New York, 
New York (the “Bond Registrar”).

Principal is payable as set forth on the inside cover. Interest on the 2005 Bonds is payable on January 1,2006, and semiannually thereafter on 
each July 1 and January 1 to maturity or earlier redemption, by the Bond Registrar to DTC, which in turn is obligated to remit that principal 
and interest to its broker-dealer participants for subsequent disbursement to Beneficial Owners o f the 2005 Bonds. See APPENDIX D 
“BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”

The 2005 Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the City of Tacoma, Washington (the “City”) prior to their stated maturities as described 
under “DESCRIPTION OF THE 2005 BONDS—Redemption,”

The 2005 Bonds are being issued to finance capital improvements to the Electric System and to refimd certain outstanding Electric System 
Revenue Bonds, as described under “PURPOSE OF THE 2005 BONDS AND APPLICATION OF 2005 BOND PROCEEDS.” The 2005 
Bonds are payable solely from a special fund of the City known as the Electric System Revenue Bond Fund and from the Revenues of the 
Electric System, after paymem of Operating Expenses (including Contract Resource Obligations as more fully described herein), on a parity 
with the outstanding Electric System Revenue Bonds and other Electric System Revenue Bonds hereafter issued on a parity therewith. See 
“SECURITY FOR THE 2005 BONDS.”

The 2005 Bonds are not general obligations of the City, and neither the fnll faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City or of the 
State of Washington, nor any revenues of the City derived from sources other than the Electric System, are pledged to the payment 
thereof.

_____________________________ MATURITY SCHEDULES— See Inside Cover_____________________________

Payment of the principal o f and interest on the Series A Bonds mataring in  the years 2010 through 2017, iiidush'e, and the Series B Bonds 
maturing in the years 2006 through 2016, inclusive (collectively, the “Insured Bonds”) when due will be insured by bond insiuance policies to 
be issued by Financial Guaranty Insurance Comparty simultaneously with the delivery of the 2005 Bonds. See “BOND INSURANCE” hereia

FSIC F i n a n c i a l  G u a r a n t y  

I n s u r a n c e  C m ^ i a n y

This cover page includes certain information for reference only and is not a summary of matters set forth herein. Investors should read the 
entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

The 2005 Bonds are  offeredfor delivery when, as an d  i f  issued, subject to the approval o f  legality by Preston Gates & Ellis LLP, Bond Counsel, 
Seattle, Washington. I t  is  expected that the 2005 Bonds will be available fo r  delivery a t the facilities o f  The Depository Trust Company in 
New York, New York, by F ast Automated Securities Transfer (FAST) on o r  about October 4, 2005.

Dated: September 20,2005
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Tacoma Power
Customers, Energy Sales and Revenues from Sales(l)

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Average Number of Customers 
Residential 132,693 133,954 137,792 141,783 145,462
Small Commercial(2) 12,726 13,180 13,469 14,024 14,338
Industrial(3) 2,101 2,228 2,288 2,347 2,529
Other(4) 323 369 406 456 523

Total Customers 147.843 149,731 153,955 158,610 162,852
Energy Sales (MWh) 
Residential 1,840,902 1,715,877 1,785,165 1,720,706 1,764,814
Small CommerciaI(2) 332,098 314,687 321,567 314,958 322,575
Industrial(3) 3,291,400 2,564,843 2,398,636 2,318,861 2,521,795
Other(4) 33.942 30.627 35.590 32.129 35.538

Subtotal 5,498,342 4,626,034 4,540,958 4,386,654 4,644,722
Sales for Resale 656.236 629.213 1.738.020 1.676.572 1.432.596

Total Energy Sales 
Revenue From Energy Sales 
Retail Sales:

6,154,578 5,255,247 6,278,978 6,063,226 6,077,318

Residential $ 81,642,403 $ 103,418,213 $ 105,553,870 $ 105,104,401 $ 110,897,060
Small Commercial(2) 15,407,556 20,138,485 20,226,644 20,113,985 21,182,573
Industrial(3) 130,545,580 143,812,077 104,399,796 100,675,224 105,779,586
Other(4) 1,254,274 1,552,848 1,783,451 1,697,929 1,861,629

Subtotal Retail Sales ,S 228.849.813 $ 268.921.623 $ 231.963.761 $ 227.591..539 $ 239.720.848
Change in Unbilied(5) 

Sales for Resale:
415,121 8,265,647 (4,685,986) 7,312,550 (3,417,063)

Bulk Power(6) $ 35,854,270 $ 25,624,495 $ 34,844,972 $ 63,396,385 $ 62,362,512

Total Revenue From Energy Sales $ 265.119.204 302.811.765 $ 262.122.747 $ 298.300.474

(1) Years ending December 31.
(2) Consists of Small General customer class.
(3) Includes the following rate classes: General, High Voltage General, and Contract Industrial.
(4) Includes Street Lighting and Traffic Signals and Private Off-Street Lighting customer classes.
(5) Change from year-to-year in the amount of electric service consumed but not yet billed as of year-end.
(6) Includes Non-Portfolio market sales in 2000 and 2001. The market-based Non-Portfolio program ended in 2001. See “POWER 

SUPPLY RESOURCES AND COST OF POWER—Wholesale Energy Market Purchases and Sales.”

Rates

The Public Utility Board establishes electric rates for Tacoma Power, subject to approval by the City Council. 
Tacoma Power has been able to maintain low rates in comparison to the national average, while at the same time 
providing electric service revenues covering all operating and maintenance expenses, all debt service and a portion 
of capital improvements and additions made to the Electric System,

Tacoma Power’s rates and charges are free from the jurisdiction and control of the Washington Utilities and 
Transportation Commission and FERC. With certain exceptions, rates must be set to include a 3.873% tax Tacoma 
Power pays on its gross revenues to the State of Washington prior to debt service and a 6% (8% for Click! Network) 
tax Tacoma Power pays on gross revenues to the City subordinate to debt service.

Tacoma Power’s services, including rates and prices for those services, are designed to meet customer needs and 
provide the flexibility needed to respond to changing conditions in the electric utility industry. Tacoma Power 
expects to both unbundle and offer a greater variety of services to its customers who desire to make more of their 
own choices. The rate setting pohcy provides that rates for new non-traditional energy-related services may be set 
at times other than the general rate-setting process. In 2000 Tacoma Power launched EveiGreen Options, a green 
power program that offers customers the opportunity to support renewable and environmentally friendly power.
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The revenue from the program supports the generation of more green power resources and the restoration of fish 
and wildlife habitats in Washington and Oregon. In 2002 Washington began requiring all but very small utilities in 
the state to offer green pricing programs for their retail customers. Tacoma Power’s EverGreen Options program 
compUes with this law.

Services or rates designed to meet the needs of one group of customers are required to be accomplished without 
negative impacts to other Tacoma Power customers. Costs that Tacoma Power incurs to provide services will be 
recovered through the rates and prices it charges to its customers. Tacoma Power last increased retail rates by an 
average 5.2% effective April 4, 2005. See “POWER SUPPLY RESOURCES AND COST OF POWER—Long- 
Term Purchases and Sales of Project Capability—Bonneville Power Administration Purchases."

The Public UtiUty Board establishes telecommunication service rates for Click! subject to approval by the City 
Council. Rate ranges established for all commercial products and services allow Click! the flexibility to respond to 
market opportunities while recovering operating costs. Rates for analog and digital cable TV packages were 
increased by an average of 6% in May 2005, with the increase for certain services ranging from 2% to 17%. The 
rate increase was the second since establishing the cable TV business line in 1998.

The average revenue per kWh sold and average monthly bills at selected consumption levels for typical residential, 
commercial and industrial customers of Tacoma Power, based on rates presently in effect, are shown below. In 
addition, both revenue and bill information representing a typical load factor for a Contract Industrial customer is 
presented.

Tacoma Power
Typical Revenue and Monthly Bills 

at Selected Usage Levels

Typical Revenue 
(cents per kWh) Monthly Bill

Residential(l)
500 kWh per month 7.30 $ 37
1,000 kWh per month 6.8 68
2,000 kWh per month 6.5 130

Com m ercial)
7,500 kWh per month (30 kW) 6.4 482
12,300 kWh per month (49 kW) 6.4 786

G9n?rql(3)
200,000 kWh per month (500 kW) 4.7 9,457
400,000 kWh per month (1,000 kW) 4.7 18,868
1,800,000 kWh per month (5,000 kW) 4,9 87,608

Contract Industrial(4)
26,280,000 kWh per month (40,000 
kW at 90% load factor) 3.5 926,822

(1) Residential rates based on 3.1081 cents per kWh for energy, 3.0981 cents per kWh for delivery, and a basic 
monthly charge of $5.50 per customer.

(2) Commercial rates based on 3.2132 cerits per kWh for energy, 3.0999 cents per kWh for delivery, and a basic 
monthly charge of $9 per customer.

(3) Industrial rates based on 3.2729 cents per kWh for energy, $5.73 per kW for deliver}' and a basic monthly 
charge of $46 per customer.

(4) Tacoma Power currently serves two large Contract Industrial customers under specific contracts established to 
meet those customers’ needs. Contract Industrial rates are based on 2.3564 cents per kWh for power supply
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Foreword

Tacoma Power contracted Virchow, Krause & Company, U_P to  assess the reasonableness o f its 
method o f allocating the capital investm ent and operating expenses o f Click! Network between 
power and -commercial applications. Power applications are uses o f the Click! Network 
Infrastructure that support electric transm ission and distribution operations. Commercial 
applications are cable TV, Internet, and data transport services sold to wholesale and retail 
customers. This report provides background Information, our opinion of the allocation method 
and the basis for that opinion. ’

The scope o f this project Is limited to a review  o f the reasonableness o f the allocation method. 
The scope does not include an audit o r an opinion o f Click! Network’s accounts and records o r of 
the projected benefits of automation.

R eview  o f C os t A lloca tions C lick ! N etwork
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J

1. Summary

Based upon our review, the method used by Click! Network (Click!) to allocate costs between 
power and commercial operations appears to  be reasonable given the unique characteristics of 

■ Tacoma Power.

1.1 Overview o f A llo ca tio n  M ethod

Click! Network takes an increm ental cost approach to allocate both capital dollars and expenses 
Power applications are identtfted as the primary motivaHon and use o f the telecommunications 
infrastructure. Investments and activities that are made necessary by the existence o f cable TV 
Internet, or broadband services are  allocated to commercial operations.

1.2 Reasonableness Test

To test the reasonableness o f the  cost allocation done by C lick i; we calculated the allocations 
Wito an alternative approach. T h is  approach uses the present va lue o f the projected customer 
automation benefits. With the present value approach it Is appropriate to allocate 100% o f the 
fib e r portion Of the network to the power applications. The coaxial portloh, however, needs to be 
divided between the comm ercial and power applications.

To detem ine how to divide the  costs, we cafcuiated the present value of the projected customer 
automation b e n e f its .^ e  present value o f the projected benefits is then allocated to the-power 
application.and the difference between the total coaxial network cost and the present value of 
the  benefits is then applied to  the commercial applications. T h is  approach yields a 28/72 
allocation between the cottunercaal and power applications. Given this result, we feel the 27/73 
cost allocation used by C lick! is reasonable.

1.3 O perational Expenses

W e also concur with C lick! N etw ork ’s  expense allocation. This opinion is based upon past 
experience and is supported by th e  present value approach described above. We have provided 
financial and business advisory services for over 50 munlolpaliHes that are considering offerlno 
voice, video, and data services.

R eview  o f C ost A lloca tions
C lick! Network
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2. Cost Aliocation Methods

2.1 A lloca tion  o f Capital Inves tm ent

To allocfate total capital investment and estimate depreciation for the two business categories, 
C lick! staff evaluated each o f the original 32 Telecommunications Project work orders to 
determine their commercial and power related portions. The team asked itself:

“Would these investments have been made If Tacoma Power was not offering Cable 
TV, internet, or other commercial broadband services?”

ft the  answer was no. the investment costs were allocated to Commercial Applications.

The work orders used to develop the breakdown are shown oh Table 2.1. The Commercial 
Applications investment was found to account fo r $23.6 million o f the total project investment of 
$85:8 million as o f September 2000. To allocate depreciation between' business lines, the 
Finance Department multiplied the to ta l depreciation by the ratio o f business line investment to 
total investm ent-  27.4 percent fo r commerolal services and 72.6 percent fo r power applications.

A few  of the original work orders were still open when the allocation ratios were developed. All 
are now dosed, with a final tota l o f $90,6 m illion. GlickI continued to use the 27.4 percent and 
72.6 percent ratios fo r these work orders.

Starting with the 200172002 Biennium, however, all new work orders, have been designated as 
ehher Comrnercial or Power, so  tha t investments can be tracked ‘separately. Open work orders 
(as o f  February o f 2DCF3)'tdtar$f4 m llilori; o f  which $g.b  mlHldn are fo r commercial applicatfdns 
and $4.7 million are power related.

J R eview  o f  C ost A lloca tions -2- C iick ! Network
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Table 2.1: Cost Allocation Summary

2.1 A floca tlon  o f Capita l In ves tm e n t (cont.)

Description wn  rjRR Total Capital Commercial Allocaflon to
Spending Applications Commercial

SE Hub Construction - Hub 1 17000 $ 18,017,341 $ 180,173 1-00%
NW Hub Construction - Hub 3 17001 9,539,585 95,396 1.00%
Headend Construction 17002 4,196,540 3,432,128 81,78%
HFC Network Design 17003 1,241,467 12,415 1.00%
SONET Network 17004 3,703,911 3,703.911 100.00%
Telecom Make Ready 17006 8,179,229 0.00%
Telecom Tools & Equipment 17006' 873,398 148,717 17.03%
Set Top Recievers / 2000 17007 6,475,591 6,475,591 100.00%
Telecommunicafa’ons Vehicles 17008 2,177.211 250,000 11.48%
Materials & SuppDes 17009 180,908 180,908 100.00%
Marketing 17010
Additions & Betterments ’ 17011 1,186 « 0.00%
Business Overhead Costs 17012 234,112 163,900 70.01%
Administrative Costs 17013 1.549.743 416,416 26.87%
NE Hub Construction - Hub 2 17014 9,211,239 92,112 1.00%
SW Hub Costnicfion - Hub 4 . 17015 3,635,515 36,355 1.00%
Worlctgate 17017 645,252 645,252 100.00%
Internet Access 17018 900;443  ̂' 0.00%
Multi-Dwelling Units 17019 . 4,603,399 3,682,719 80.00%
Commercial Installations 17020 3,057,623 3,057,623 100.00%
1099 Equipment 17021 53,783 0.00%
Purchase - J Mux Equipment . 17022 814,670 0.00%
Vehicles 1999/2000 17023 446,211 0.00%
Monitoring Equipment 17024 176,994 0.00%
Headhend 1999 17025 78,578 0.00%
Admlnistrafive Fees & Costs 17026 96,845 75,670 78.14%
Capitalized Drops 17027 1,516,132 827.808 54.60%
Headend 2000 17028 86,218 0.00%
NW Hub-1 Construction -A&B 17029 263,964 2,640 1.00%
SE Hub-3 Construction - A&B 17030 646,900 6,469 1.00%
NE Hub-2 Construction - A&B 17031 1;341,026 13,410 1.00%
SW Hub-4. Construction - A&B 17032 1.879.122 18,791 1.00%

Total $ 85,824,135 $ ■ 23,518,404
Total Hub Construction & Design 

(see bold items)
,$ 44,534,691 $ 446.346

Commercial Allocation 
Power Allocation

27.40%
72.60%

2.2 A llo c a tio n s  o f  O pera ting  Expenses

Prior to the 2001/2002 Biennium, most o f C iicki’s labor hours were coded under one 
Organizationai Unit — 5511, and one task number -  820.1. This practice, which began when 
C lickl was Initially formed, made it hard to separate operating expenses between power and 
commercial activities. It also made it d ifficu lt to hold managers and supervisors accountable for 
their performance. With these problems in mind, the Section Manager reorganized Clickl In the 
fa ll o f 2000 Into Organization Units (Orgs) -  each w ith d istinct and easily Identifiable roles in 
daily operations. Along with work delivery and quality control, front-line managers and 
supervisors were given responsibility fo r budgeting and cost control within their “Org.'

R eview  o f C ost A llo ca tio n s C lick l N e tw ork
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2.2 AHocattons o f O perating Expenses (cont.)

Org and Org Name

5511 ' General Manager

5521 Marketing and Business Operations
5522 Sales and Marketing
5523 Video Services

5524 ISP Advantage
5525 Customer Care
5526 Business Systems
5527 Broadband Services

5532 Technical Operations
5535 Service Installations

5536 Network Operations Center 

- 6537 inventory Control

6533 ..NetworkOperations 

5634 Network Applications

6541 Field Operations

5542 Engineering Services 

5546 Construction

D escrip tion

- Overall administration o f the section

- Administration o f 5520 series Orgs
- Marketing o f comnrerciat services
- Non-labor org; includes video revenues 

and programming costs
-  Non-labor org; includes Internet costs
- Customer care department
-  Billing and operations reports
-  Engineering and maintenance o f 

equipment and circuits sold to large 
business customers

-  Administration o f 5635, 5536, 5537 Orgs 
-S e rv ice  technicians installing cable

drops; and wiring homes and small 
businesses fo r CATV and Internet

-  24 X  7 monitdring o f  SONET and HFC 
networks; dispatohtfunctions

-  Provisioning and control of set-lop 
receivers

-H F C  network operations and maintenance

. -  Engineering and maintenance o f digital 
fiber network

-  Non labor org; administration o f 5542,
6646

- HFC network design; management o f  cable 
installations in  multiple dwelling complexes

- Network construction; underground drops

T o  divide operating expenses, each Org was analyzed and costs assigned using the same logic 
applied to capital investm ent Orgs 5621 through 5527,. and 5537, are assigned 100 percent to 
Commercial operations. Orgs 6533, 5534, and 5536 are assigned 100 percent to Power; and 
O rgs 5511, 5532, and 5535 are sp lit 50/50. Most labor hours and materials associated with the 
F ield Operations Orgs are assigned to specific capital work orders. Items that are expensed are 
assigned to Power,

R ev iew  o f  C ost A lloca tions C lick l Network
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3. Network Overview

The original construction consisted o f 770 miles o f plant, o f which 140 miles are fiber and 
630 miles are coaxial cable. The network is a Hybrid Fiber Coaxial (.HFC) design and each 
fiber node (total of 88) passes an average o f 1,000 homes. The network:

• Links 30 o f Tacoma Power’s 65 substations (plans are In place to expand this to the 
majority of Tacoma Power's substations. Substations not supported by fiber will have 
a microwave connection).

•  Provides cable television service to over 22,000 customers (approximately 76,000 
homes passed, o f which 66,000 customers represent Click! Network’s cable TV 
market)1.

•  Passes approximately 49%  o f customers served by Tacoma Power (assumes 154,000 
total customers).

•  Supplies cable Internet services (on an open access basis) to 7,000 end users.

» Provides fiber based high-speed date transport to area businesses.

Future plans call fo r expanding the network’s reach to more substations and expanding the use 
o f customer automation fo r residentia l and commercial customers.

v f

The authorization to build the telecommunication network was given in April o f 1997. The stated 
purpos'e was to enhance electrtfe service reliabiiity, reduce .operating costs, and diversify the 
u tilities’ revenue base, '

1 The difference is due to M ultip le  Dwelling Units with exclusive contracts with the incumbent 
cable provider and with m aster antenna satellite systems.
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4. Review of Allocation Method

The allocation method used by .Click! was based upon the question;

*Would these investments have been made if Tacoma Power was not offering Cable 
Television, Internet, or other commercial broadband services?"

If the answer was no, the investment costs were allocated to com.mercial operations.

In review, the allocated costs (see Table 2.1); with the exception o f the Hub construction and 
Network Design Costs,2 3 each appear to have a clear distinction between the power and 
commercial applications. In addition, the Hub construction and Network design cost allocation 
has a high Impact on the end conclusion. For example:

•  A  1% allocation to the commercial application results in 27.40% o f costs to 
commercial and 72.60% to  power.

• A  99% allocation to the  commercial application results in 79,67% of costs to 
commercial, and 20.33% to  power.

• A  50% 'aflocaiiofl to the commercial application results in 53.54% of costs to 
commercial and 4646%  to  power.

Given this sensitivity and the c lear distinction With the  other costs, our reasonableness test - 
focused on the Hub construction and Network Design cost allocation.

To initiate our reasonableness test, we asked some additional questions,

1. Has the electric utility pursued use o f the HFC network?

2. W hat alternative network options were available fn 1997?

3. Is the cost allocation percentage the same between the fiber portion o f the network . 
and the  coaxial segments?

4. W ha t network costs (for power applications) are reasonable, given the proj.ected 
benefits to power operations?

The firs t step in . answering the above questions is to review how Tacoma Power has 
lever'aged the availability o f the HFC network.

2 Work orders: 170G0, 17001, 17003, 17014, 17015, 17029, 17030, 17031, and 17032. These 
work orders represent 53% of the total costs ($45,776,158).

3 The Make-Ready costs (work order #17005) are also substantial ($8,179,229) and are often 
charged to the organization that is requesting an attachment. The electric utility does however; 
obtain a substantial benefit since the lifetime of the utility plant is extended.

Review  o f C os t A lloca tions C lick ! Network
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4.1 Use o fth e  HFC N etw ork b y  Tacom a Power

Tacoma Power has active custom er prem ises and facility management applications that are 
based upon the availability o f th e  HFC network. Current and planned applications include:

• SCADA and Distribution Automation Support 
+ Uses the fiber portion o f  Network
+ Is a mature application
.+ Click! supports SCADA a t 32 locations (and more to follow, see Section 3)

•  Residential Gateway Pro ject
+ Leverages availability o f the  HFC network 
+ In process of implementing a-10,000 home trial
+ Supports Automated M eter Reading (AMR), time-of-use rates, outage detection, 

service connect/disconnect, and prepaid metering programs

• Commerciai/lndustrial Custom er Autom atic Meter Project
*  Eliminates need fo r a  te lephone (landline or cellular) fo r communications with 

. meters . .
+ Customer tria l at 250 locations
+ Supports AMR, Tim e-of-Use (TOU) rates, outage detection, and o the r customer 

automation activities

Tacoma Power, although it  Is h o t using the fu ll oapabilitles o f the HFC network, has shown a 
strong Interit to continue and expand its use.

4.2 Responses to  Q uestions

1 ., Has the electric utility pursued the use o f the HFC Network?

Yes, as indicated above, Taconrta Power is using and plans to expand the use of the 
HFC Network,

2. What alternative network options were available in 1997?

In 1997, a variety o f vendors claimed to  have a solution. In reality, most were in the early 
development stage, n o t proven in a wide scale deployment or on the verge o f bankruptcy. 
The vendor community proposed a variety o f media including:

-PLC
- Radio
-Telephone '
- FIber/Goax 

. - Lease d

Given the desire fo r e lectric  service connect/disconnect reliance on the telephone or 
other leased circuits is ill-advised. In addition:

•  The radio systems w ere not proven (many of the vendors promoting two-way 
applications have disappeared or have abandoned their plans).

•  The PLC vendors w ere prim arily one-way which supported AMR, Two-way 
applications, although showing promise in 1997, had consistency issues to 
Overcome.
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•  The HFC pfant was proven for reliable two-way communication, but vendor 
hardware fo r the customer premises was limited.

Given the above, assuming Tacoma Power could justify the network expense (i.e., 
sufficient benefits existed), pursuit of an HFC network was reasonable.

3. (s the cost allocation percentage the same between the fiber portion o f the network 
and the coaxiaf segments?

Clearly, the majority o f the cost o f the fiber.netw ork can be allocated to power 
applications. This allocation is based upon the need for communication at the 
substation to support SCADA and Distribution Automation, In fact, many electric 
utilities have implemented fiber to their substations and key field device sites.

The allocation o f the coaxial network can be based on the net present value o f 
■residential and commercial customer automation {see question 4).

4. W hat network costs are reasonable, given the projected benefits to power 
operations?

Click! has estimated the annual benefit fo r residential and commercial automation is 
approximately $ 1 1 5  miiliqn. Given that the HFC network passes 49% o f customers, 
the gross-benefit applioabie to the existing coax portion o f the network is $5.6 million.

These benefits are driven by Tacoma Power's unique characteristics. For example, Tacoma 
Power ,

♦ Sees an annual custom er Chum o f 30,000 {20 percent of customers).

♦ Receives a high volume o f customer calls per day.

♦ . Has a large number o f its customers at .or below poverty level (increases benefit o f
pay-as-you-go programs).

As a result, the  benefits o f custom er automation may be greater for Tacoma Power than for 
the typical municipal utility.

4,2 Responses to  Q uestions (cont.)
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5. Reasonableness T e s t-  Network Cost Allocation

To deterrnlne Ihe allocation based upon benefits, we need to answer three more questions.

1. What was the percentage o f coaxial costs for hub construction and design?

2. W hat additional custofrier premises implementation costs (beyond the HFC network) are 
required to realize the custom er automation benefits?

3. W hat is the present va lue o f thei customers’ automation benefits attributable to the 
coaxial portion o f the HFC network?

The answers to these questions fo llow :

5.1 A llo ca tio n  Based Upon B e n e fits

1. What was the percentage o f coaxial costs?

^ s u m in g  the per mile construotion fo r fiber and coaxial cable (with active elements) 
is sim ilar^ the coaxial network segment cost is estimated by:

^45,776. 1S6b X 630 miles of coax '
Coaxial Network = 770 miles b f cable
Cost Estimate

Coaxial N etwork = 
Cost Estimate

$37,536,450

The average cost per hom es passed fo r the coaxial portion o f the network Is $484 
($37,536,450 divided by 76,000).

2. W hat additional custom er premium implementation costs (beyond the HFC network) are 
required to  realize the custom er automation benefite?

From GlickI August 2002 Business Plan, it is indicated that the approximate customer 
premises cost w ill be $202 to $313 per meter location (m id-point o f $258).

3. W hat is the present va lue o f the customer automation benefits attributable to the coaxial 
• portion o f the HFC network?

As indicated .in Section 4. question 4, an annual benefit o f  $5.6 million. If  we assume that 
15% o f these annua] benefits are applied to a funded depreciation account, the remainino 
benefit is $4,824,026. per year. a

•a

i

Based upon our experience w ith  o ther implementations, th is assumption is supportable. 
See total Hub construction and design costs from Table 2.1.
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This net benefit of 14.624,026 then can be • allocated between the average coax cost per 
customer and the mid-point of the  customer’s premises costs. This results in;

5.1 A lloca tion  Based Upon B ene fits  (cont.)

Annual net benefit applied 
to coaxial portion o f network

6 4,824.026 
~  Net benefit x 494 

(494+268)

Annual net benefit applied to the
coaxial portion o f the Network = $ 3,168,975

Assuming a 20-year lifetime and a 6% discount rate, the resulting present value o f the annual net 
benefit is $36,347,894.

5.2 A lloca tio n  C a lcu la tion

Given the above present value o f the custom er automation benefits attributable to the coaxial 
portion Of the network, the resulting allocation between the commercial and power application is 
made:

Power Application Allocation

plus

Commercial Application Allocation

less

$ 8,239,708 Fiber portion of Network (100%)

Net present value o f custom er 
automation benefits attributable to. 

36,347,894 coax portion 
$ 44,587,602 Power A,pplication Allocation

$ 46,776,168 Total Hub construction and de$ign

44,587,602 Power Application Allocation 
$ 1,188.556 Commerce Application Allocation

The results yield an allocation o f 2.6 percent o f the Hub construction and design to  commercial 
applications. This is an Increase over the 1% indicated in ta b le  2.1. This results in increasing 
the tota l allocation to commercial applications by $732,418 to $24,250,822,The resulting overall 
allocation is:

•  28% to commercial applications
•  72% to power applications

Assuming that Tacoma Power pursues full custom er automation and that the projected benefits 
are realized, this method supports the allocation method developed by Click! Network.
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6. Operation Expenses ~ Reasonableness

In Section 2.2, the list o f Organizational Units (Orgs) and the allocations were presented. From 
review of the “ orgs", and oUr general experience gained from review of other systems, we concur 
with the allocations between the power and commercial applications for:

Orgs 5521 through 5527 
Org 5537

Org 5534

Org 5632 
Org 5535

100% to commercial 
100% to commercial

100% to power

50/60
50/50*

For Org 5511, General Manager; based upon experience with other systems, the 50/50 allocation 
appears to be heavy towards the  power application. Our experience base, however, is largely 
w ith  sm aller organizations tha t a re  in the cable television business. W ith the smaller systems 
the general manager tends to have a high degree o f customer contact 'and the attention reguired 
to be paid to the cable te levision business is substantial. Given the size o f Tacoma Power the 
50/50 allocation may be appropriate. '

Vye also concur with the assignm ent o f the HFC Netwotic operation and maintenance to the 
power appitcations. The calculation made In section 5 supports the allocation o f the operation 
and maintenance expenses to the power applications.
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1 Introduction 
This document was prepared by CTC Technology & Energy in January 2018 at the request of 

outside litigation counsel for the City of Tacoma. The purpose of this document is to provide a 

preliminary framework of alternative business strategies to reduce Tacoma Power’s 

approximately $5 million in annual operating losses on the commercial uses of its 

telecommunications system (“Click”).1 The document is further intended to describe briefly how 

these strategies may advance or hinder each of the key policy goals that Click’s commercial 

operations were designed to effectuate and that are summarized in TPU Board Resolution U-

10988. This document is not a comprehensive technical or financial analysis of these options. 

Rather, it is an overview summary of some of the options that might be considered for Click’s 

next phase of operations based on our experience with other efforts around the country.  

Just as importantly, this document also takes stock of Click’s significant accomplishments to date. 

Click gives the City of Tacoma and TPU opportunity to further goals of equity, neutrality, privacy, 

and affordability. At the same time, Click provides competition—the holy grail of communications 

policy—and competition is critical to improve service and pricing in broadband. Thanks to its 

investment in Click, the Tacoma community has developed a competitive broadband 

environment that offers a level of competition that is available only in a relative handful of 

American communities. 

At the same time, it’s important to acknowledge the key challenges that TPU faces in attempting 

to improve Click’s financial results. These challenges are faced by most small broadband 

companies, whether public or private, in the current era. For example, changing consumer 

behavior (that entails consumption of video through streaming and “over-the-top” services) is 

decreasing video take rate and revenues in almost every market in the country. At the same time, 

video programming costs for small providers are increasing and far outpace the rate of inflation; 

the result of this increase in costs is that most smaller providers are fortunate to break even on 

video—and many are not able to do so. In addition, as incumbents have consolidated over the 

past decades and grown dramatically in size, they have realized scale advantages that small 

providers cannot hope to replicate—advantages that enable them to spread fixed costs over very 

large subscriber bases. In contrast, for small providers like Click, ever-increasing fixed costs must 

be spread over a small subscriber base that is limited to Tacoma Power’s service footprint. 

                                                      
1 This report is focused on the commercial uses of Tacoma Power’s telecommunications system (referred to as 
Click).  The primary reason for the construction of Tacoma Power’s telecommunications system in the late 1990s 
was to provide a platform for more efficient use and control of Tacoma Power’s generation, transmission, and 
distribution assets and to allow for the installation of smart meters for electric ratepayers.  Click’s use of the 
telecommunications system was authorized to potentially provide additional revenue for Tacoma Power.  All Click 
customers are a subset of Tacoma Power’s electric customers.  This report does not address the historical and 
ongoing benefits the telecommunications system provides with respect to Tacoma Power’s delivery of electricity. 
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Relatedly, as incumbent phone and cable companies have grown in size, they have increased 

their ability to compete aggressively with smaller providers, including by leveraging wireline and 

wireless products (which have become a competitive product to wireline in some cases, 

particularly for price-sensitive consumers). And some public providers, which appropriately 

answer to elected and appointed bodies, lack the flexibility in governance to respond quickly to 

dramatically fast-changing market conditions and tend to be tied to legacy business models that 

hamper market positioning.  

Given the need to address ongoing operating losses and these and other challenges, our 

preliminary view is that TPU has five general strategic options to consider:  

• Continue finding ways to reduce costs and streamline operations 

• Become a retail internet service provider (ISP) and potentially eliminate cable TV 

operations  

• Upgrade the Click network to fiber-to-the-premises in an effort to better compete with 

incumbents in the market 

• Cease internet and cable operations and abandon the related parts of the network 

• Seek a partner willing to take on operating and other obligations and costs while agreeing 

to conditions that would preserve Click’s significant policy achievements 

Each of these approaches will impact the City’s key policy goals in different ways and to different 

degrees. This document summarizes the approaches briefly and comments on how they would 

relate to each of the City’s key policy goals as outlined in Resolution U-10988. 

We note also that the City has considered change in governance as a potential tool for addressing 

the ongoing losses. We caution that, while control and responsibility for Click can be certainly 

moved out of Tacoma Power and into another entity, that action by itself does not change 

anything about the business plan, revenue streams, or ongoing losses. A change in governance 

and responsibility can be paired with any of the strategies discussed below but changing that 

element of the organizational structure will not change financial results unless the broader 

business strategy is changed as well. 
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2 The Substantial Policy Achievements of Click 
It is important for community members, policymakers, and other stakeholders to recognize what 

has been achieved in the creation and development of Click. These achievements are of enduring 

value to TPU, the City, surrounding communities, and their residents and businesses. Moreover, 

these benefits are uncommon—only the 100 or so U.S. cities that have built broadband networks 

have accomplished what TPU has with its Click investment.  

2.1 Click Provides Competition 

Without Click, Tacoma would have only one cable company and one telephone company 

providing internet access in the residential and small business markets. By creating Click, TPU 

created competition in the cable TV market and the increasingly-crucial internet market. As a 

general statement, markets with a more vibrant set of choices reward customers with better 

customer service, better pricing, and improved services from all players.  The importance of this 

outcome cannot be overstated; only a small fraction of American communities has more than 

two robust internet competitors, placing Tacoma in an exceptional position of which it should be 

appropriately proud. 

The benefits of competition are manifold. First, competition results in better consumer choices 

(including clearer terms). For example, a limited comparison of terms offered by Click’s ISPs and 

Comcast suggests that competition has given Tacoma consumers a range of options on items 

such as cost of installation and contract cancellation.  We conducted spot checks of online 

advertised pricing at addresses in Tacoma and found that Click’s ISPs promised flat fees of $30 

to $50 for installation. Comcast’s website, by contrast, did not show a precise installation fee, 

but said its 30-day money back guarantee “applies to one month’s recurring service charge 

and standard installation up to $500.”  Comcast’s installation costs are generally determined 

on a case-by-case basis. Comcast requires a two-year contract for customers wanting to lock 

in promotional prices, and imposes an early termination fee if consumers cancel between one 

and 24 months. Click’s providers offer promotional prices that last 12 months and do not 

impose any early termination fee for early cancellation. In Tacoma, consumers have real 

choices. 

Second, competition provides a check on the vagaries of national ISP pricing. For example, 

around the country, Comcast charges different prices for the same service in different regions; 

advertises monthly prices as a range where the high and low numbers are sometimes $15 

apart; and uses many different types of promotional rates that hide the actual effective rates 

charged to consumers. The existence of Click provides a hedge against such pricing 

uncertainties. And TPU staff report that they have long received communications from Tacoma 

residents and businesses that Click has enabled them to secure more transparent  and fair 

pricing than was otherwise available. 
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2.2 Click Provides Equity in Broadband 

With Click, the City of Tacoma and TPU developed a broadband platform that reached residents 

of Tacoma without consideration of factors such as demographics and profitability. Rather, TPU 

built the network to the entire community. This equitable approach to buildout and service is 

increasingly uncommon in the internet market. Phone companies in particular only upgrade their 

networks in select areas where the return is highest. 

2.3 Click Provides Excellent Customer Service 

One of the achievements of TPU’s investment has been Click’s well-regarded customer service. 

In an industry that is infamous for poor customer service, ongoing consumer feedback 

demonstrates that TPU has consistently delivered better customer service than the large cable 

television companies. This is a considerable achievement that has delivered value to the 

community for all the years of Click’s existence and generated significant goodwill for TPU’s 

telecommunications assets. 

2.4 Click Allows Tacoma to Set and Enforce Local Policies 

TPU’s ownership of Click means the City is in a relatively rare position: it can set policies about 

how its network will be governed and it can choose to ensure such goals as respect for consumer 

data. This means the City can, among other things, decide what levels of consumer privacy and 

net neutrality it wants to guarantee for its citizens. Ownership of the asset affords continued 

leverage to ensure that the network continues to be used in ways that are consistent with the 

community’s goals.  
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3 Strategic Alternatives for Click to Address Policy Goals in Varying 

Ways 
The question presented to CTC was this: What are the general options for eliminating ongoing 

operating losses of more than $5 million per year? To what extent do these options protect or 

interfere with Tacoma’s policy goals (and policy achievements to date), as outlined in Resolution 

U-10988?  

 

Resolution U-10988 outlines 12 goals. We have consolidated that list slightly into ten goals.  We 

merged the fourth and fifth goals (“open access” and “competition”) into a single goal because 

these concepts are tightly related. We also merged the first and seventh goal (“continued public 

ownership” and “safeguarding the network’s use [by public agencies]”) given that the spirit of 

these goals are essentially the same, and that sale of the network is not among the five options 

summarized in this report. 

 

Here is the resulting list of ten goals: 

 

1: Public ownership and use: Continuing public ownership of the telecommunications assets, 

especially those assets necessary for TPU operations, and safeguarding the network’s use for 

public purposes. 

2: Equitability: Ensuring geographically, economically, and technologically equitable access to 

services. 

3: Affordability: Creating low-income affordable access to telecommunication services. 

4: Net Neutrality: Enforcing net neutrality principles for all customers. 

5: Open Access/Competition: Preserving competition and allowing open access to 

telecommunication assets by other providers to the extent such access benefits customers with 

high-quality, technologically up-to-date, and reasonably priced telecommunication services, 

including restricting transfer of ownership or operations that reduce competition. 

6: Financial stability: Maintaining financial stability of the telecommunications business 

operations. 

7: Community Opportunities: Promoting economic development and educational opportunities. 

8: Employment: Providing job options and security for Click staff and protecting the intellectual 

capital of the system. 

9: Privacy: Protecting customer data privacy. 

10: Customer Service: Preserving market-leading customer service for telecommunications. 

 

For each of the five alternative scenarios presented below, we briefly summarize the possible 

impact on these ten goals. 
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3.1 Scenario One: Reduce Operating Expenses 

In the first scenario, Click would seek to realize substantial operating efficiencies and thereby to 

reduce costs and losses for TPU. TPU already has taken steps to reduce expenses. For example, 

TPU is evaluating outsourcing of Click’s network operations center (NOC), outsourcing of the 

cable headend, and reducing the number of job classifications to increase operational and 

staffing efficiency.  In addition, TPU could consider additional measures such as outsourcing video 

or shifting video to a lower cost platform.  Options here include outsourcing to a remote IP-based 

provider and offering over-the-top services with a consumer-owned streaming device.  These 

strategies could reduce staffing by as many as 23 FTEs, and perhaps many more if video costs 

were reduced.  In our view, these approaches would enable TPU to trim annual losses by $1.5 

million to $1.7 million.  

3.1.1 Impacts on policy goals  

3.1.1.1 Public Ownership and Use 

This option retains public ownership of the network and the long-term opportunities that 

accompany it. 

3.1.1.2 Equitability 

This option makes no change in terms of equitable access. Click has already secured the benefits 

of equity by deploying service broadly and without reference to demographics or profitability. 

3.1.1.3 Affordability 

This option makes no change with respect to affordability. Pricing is likely to remain consistent, 

particularly for internet service.  

3.1.1.4 Net Neutrality 

This option makes no change with respect to Click’s ability to set and adhere to net neutrality 

principles. 

3.1.1.5 Financial stability 

The reduction in costs by $1.5 million to $1.7 million would go partway to restoring financial 

stability, but may not go far enough for forestall the need for a later and more significant strategic 

change in direction. 

3.1.1.6 Community Opportunities  

This option presents no change in terms of Click’s ability to promote economic development and 

educational opportunities.  At a high level, the extent to which Click can achieve these goals is a 

function of Click’s overall health as a business.   
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3.1.1.7 Employment 

Reducing staffing by 23 FTEs would still preserve most existing jobs.  In the larger view, however, 

if this strategy does not solve Click’s financial problems, it merely puts off tougher decisions for 

a later date. If losses end up widening, more jobs will be threatened. 

3.1.1.8 Competition 

This option makes no change in terms of the existing level of competition.   

3.1.1.9  Privacy 

This option makes no change with respect to Click’s privacy policies. 

3.1.1.10  Customer Service 

While this option makes no change regarding the level of service Click provides, a reduction in 

staffing and operating costs could potentially affect the capacity of Click to provide the same level 

of customer service.  

3.2 Scenario Two: Become a Retail ISP and Try to Increase Revenues 

In the second scenario, Click would become a retail ISP rather than solely a wholesaler, and thus 

would no longer be reliant on the capabilities and success of private ISPs.  This strategy would 

enable TPU to bundle services to potentially increase its cable television take rate.  

(One idea that has been discussed in this context is that of dropping cable service. We would 

note that while cable might not be profitable, many consumers want a bundled service. It would 

be important to do a market study to test whether cable, even though it does not result in any 

profits in and of itself, is important for attracting and retaining internet customers and thus 

building take rate.) 

The challenge in this approach is that it requires Click to directly compete with its current 

wholesale ISP customers. This approach also does not address Click’s disadvantages in scale and 

platform relative to Comcast and other providers, and will require increased staffing for sales, 

marketing and customer service, increasing annual losses in the short and medium term. Losses 

could be reduced if these efforts resulted in a dramatic increase in revenues by adding internet 

products to Click’s existing cable television offerings.  

 

3.2.1 Impacts on policy goals  

3.2.1.1 Public Ownership and Use 

This option retains public ownership of the network. 

3.2.1.2 Equitability 

This option makes no change in terms of equitable access. 
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3.2.1.3 Affordability 

This option may improve affordability by adding TPU as a competitive retail ISP, though the need 

to increase revenues would suggest that price decreases would not be advisable. 

3.2.1.4 Net Neutrality 

This option makes no change with respect to Click’s ability to set and adhere to net neutrality 

principles. 

3.2.1.5 Financial stability 

The approach requires an increase in operating expenses to enable substantial new marketing 

and sales efforts.  There is no guarantee, however, that revenue would increase enough to justify 

the extra expense.  If revenue does not increase substantially, financial stability will suffer. 

3.2.1.6 Community Opportunities  

This option presents no change in terms of Click’s ability to promote economic development and 

educational opportunities.  At a high level, the extent to which Click achieves these goals is a 

function of Click’s overall health as a business.   

3.2.1.7 Employment 

This strategy will result in increased employment to carry out new marketing and sales efforts. If 

this strategy does not solve Click’s financial problems, then these increases may be temporary.  

3.2.1.8 Competition 

This option changes the competitive landscape in significant ways, in that Click itself would be 

directly competing with existing providers. In this way, it potentially enhances competition. 

3.2.1.9 Privacy 

This option makes no change with respect to Click’s privacy policies. 

3.2.1.10  Customer Service 

This option retains Click’s ability to provide high-quality customer service.  

 

3.3 Scenario Three: Upgrade the Network to Fiber-to-the-Premises 

Upgrading from its existing hybrid fiber-coaxial platform to fiber would give Click a platform 

advantage relative to Comcast.  Click could provide symmetrical 1 Gigabit service and have an 

upgrade path to higher speeds in anticipation of future growth in demand.  

 

This approach would, however, entail a very high new capital expense to upgrade the network 

and would not address the structural challenges of Click’s scale disadvantages relative to 

competitors like Comcast. Additionally, Click would still be operating in a competitive market.   
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Such an approach would entail a significant increase in both internal and contract staffing for 

construction and equipment installation.  There would likely be a dramatic increase in the near 

to medium-term losses from high debt service and increased operating expenses.  Reducing 

these losses over time would require an extremely high take rate.  

3.3.1 Impacts on policy goals 

3.3.1.1 Public Ownership and Use 

This option retains network ownership. 

3.3.1.2 Equitability 

This option makes no change in terms of equitable access, and may increase the types and speeds 

of available services, given fiber’s capacity and scalability. 

3.3.1.3 Affordability 

This option makes no change in terms of affordability. 

3.3.1.4 Net Neutrality 

This option makes no change in terms of net neutrality. 

3.3.1.5 Financial stability 

The sharp increase in costs in the near to medium term comes with no guarantee that a high take 

rate will result in financial stability over the longer term.  A very high take rate would be required 

to cover the existing losses as well as the new debt service and operating costs.  Insufficient take 

rate and revenues could greatly increase the current level of operating losses.  There is no 

guarantee, however, that revenue would increase enough to justify the extra expense.  

3.3.1.6 Community Opportunities  

Alone among the five alternative scenarios, this option could significantly expand community 

opportunities over the long term.  A fiber platform would enable enhanced business and 

educational opportunities thanks to symmetrical gigabit service.  Cable is particularly limited in 

its ability to deliver fast file uploads.  A fiber platform would remove this limitation and allow 

ultra-high-resolution video conferencing, ultrafast delivery of large files, and a variety of potential 

future applications and services.  

3.3.1.7 Employment 

This approach would result in an expansion in the number and types of TPU jobs, particularly 

during the construction and deployment state.  Following construction and deployment, Click’s 

staffing level is likely to return to the current level or see a modest increase for operations of the 

fiber platform.  
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3.3.1.8 Competition 

This option could change the competitive landscape in significant ways. With fiber to the 

premises, Click would possess a superior technology platform to that of the incumbent providers. 

It is conceivable that more providers could offer more and new kinds of service through Click 

through a fiber network, depending on how it was managed. Over time, new consumer demands 

could also be effectively met by competitors. It is also possible that the phone company would 

respond by building fiber deeper into its own network in response, though this is likely only if 

Click’s take rate grows and it proves a capable competitor.  

3.3.1.9 Privacy 

This option makes no change with respect to Click’s privacy policies. 

3.3.1.10  Customer Service 

This approach preserves Click’s ability to provide superior customer service, and given that the 

take rate would need to be very high for this business to be viable, this high-quality service 

would reach more people.  However, it is not certain that this approach will result in the 

necessary high take rate.  

 

3.4 Scenario Four: Shut Down Internet and Cable Service, and Abandon Plant 

In this scenario, Click would cease providing wholesale service to the internet ISPs, would cease 

offering cable television services, and would stop maintaining the outside plant and equipment 

associated with the public-facing internet and cable products. The fiber that serves the City and 

TPU would be maintained and would continue in its current functions. 

 

This scenario would successfully eliminate all operating losses associated with serving Click’s 

customers and would thus address the immediate financial challenge. This savings would be 

achieved by reducing substantially Click staff, retaining only approximately 14 out of 102 

currently budgeted FTEs. In this way, this approach would almost entirely eliminate telecom-

related costs other than those associated solely with City and Tacoma Power functions. 

 

This strategy solves the financial problem by sacrificing the policy achievements Click has 

delivered for so long. It would also mean that TPU would forgo the existing value of the 

network and a significant portion of TPU’s telecommunications assets. 

 

A variation on this approach would be to allow the two existing ISPs to lease, operate and 

maintain the network at cost so that they could continue operating but without the current 

level of support they get from Click.   
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3.4.1 Impacts on policy goals 

3.4.1.1 Public Ownership and Use 

This option abandons network ownership and forgoes the ongoing value of the consumer-facing 

network. The fiber optic portions of the network would be retained and supported in order to 

meet utility and City needs, but the portions of the network that support cable and internet 

service to homes and businesses would no longer be maintained and supported. 

3.4.1.2 Equitability 

This option negates the value of Click in terms of equitable access to services. 

3.4.1.3  Affordability 

Exiting the market leaves the question of affordability to the existing incumbents in the market 

and would remove some of the competitive factors that are likely to constrain future growth in 

pricing. 

3.4.1.4 Net Neutrality 

Exiting the market will mean the City and Tacoma Power lose their ability to themselves offer net 

neutral products or to use the Click asset as leverage to secure net neutrality benefits.  

3.4.1.5 Financial stability 

This option would eliminate the ongoing financial losses by eliminating the costs of staffing and 

supporting the internet and cable TV services, but also forgoes the ongoing value of the network.  

3.4.1.6 Community Opportunities  

This option would all but end Tacoma’s ability to influence how the City’s communications 

network aids economic development or educational opportunity.  

3.4.1.7 Employment 

This approach would result in the loss of most existing jobs associated with Click, retaining 

approximately 14 out of 102 currently budgeted FTEs according to Click staff. 

3.4.1.8 Competition 

This option would forgo the value Click provides in terms of providing competition. 

3.4.1.9 Privacy 

Exiting the market will mean the City and Tacoma Power lose their ability to themselves offer 

privacy-respecting internet products or to use the Click asset as leverage to secure privacy 

benefits.  

3.4.1.10  Customer Service 

This approach would mean Tacoma Power no longer provides any customer service to 

residential or business consumers.  
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3.5 Scenario Five: Collaborate with a Partner and Offset Risk 

In this scenario, TPU would share with a select partner the operating effort that is currently 

causing the operating losses. This approach would involve using a competitive process to identify 

a partner that is qualified to deliver competing internet and cable services to Tacoma Power’s 

customers – and that is also willing to meet many of the City’s policy requirements. In such an 

arrangement, Tacoma Power would allow the partner to operate the network assets for a fee, 

such that TPU’s obligations would extend only to maintaining the infrastructure while the 

partner’s obligations would focus on providing high quality services to the public. 

Depending on market conditions and the terms of an agreement, this option could enable TPU 

to address some or all of the City’s important goals while eliminating some or all operating losses. 

Potentially, the right deal could even result in net revenues. 

This approach is contingent on finding a partner entity that is amenable (and, ideally enthusiastic) 

about these policy goals and interested in a business model in which it will take operating risk in 

return for access to TPU’s considerable network assets. Projects in multiple states in recent years 

suggest that win-win scenarios are possible and viable. Indeed, we suspect that several 

companies would be interested, and that the City may have multiple options in selecting a 

partner, subject to negotiations. That said, market conditions and larger national and global 

economic trends will impact the potential to secure a partner that meets the City’s goals. 

The City and TPU can consider testing the market for a partner through an information-seeking 

process (such as an RFI) or through a competitive RFP process. Such an effort would enable the 

City and Tacoma Power to determine whether there is a partner willing to make commitments 

that address the City’s policy goals and TPU’s revenue needs in return for access to the Click 

assets. 

3.5.1 Impacts on policy goals 

3.5.1.1 Public Ownership and Use 

This option retains network ownership and, crucially, leverages that ownership into significant 

potential ongoing public policy benefits, including those discussed below. 

3.5.1.2 Equitability 

The partner would ideally be willing to commit to ensuring equity by agreeing to offer the same 

services at the same prices throughout the community. If the partner is amenable to expanding 

the network over time, the partner would ideally be willing to do so based on equitable factors 

to be negotiated with TPU and the City. So long as the overall financial package is attractive to a 

potential partner, we believe that this goal is achievable. 
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3.5.1.3 Affordability 

The partner would ideally be willing to commit to providing a low-cost but high-quality product 

to lower-income members of the community. In our experience, there are multiple potential 

partners that are willing to work with cities to develop programs that support affordability and 

enhance digital inclusion. In one city, we’ve seen a partner commit to match contributions from 

the city that reduce pricing for low-income consumers. In others, we have seen partners commit 

to adding a lower-cost product to a higher-end service offering. In others, we have seen partners 

who are willing to make annual contributions to city-managed funds to support digital training 

and literacy. 

3.5.1.4 Net Neutrality 

In this scenario, TPU and the partner would mutually agree to adhere to the same principles of 

net neutrality that guide TPU today. While this requirement might reduce the number of 

interested potential partners, we do know of a small group of private entities that are amenable 

to this condition and, indeed, have chosen to be net neutral as a matter of policy and branding. 

3.5.1.5 Financial stability 

Subject to the terms of any agreement, this strategy addresses the first order of business: 

restoring financial stability.  The agreement would ideally minimize or eliminate losses and 

perhaps produce revenue.   

3.5.1.6 Community Opportunities  

By preserving ownership and competition, this option should maintain the same level of 

economic development and educational benefits provided by Click today. In addition, we believe 

that some private entities would be open to providing modest financial support for community 

opportunity. In other markets, we have seen private entities fund maker spaces, sponsor local 

technology efforts, and support technology incubators, among other community contributions. 

3.5.1.7 Employment 

The employment impact of such a move would be akin to the impact of shutting down service, 

but with the possibility that some employees could be retained or that the partner could fund 

severance.  A remaining internal telecom staffing level of 14 FTEs appears probable according to 

Click staff. 

3.5.1.8   Competition 

This option would retain competition in Tacoma. By preserving a viable, financially stable 

platform for cable TV and internet services, the hard-won competitive market created by the 

Click investment would be preserved. Crucially, it will be important to select a technically and 

financially viable entity as a partner to ensure long-term security of competition. Further, and 

similarly importantly, in our experience there do exist a number of potential partners that are 
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willing to commit not to sell or transfer their interests in the partnership to incumbents in that 

same market. The importance of this to Tacoma is that such an agreement, assuming it is 

enforceable, would eliminate the potential for competition to be reduced at some point through 

sale of the partner company to Comcast or CenturyLink (or one of their successors).  

3.5.1.9 Privacy 

The partner would ideally be willing to commit to maintaining a privacy policy that is consistent 

with City goals. As with net neutrality, we anticipate that this requirement would reduce the 

number of interested partners and thus carries a cost for Tacoma, but there do exist entities that 

might be willing to make this commitment because it’s already part of their business and 

marketing strategies. 

3.5.1.10  Customer Service 

This approach would likely mean Click no longer directly provides customer service, which 

would be handled by the partner. However, incentives built into the deal could result in high 

quality service and TPU and the City could choose to prioritize in the competitive process a 

strong customer service ethic and track record. 


